
Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
City Council Meeting 

A g e n d a  
Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 5:30 PM 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

  

OPENING ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Consider Approval of the Minutes from April 11th & the Local Board of Appeal & Equalization on April 17th 
PUBLIC HEARING 
2. Conduct Public Hearing of Ordinance Amending Section 86-230 Required Number of Spaces 
CONSENT AGENDA 
3. Consider Approval of the 2023-2024 Township Fire Services Agreements 
4. Consider Approval for a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Knights of Columbus Fundraiser 
5. Consider Approval of Amendments to Ordinance Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center Commission 
6. Consider Amendment to Sec. 74-122 regarding Snow Emergency Declaration 
7. Introduction of Ordinance Amending Section 86-248 Outside Storage and Call for Public Hearing 
8. Consider Authorization to Declare Vehicles as Surplus Property for the Marshall Police Department 
9. Consider Approval for a Raffle LG220 Exempt Permit for Holy Redeemer 
10. Consider Approval of the Bills/Project Payments 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT 
NEW BUSINESS 
11. Request for Conditional Use Permit by Western MN Municipal Power Agency 
12. Contract Allowing MRES to Become MMU’s Administrator of the New WAPA Renewable Energy Credits 
13. Missouri River Energy Services & MMU Reserve Capacity Agreement 
14. Project AP-003:  Airport Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) Building - Consider Rejection of Bids 
15. Project ST-003: South 1st Street/Greeley Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed 

and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment 
16. Project ST-004:  Halbur Road Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering 

Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment 
17. Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be 

Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment 
18. Consider a Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s GO Bond Series 2023A 
19. Consider Appointments to Various Boards, Commission, Bureaus, and Authorities 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
20. Commission/Board Liaison Reports 
21. Councilmember Individual Items 
STAFF REPORTS 
22. City Administrator 
23. Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
24. City Attorney 
INFORMATION ONLY 
25. Public Housing Commission Minutes 
26. Planning Commission Minutes 
27. Building Permits 
MEETINGS 
28. Upcoming Meetings 
ADJOURN 
 

Page 1



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Mayor Byrnes 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

Category: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Meeting & Work Session Held on April 11, 
2023 

Background 
Information: 

Enclosed are the minutes from the previous meeting.  

Fiscal Impact:   

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

Staff encourages City Council Members to provide any suggested corrections to the minutes in 
writing to City Clerk, Steven Anderson, prior to the meeting. 

Recommendations: That the minutes from the meetings held on April 11 be approved as filed with each member 
and that the reading of the same be waived. 

 
 
 

 

Page 2Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

M I N U T E S  
Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

 
The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Marshall was held April 11, 2023, at City Hall, 344 West Main 
Street. The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M. by Mayor Robert Byrnes. In addition to Byrnes the following 
members were in attendance: Amanda Schroeder, Craig Schafer, John Alcorn, See Moua-Leske and James Lozinski.  
Absent: Steve Meister. Staff present included: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Pamela Whitmore, City Attorney; 
Jason Anderson, Director of Public Works/City Engineer; E.J. Moberg, Director of Administrative Services; Amanda 
Beckler, Community Education Coordinator; Dave Parsons, City Assessor; Preston Stensrud, Park & Rec Supervisor; Scott 
Truedson, Wastewater Superintendent; Scott Przybilla, Assistant Wastewater Superintendent; Ilya Gutman, Plans 
Examiner and Steven Anderson, City Clerk. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at this time. 
 
Consider Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Meeting Held on March 28, 2023 
There were no changes or amendments to the minutes. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to approve the minutes. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-
Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Vacation of Utility Easements in Stonebridge Estates – 1) Public Hearing on Resolution Granting Petition to Vacate 
Utility Easement; 2) Consider Resolution Granting Petition to Vacate Utility Easement 
A petition was received from the owner of the property that is in the proposed area for utility easement vacation. The 
purpose of the vacation is for the construction of a dwelling and reconfiguration of Lots 9, 10, 11, and 12, Block Eight, 
Stonebridge Estates and a copy of the request has been sent to all the local utility companies for their review. No 
concerns were given by the utility companies regarding the vacation. Mayor Byrnes opened the public hearing for 
comment and no comments were given by the public or council members. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Alcorn to close the public hearing. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-
Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Schroeder to approve Resolution 23-029 
granting the petition to vacate utility easement. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember 
Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A. 1) Conduct a Public Hearing 2) Resolution Approving Property Tax Abatement 
to Finance Certain Public Improvements in the City 
The City is proposing property tax abatement to aid in financing certain public improvements, including parking lot 
improvements and improvements to various city parks (Independence Park, Legion Field, and the Amateur Sports 
Center) (the “Project”), all pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815, as amended. The City 
intends to issue one or more series of general obligation bonds, a portion of which will be designated as tax abatement 
bonds, in the aggregate principal amount estimated not to exceed $600,000 to pay the costs of the project. The 
abatement bonds are expected to be paid primarily through the collection of abatement revenues. Mikaela Huot from 
Baker Tilly gave a presentation on Tax Abatement Financing on what it is, eligible uses for the city and how the process 
works. Mayor Byrnes opened the public hearing for comment and no comments were given by the public or council 
members. 

 

Page 3Item 1.



City Council Meeting April 11, 2023 Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to close the public hearing. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-
Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Alcorn to approve Resolution 23-030 to use 
Property Tax Abatements to Finance Certain Public Improvements in the City. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember 
Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The 
motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A. 1) Conduct a Public Hearing 2) Consider a Resolution Approving a Five-Year 
Street Reconstruction Plan and the Issuance of General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds 
The city is authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, subdivision 3b, to prepare a plan for street 
reconstruction or bituminous overlay of streets in the city over the next five years, which includes a description of the 
street reconstruction or overlay to be financed, the estimated costs, and any planned reconstruction or overlay of other 
streets in the city over the next five years. The city may issue general obligation bonds to finance the cost of street 
reconstruction activities described in such a plan. The allowed maximum principal amount is $3,700,000 to finance the 
costs of the projects, as described in the Plan. Mikaela Huot from Baker Tilly gave a presentation on Street 
Reconstruction Financing on what it is, eligible uses for the city and how the process works. Mayor Byrnes opened the 
public hearing for comment and no comments were given by the public or council members. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schroeder, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer to close the public hearing. Voting 
Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-
Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Councilmember Lozinski verified that this was just a plan and not a commitment to any projects. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Alcorn to approve Resolution 23-031 Approving 
a 5-Year Street Reconstruction Plan and issuance of bonds. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 
Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion 
Carried. 6-0. 
 
Awards of Bids for Construction of New Picnic Pavilion at Amateur Sports Complex 
The construction of a Picnic Pavilion with Storage is the final structure to finalize the vision for the Amateur Sports 
Complex. The facility will provide much needed shade for the users, storage of maintenance equipment and supplies, 
and an additional shelter for community members to rent for events such as birthday parties. On April 5, 2023, three 
bids from local contractors were received. Doom & Cuyper’s Construction, Inc. of Marshall, MN submitted the low bid of 
$171,642.00 and is recommended for approval. Start date for construction would be mid-summer with a proposed 
completion date of October 1, 2023. The layout and size of this structure will be identical to the new picnic pavilion at 
Patriot Park. $170,000.00 was budgeted in the 2023 Parks Department CIP for this project. Discussion occurred about 
budgets and finding sources that could possibly cover the difference in the bid amount. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Schroeder to award Doom & Cuyper the bid for 
the Picnic Pavilion at the Amateur Sports Complex. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember 
Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Authorization to Purchase Sprayer for Parks Department from Midwest Machinery Co. of Hastings, MN and Declare 
1995 Sprayer Surplus Equipment 
Midwest Machinery Co. is the state contract holder for this piece of equipment and the only dealer that can provide this 
piece of equipment due to licensing through John Deere. The most comparable sprayer is from Toro and about $20,000 
higher. The state contract price for this unit is $65,167.59. $59,500 is the current budget amount as per pricing in the fall 

Page 4Item 1.



City Council Meeting April 11, 2023 Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 

 

of 2022. Due to volatility in the markets and a January pricing increase the cost has since gone up. The auction of the 
1995 sprayer will offset some of these costs, but the exact amount is unknown at this time. Estimated delivery might be 
early winter or spring of 2024 if the sprayer was ordered now. The current sprayer being used by the Parks Department 
would be handed down to the Street Department and will replace a much older model that is being used. The council 
discussed options of splitting payment or possibly delaying delivery into 2024 and have the difference added to the 2024 
budget. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Alcorn to authorize the purchase of a sprayer for 
the Parks Department from Midwest Machinery Co and declare the 1995 sprayer surplus. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 
Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, 
Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Approval of the Consent Agenda 
There were no requests to remove any items from the consent agenda for additional discussion. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Schroeder to approve the items on the consent 
agenda. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, 
Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 

 Consider Request of the Marshall Downtown Business Association for Crazy Days (Thursday-July 20, 2023) 

 Introduce Amendments to Ch.2, Article 2-VI, Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center Commission of City 
Ordinance 

 Introduction of Ordinance Amending Section 86-230 Required Number of Spaces and Call for Public Hearing 

 Consider Approval of the Bills/Project Payments 
 
Real Property Acquisition – Relocation of Aquatic Center  
City of Marshall Staff and Attorney Dennis Simpson has been working with Schwan’s Shared Services, LLC, for the 
acquisition of real property regarding the relocation of the Aquatic Center. Attached for review and consideration is a 
proposed real property Purchase Agreement to be entered into between the City of Marshall as Purchaser and Schwan’s 
Shared Services, LLC, as Seller. Minnesota Law requires that a binding agreement between Buyer and Seller must be in 
writing to be enforced. The property to be purchased is adjacent to an additional private parking lot also owned by 
Schwan’s Shared Services, LLC. The Purchase Agreement does anticipate that the City and Schwan’s would enter into a 
long-term lease agreement wherein the private parking lot could be used for public parking purposes for those visiting 
and using the aquatic center. Schwan’s would retain ownership of the parking lot and would continue to pay property 
taxes.  
 
The closing on the purchase of property is contingent upon the following items: The City does have adequate funds for 
the purchase of property. However, funding source is to be obtained for the funds necessary for the construction of the 
new aquatic center. Funding for that project is proposed as an extension of the existing local sales tax option. Legislative 
approval must be obtained authorizing the City to proceed with the extension of the local sales tax option. That 
legislative approval then would require that the citizens of the City of Marshall approve the extension of the local sales 
tax option. The City Council for the City of Marshall must approve this Purchase Agreement. If any one of those options 
fails, then the City of Marshall is not obligated to purchase the property. The closing date is proposed to be on or before 
December 15, 2023. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Moua-Leske to approve the proposed purchase 
agreement to acquire property for the relocation of the Marshall Aquatic Center. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 
Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, 
Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 

Page 5Item 1.



City Council Meeting April 11, 2023 Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 

 

Wastewater Facility NPDES Permit Update and Authorize Execution of Chloride Variance Application to the MPCA 
The Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) has been operating under an expired NPDES permit since 2019 while 
awaiting reissuance of a new permit from the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA). On April 1, 2022, a New 
Limits Notification letter from the MPCA was received which outlined new discharge requirements. In the new limit 
notification letter, the MPCA notifies the city of numerous parameters that require new effluent limits to ensure 
compliance with water quality standards. According to the letter, the WWTF will be required to meet new limits for total 
chloride, total copper, total phosphorous, total dissolved solids (TDS), sulfate, and chronic whole effluent toxicity (WET). 
Since receiving the new limit notification letter, City staff has partnered with Bolton & Menk and Flaherty & Hood 
(through the Minnesota Environmental Science and Economic Review Board—MESERB) to hold discussions with the 
MPCA regarding our new permit limits. The City and Bolton & Menk staff have met multiple times with the MPCA to 
discuss the new limits and the ability to reasonably comply with the requirements of the limits. 
 
Scott Truedson, Wastewater Superintendent and Scott Przybilla, Asst. Wastewater Superintendent gave a PowerPoint 
presentation to review the specific parameters of concern from the new limits letter. The presentation also updated the 
council on the status of the WWTF efforts and the proposed path moving forward.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to authorize the execution and 
submission of the Chloride Variance Application to the MPCA. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 
Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion 
Carried. 6-0. 
 
Consider Appointments to Various Boards, Commission, Bureaus, and Authorities 

Mayor Byrnes made the following recommendations for appointment: 
 
Dean Knutson to the Public Housing Commission with a term date ending May 31, 2028 
Amanda Kinner-Alahakoon to the Diversity, Equity and inclusion Commission with a term date ending May 31, 2025 
Jim Muchlinski to the Planning Commission with a term date ending May 31, 2026 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Alcorn, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to affirm the Mayors recommendations 
to various boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 
Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. Voting Abstaining: Councilmember 
Schroeder. The motion Carried. 6-0. 
 
Commission/Board Liaison Reports 
Brynes No report. 

 
Schafer Airport Commission: Talked about the rental increase for the hangers and how the rates for the 

hangers hadn’t changed in 20 years.  
 

Meister EDA: Talked about renovations to the former ShopKo building. A daycare appreciation event was 
held at Brau Brothers. Discussion about methods of attracting businesses and activities into the 
area. A community video project is in the works with collaboration from Community Services. 
 

Schroeder Public Housing Commission: Passed resolution for an amended lease unit deposit and ceiling rents.  
 

Alcorn No report. 

Page 6Item 1.



City Council Meeting April 11, 2023 Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 

 

Moua-Leske Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Commission: World Fest will be on Saturday April 15 and DEI will have 
a table. Work is being done on translating materials and having an audio option available. 
Welcoming Week is scheduled for September 19th. LMC will be hosting a Race Equity Workshop at 
the MERIT Center. 
Library Board: An estimate was given for the possibility of bringing back the daycare program. The 
annual report was reviewed, and the Friends of Library Book Sale was a great success and raised 
over $6,000.  
 

Lozinski No report. 
 

Councilmember Individual Items 
Councilmember Schafer brought up concerns that he had about the state of a number of rentals and the conditions they 
are in. 
 
Councilmember Lozinski encouraged the Light Up the Night group to remove their lights from Independence Park and to 
be aware that people are out and about again so please be careful of pedestrians and traffic. 
 
Mayor Byrnes gave a brief update on legislative items that are pending that involve the city.  
 
City Administrator 
Staff have been working on an online process for the Rental Code Ordinance Committee, and remedies to existing 
violations. The DEI Commission is also working on a Youth Advisory Commission that will come to L&O and Attorney 
Whitmore. Community Services Advisory Board met and with such a large number of new members lots of staff were 
present to give updates. The board might also turn into a recommendation body similar to other boards that make 
suggestions that go to council. The Community Services Summer Brochure will be coming out in the first week in May 
and will be mailed to Marshall residents.  
 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
The Lyon/3rd Street reconstruction project will begin the week of April 17th starting with the closure of 3rd Street. R&G 
will try to make sidewalk access available to businesses and there will be weekly meetings with businesses. Mayor 
Byrnes asked about the postal drop boxes that were re-located to the alley and the increased traffic on the church 
property. Anderson said that staff will reach out to the Postmaster to come up with a viable solution for the postal drop 
boxes. 
 
City Attorney 
No report. 
 
Administrative Brief 
There were no questions on the Administrative Brief. 
 
Information Only 
There were no questions on the Information Only items. 
 
Upcoming Meetings 
There were no questions on the Upcoming Meetings. 
 
Adjournment 
At 6:46 PM Motion made by Councilmember Schroeder, Seconded by Councilmember Alcorn to adjourn the meeting. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Schroeder, Councilmember Alcorn, Councilmember 
Moua-Leske, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0. 

Page 7Item 1.



City Council Meeting April 11, 2023 Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 

 
 
_________________________ 

City Clerk Mayor 
  
 
 

Page 8Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
WORK SESSION 
M I N U T E S  

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 
 

The work session of the Common Council of the City of Marshall was held April 11, 2023, at City Hall, 344 West Main 
Street. The meeting was called to order at 6:52 P.M. by Mayor Robert Byrnes. In addition to Byrnes the following 
members were in attendance: Craig Schafer, James Lozinski, Amanda Schroeder, John Alcorn, and See Moua-Leske. 
Absent: Steve Meister. Staff present included: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; E.J. Moberg, Director of 
Administrative Services; Dave Parsons, City Assessor; Carolyn Runholt, Appraiser; and Steven Anderson, City Clerk. 

 
Local Board of Appeals and Equalization Informational Session 

Parsons presented to members information regarding valuation timelines, property sales, and classification adjustments 
for 2023 assessments. Minnesota law requires that the median ratio of sale prices compared to the assessor’s estimated 
market values fall in the range of 90 to 105 percent. A calculation is done for all “qualified, arm’s length transactions” by 
property type and adjustments are done based on the result. Parsons explained how the homestead exclusion is 
calculated and has not been adjusted over several years. A proposal is currently moving its way through the legislature. 
The assessor’s office goes through the city via a annual quintile process. Parsons also reviewed information for the 
upcoming Local Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting to be held on April 17.  

 
Adjourn 
At 7:42 PM Mayor Byrnes adjourned the work session. 
 
           
 
               
               Mayor 
Attest: 
 
     
City Clerk 

 

Page 9Item 1.



Page 10Item 1.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Ilya Gutman 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Conduct Public Hearing of Ordinance Amending Section 86-230 Required Number of 

Spaces 

Background 

Information: 
There are minimal changes to the parking spaces table. One change was the result of 
analyzing a specific request for parking to significantly exceed current requirements. We 
also remove the limit to the maximum number of spaces to let businesses be more in 
control of their parking. 
 
At the December 14, 2022, regular Planning Commission meeting, Deutz made a motion, 
second by Muchlinski to recommend to city council an approval as recommend by staff.  
All voted in favor of the motion. 
 
At the meeting on April 4, 2023, the Legislative and Ordinance Committee voted to 
recommend to council the approval of revisions to City Ordinance Section 86-230 
Required number of spaces. 
 
The Ordinance Amending Sections 86-230 Required number of spaces was introduces at 

the April 11, 2023, City Council meeting 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended 

Recommendations: that the Council close the public hearing on the Ordinance Amending Section 86-230 
Required number of spaces.  
 
that the Council adopt Ordinance 23-007, which is the Ordinance Amending Section 86-

230 Required number of spaces. 

 

Page 11Item 2.



Page 12Item 2.



Page 13Item 2.



Page 14Item 2.



Page 15Item 2.



 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
ORDINANCE 23-007 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

MARSHALL CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES – CHAPTER 86 
RELATING TO ZONING 

 
The Common Council of the City of Marshall does ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1:  City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article VI, Sections 86-230 Required number of spaces are hereby 
amended.   
 
Section 2: It is hereby determined that publication of this Title and Summary Ordinance will clearly inform the 
public of the intent and effect of Ordinance 23-007.   
 
It is hereby directed that only the above Title and Summary of Ordinance 23-007 be published conforming to 
Minnesota Statutes §331A.01 with the following: 
 

NOTICE 
 

Persons interested in reviewing a complete copy of the Ordinance may do so at the office of the City Clerk, City 
Offices, 344 West Main Street, Marshall, Minnesota 56258. 
  

Section 3: These Ordinances shall take effect after their passage and summary publication.  
 
Passed and adopted by the Common Council this 25th day of April 2023. 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL   ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Mayor of the City of Marshall, MN  City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced on:  April 11, 2023        
Final Passage on:  April 25, 2023       
Published in the Marshall Independent:        

 

Page 16Item 2.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Steven Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of the 2023-2024 Township Fire Services Agreement 

Background 
Information: 

Township Fire Service Agreements are reviewed annually.  The formula creates fees for fire 
protection based on operation costs, population, market value, and sections served while still 
implementing a phase in period to bring township fees to the desired level. This can create 
different section rates for each township but will better reflect the services being provided 
based off the above-mentioned factors. 
 
Four townships have returned executed agreements and are being brought forth for final 
approval. 
 
Clifton Township: $21,584.47 
Lake Marshall Township: $25,667.53 
Lynd Township: $10,792.23 
Sodus Township: $22,134.29 

Fiscal Impact: $80,178.52 

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

None Recommended. 

Recommendations: To approve the 2023-2024 Township Fire Services Agreement. 

 
 
 

 

Page 17Item 3.



1 
 

 

FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

May 1, 2023 - April 30, 2024 
 

 

THIS FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day 

of May 2023 by and between the City of Marshall (“City”), a Minnesota municipal corporation, 

and __________________ Township (“Township”), a Minnesota public corporation.  City and 

Township may hereinafter be referred to individually as a “party” or collectively as the “parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The City has established the Marshall Fire Department (“Fire Department”) and is willing to 

provide fire services (“Fire Services”) to Township in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

 

B. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Fire Services provided by the Fire Department include 

the deployment of firefighting personnel and equipment to extinguish a fire or perform any 

preventative measure in an effort to protect equipment, life or property in an area threatened 

by fire.  The term also includes the deployment of firefighting personnel and equipment to 

provide fire suppression, rescue, extrication, and other services related to fire and rescue as 

may occasionally occur.  All such services are of the type provided by the Fire Department 

within the City. 

 

C. Township desires to purchase Fire Services from the City in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 In consideration of the mutual promises and agreements contained herein, and intending to be 

legally bound, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Services.  Township agrees to purchase from City, and City agrees to provide Township, Fire 

Services within Township’s service territory as described or depicted in the attached Exhibit 

A (“Service Territory”). 

 

2. Compensation. Township shall pay City $__________ (which is $_______ per section) 

(“Payment Amount”) on or before May 1, 2023 for the Fire Services provided under this 

Agreement.  The Payment Amount is based on the formula calculation for this time period as 

summarized in the attached Exhibit B.  Successive years under the formula shown in Exhibit 

B are for estimation purposes only and are subject to change.   

 

3. Service Charge.   

 

(a) The parties agree City may charge those receiving Fire Services within Township the 

service fees and charges identified in the attached Exhibit C (collectively, the “Service 

Page 18Item 3.



2 
 

Charge”).  City shall be responsible for directly billing and collecting the Service Charge 

from the recipients of the Fire Services.  Township delegates to City such authority as may 

be needed for City to impose and collect the Service Charge from those receiving Fire 

Services within Township.  If the party receiving Fire Services did not request the services, 

but a fire or other situation existed which the City determined necessitated the provision of 

Fire Services, the party will be charged and billed for the applicable Service Charge.  City 

will bill all recipients of Fire Services in Township regardless of whether such services are 

covered by the party’s insurance.  Any portion of the Service Charge billed that is not 

covered by a party’s insurance remains a debt of the party receiving the Fire Services. 

 

(b) The Service Charge billed by City is due and payable within 30 days of the date of the 

invoice.  If the Service Charge is not paid by that time, it becomes delinquent and City will 

send notice of delinquency and charge a 1.5% administrative penalty on the unpaid balance. 

 

(c) If any portion of the Service Charge remains unpaid 30 days after sending the notice of 

delinquency, City will use all practical and reasonable legal means to collect the Service 

Charge.  The party subject to the Service Charge receiving Fire Services shall be liable for 

all collection costs incurred by the City including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney 

fees and court costs. 

 

(d) The City may certify any unpaid Service Charge to the County Auditor for collection on 

the recipient’s property taxes as provided in law.  The County Auditor is responsible for 

remitting to the City all charges collected from such certified amounts, together with any 

applicable penalties and interest.   

 

4. Allocation of Resources. The parties understand the Fire Department officer in charge of the 

particular emergency scene shall exercise judgment to determine, in consideration of all the 

established policies, guidelines, procedures, and practices, how best to allocate and reallocate 

the Fire Department’s personnel and equipment under the circumstances of a given situation.  

It is further understood City has entered into, and will from time to time enter into, similar 

arrangements with other townships and municipalities within the area and that calls will 

generally be responded to in order in which they are received by the City.  Failure to provide 

Fire Services because resources are already deployed, poor weather conditions, or other 

conditions beyond the control of City shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.   

 

5. No Guarantee. The parties understand and agree City will endeavor to reasonably provide Fire 

Services given the circumstances, but City makes no guarantees that the Fire Services it 

provides in a given situation will meet any particular criteria or standard. The City and it 

officers, employees, and volunteer shall not be liable to Township or any other person for 

failure to furnish assistance under this Agreement or for recalling assistance. 

 

6. Term.  The term of this Agreement is from May 1, 2023 through April 30, 2024, unless 

terminated earlier as provided herein. 

 

7. Ownership.  City owns the buildings and equipment associated with the Fire Department and 

the amounts paid by Township under this Agreement do not give rise to any ownership interest 

Page 19Item 3.



3 
 

in, or responsibility toward, those items of City property. 

 

8. City’s Responsibilities. In addition to any other obligations described herein, City agrees to: 

 

(a) Maintain equipment, personnel and related training and certifications to provide Fire 

Services within the Service Territory; and 

 

(b) Authorize and direct the Fire Department to provide the Fire Services described herein 

within the Service Territory when dispatched to provide such services. 

 

9. Township’s Responsibilities. In addition to any other obligations described herein, Township 

shall: 

 

(a) Pay City the Payment Amount as indicated above for the term of this Agreement by or 

before the date indicated herein; and 

 

(b) It is understood and agreed Township shall have no responsibility whatsoever toward the 

firefighters or other emergency personnel including any employment related issues such as 

training, supervision, performance reviews, discipline, compensation, benefits, insurance 

coverages, compliance with any employment related federal, state, and local laws and rules 

such as OSHA, ERISA, RLSA, FMLA, or any other employment related issues. It is further 

agreed Township has no responsibility, beyond paying the agreed upon Payment Amount, 

for acquiring, operating, maintaining, housing, or replacing equipment as needed to provide 

the Fire Services described herein. 

 

10. Insurance Requirements. City shall maintain general liability insurance related to the Fire 

Services provided under this Agreement.  City shall maintain insurance equal to or greater than 

the maximum liability applicable to municipalities as set forth in Minnesota Statutes, Section 

466.04, subd. 1, as amended. City shall also maintain inland marine, automobile, and property 

insurance coverages.  City shall also maintain workers’ compensation coverage as required by 

law. 

 

11. Indemnification. City agrees to defend and indemnify Township against any claims brought or 

actions filed against Township or any officer, employee, or volunteer of Township for injury 

to, death of, or damage to the property of any third person or persons, arising from City’s 

performance under this Agreement for Fire Services. Under no circumstances, however, shall 

City be required to pay on behalf of itself and Town, any amounts in excess of the limits on 

liability established in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466 applicable to any one party. The limits 

of liability for Township and City may not be added together to determine the maximum 

amount of liability for City. The intent of this subdivision is to impose on City a limited duty 

to defend and indemnify Township for claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement 

subject to the limits of liability under Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466. The purpose of creating 

this duty to defend and indemnify is to simplify the defense of claims by eliminating conflicts 

between the parties and to permit liability claims against both parties from a single occurrence 

to be defended by a single attorney. 

 

Page 20Item 3.



4 
 

12. No Waiver. Nothing herein shall be construed to waive or limit any immunity from, or 

limitation on, liability available to either party, whether set forth in Minnesota Statutes, 

Chapter 466 or otherwise. 

 

13. Modification. This writing, including the recitals and exhibits which are incorporated in and 

made part of this Agreement, contains the entire agreement between the parties and no 

alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of the provisions of this Agreement are valid 

unless reduced to writing, signed by both City and Township, and attached hereto. 

 

14. Subcontracting & Assignment. City shall not subcontract or assign any portion of this 

Agreement to another without prior written permission from Township. Services provided to 

Township pursuant to a mutual aid agreement City has, or may enter into, with another entity 

does not constitute a subcontract or assignment requiring prior approval of Township so long 

as City remains primarily responsible for providing Fire Services within the Service Territory. 

 

15. Termination. If Township fails to pay City the Payment Amount as provide herein, City may 

terminate this Agreement 60 days after providing Township a written notice of termination.  

 

16. Service Contract. This is a service contract. The parties do not intend to undertake or create, 

and nothing herein shall be construed as creating, a joint powers agreement, joint venture, or 

joint enterprise between the parties. 

 

17. Minnesota Law Governs. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the internal laws of the State of Minnesota. All proceedings related to this contract shall 

be venued in Lyon County, Minnesota. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 

their authorized officers the day and year first above written. 

 

 

    City of Marshall 

 

 

                              By                                                            . 

  Mayor of Marshall 

 

 

                              By                                                            . 

  City Administrator 

 

 

 

Attest:_______________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

Page 21Item 3.



5 
 

_________________ Township 

 

 

 

     By_____________________________ 

   Chairperson 

 

  

Attest:__________________________ 

  Clerk  

 

_________________________________ 

Date of Signing 

  

  

Page 22Item 3.



6 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Township Service Territory 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 23Item 3.



7 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Fire Service Fee Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

[attached hereto] 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 24Item 3.



8 
 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Fees and Charges 

 
Fee Description Fee in dollars ($) 
Fire/rescue call  1000.00 
After 5 hours, incident billing will follow the Southwest/West Central fire department association mutual aid 

agreement. 

Hazardous material trailer 750.00 plus cost of supplies and materials used. 
Pumping fuel or gas (if tank compromised or 

immediate danger to life or environment) 

1.00 per gallon in and out (48 hours to pick up) If not 

picked up in 48 hours, owner will be assessed cost of 

removal by the hazardous waste contactor.  

Fire calls caused by negligence billed on the following cost of equipment and  personnel: 
    Equipment  

     Rescue Truck 125.00 per hour 
     1500 GPM Engine 295.00 per hour 
     1000 GPM Engine 200.00 per hour 

     Ladder truck 750.00 for initial first hour, 250.00 per hour thereafter 
     Tanker 160.00 per hour 
     Grass rig 125.00 per hour 
     Hazardous material (Haz-Mat) trailer  125.00 per hour 
     Water auger with engine or tanker 150.00 per hour 
     UTV 85.00 per hour 

     Mileage to organizations outside the Southwest/      

West Central fire department Mutual aid agreement. 
1.75 per mile 

Any tools/equipment damaged/destroyed due to the call for service will be assessed at the actual cost to the owner 

or responsible party of the call for service. 

  

     Supplies  
     AFFF Foam 150.00 per pail or higher based on market price 
     AR-AFFF Foam 200.00 per pail or higher based on market price 
     Floor dry 15.00 per bag 
     55 gallon steel drum with lid (fuel removal) 135.00 per barrel 

     8” x 10 ft. absorbent boom 145.00 per boom 

     4’X8’ Plywood $25.00 per sheet 

     Other  
     Natural gas hits 750.00 per call 
     Automatic fire alarm activation  750.00 (3rd call and after within a 72 hour period OR 3 

business days, until functional) 
     Education trailer (upon request and subject 
     to availability of resources). 

150.00 per day to all departments 
Mileage will be charges to organizations outside the 

Lyon County Mutual Aid area at a fee of 1.75 per mile  
     Fire Chiefs call for service (officer’s pages) 100.00 per hour 

     Personnel 25.00 per firefighter / per hour 

  

1.  The term “negligence” is defined as disregard or failure to reasonably have taken actions 

or care that would have pre-empted the hazardous situation that required emergency fire 

and rescue response. 

 

Page 25Item 3.



Governmental Entity Population

Population 

Percentage Served Total Market Value

Total Market Value 

Percentage Served Sections Served Total Sections

Percentage of 

Section Served

City of Marshall 13,618                           13,618                           1,587,343,474$            1,587,343,474$           n/a n/a 100%

Clifton Township 264                                176                                212,957,560$               141,971,707$              24.00                    36.00                67%

Fairview Township 371                                250                                229,317,849$               154,775,995$              22.84                    33.84                67%

Lake Marshall Township 553                                553                                184,422,108$               184,422,108$              28.54                    28.54                100%

Lynd Township 411                                145                                202,851,594$               71,594,680$                12.00                    34.00                35%

Sodus Township 260                                202                                171,205,972$               133,160,200$              28.00                    36.00                78%

Stanley Township 192                                96                                   198,595,993$               99,297,997$                18.00                    36.00                50%

Townships 2,051                             1,423                             1,199,351,076$            785,222,687$              133                       204                    66%
Total Marshall and Townships 15,669                           15,041                           2,786,694,550$            2,372,566,161$           n/a n/a n/a

Population Obtained from the Minnesota State Demographer's Office (Townships & City April, 2021).

Population Percentage Served Population multiplied by Percentage of Sections Served.

Total Market Value Total of taxable and non-taxable market value.

Total Market Value Percentage Served Total market value multiplied by Percentage of Sections Served.

Sections Served Sections served of the service area

Total Sections Served Total sections of the service area.

Percentage of Sections Served Sections served divided by the total number of sections.

Description Dollars ($) Governmental Entity 2020 2021 2022 AVERAGE 3-YR

Operating Expense 680,918.00$                 City of Marshall 106 129 109 114.7

Depreciation (eq. & bldg.) 192,428.00$                 Clifton Township 5 2 4 3.7

sub-total 873,346.00$                 Fairview Township 6 3 13 7.3

less 2% fire aid 136,119.00$                 

Lake Marshall 

Township 9 9 8 8.7
TOTAL 737,227.00$                 Lynd Township 7 9 7 7.7

Sodus Township 3 3 3 3.0

Stanley Township 3 0 1 1.3

Sub-total Townships 33 26 36 31.7
Total 139 155 145 146.3

Governmental 

Entity S % of total column "S" C U V P

City of Marshall 579,472.90                   78.6% 737,227$                       78.4% 66.9% 90.5%

Clifton Township 23,738.08                     3.2% 737,227$                       2.5% 6.0% 1.2%

Fairview Township 32,437.49                     4.4% 737,227$                       5.0% 6.5% 1.7%
Lake Marshall 

Township 42,691.23                     5.8% 737,227$                       5.9% 7.8% 3.7%

Lynd Township 22,660.46                     3.1% 737,227$                       5.2% 3.0% 1.0%

Sodus Township 22,134.29                     3.0% 737,227$                       2.1% 5.6% 1.3%

Stanley Township 14,092.56                     1.9% 737,227$                       0.9% 4.2% 0.6%
Total 737,227.00                   100.0% N/A 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Townships "S" 157,754.10                   21.4% 737,227$                       21.6% 33.1% 9.5%
Township Section 

Rate (S / total # of 

sections) 1,183$                           

S= Cost of fire protection for one year charged to the recipient of services.  S = ((C) * ((U% + V% + P%)/3))

C = Actual expenses for operation of the fire dept. for the last audited financial year including monies contributed to the fire relief association and depreciation expense but excluding the 2% state aid.

U = Percent of fire department use by recipient of the service averaged over the last 3-years.

V = Percent of market value of taxable and non-taxable structures in the jurisdiction.

P = Percent of population in a recipient's jurisdiction.

TABLE 4.  FEE FORMULA CALCULATION.

EXHIBIT B

City of Marshall, Minnesota

Fire Service Fee Summary
TABLE 1.  PAYMENT DATA & COST ALLOCATION.

TABLE 2.  FIRE DEPARTMENT 

OPERATIONAL COST (based on 2021 Audit). TABLE 3.  FIRE SERVICE CALL SUMMARY (ACCIDENTS & FIRE CALLS).

Page 26Item 3.



TABLE 5.  COMPARISON TO RECENT FEES FOR SERVICE (May 1-April 30)

Governmental Entity 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029

Proposed Formula 

($) 100% 

calculation

Clifton Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        989.09$               989.09$            989.09$              989.09$           989.09$            23,738.08$              

Fairview Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,182.74$         1,182.74$           1,182.74$        1,182.74$         32,437.49$              

Lake Marshall Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,182.74$         1,182.74$           1,182.74$        1,182.74$         42,691.23$              

Lynd Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,182.74$         1,182.74$           1,182.74$        1,182.74$         22,660.46$              

Sodus Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         790.51$                        790.51$               790.51$            790.51$              790.51$           790.51$            22,134.29$              

Stanley Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         782.92$                        782.92$               782.92$            782.92$              782.92$           782.92$            14,092.56$              
Total 157,754.10$            

TABLE 6. SUMMARY OF ANNUAL PER TOWNSHIP PROPOSED PHASE-IN FEES (based on current year formula figures).

Governmental Entity 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029

Clifton Township 10,731.29$    12,340.99$                14,192.14$                   16,320.96$                   18,769.10$                    21,584.47$                   23,738.08$          23,738.08$      23,738.08$         23,738.08$      23,738.08$       

Fairview Township 10,212.61$    11,744.51$                13,506.18$                   15,532.11$                   17,861.93$                    20,541.22$                   23,622.40$          27,165.76$      31,240.62$         32,437.49$      32,437.49$       

Lake Marshall Township 12,761.30$    14,675.49$                16,876.82$                   19,408.34$                   22,319.59$                    25,667.53$                   29,517.66$          33,945.30$      39,037.10$         42,691.23$      42,691.23$       

Lynd Township 5,365.65$      6,170.49$                  7,096.07$                     8,160.48$                     9,384.55$                      10,792.23$                   12,411.07$          14,272.73$      16,413.64$         18,875.68$      21,707.03$       
Sodus Township 12,519.84$    14,397.82$                16,557.49$                   19,041.12$                   21,897.28$                    22,134.29$                   22,134.29$          22,134.29$      22,134.29$         22,134.29$      22,134.29$       

Stanley Township 8,048.47$      9,255.74$                  10,644.10$                   12,240.72$                   14,076.83$                    14,092.56$                   14,092.56$          14,092.56$      14,092.56$         14,092.56$      14,092.56$       
Total 59,639.17$    68,585.04$                78,872.80$                   90,703.72$                   104,309.27$                 114,812.28$                125,516.04$       135,348.71$    146,656.28$       153,969.32$   156,800.67$     

2015-Current Max Increase Per Year from for Table 6. (ex:115% = 15% increase) 115.0%

TABLE 7. SUMMARY OF PER TOWNSHIP PROPOSED PHASE-IN SECTION RATE (based on current year formula) (May 1-April 30).

Governmental Entity 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029

Clifton Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        989.09$               989.09$            989.09$              989.09$           989.09$            

Fairview Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,189.39$         1,367.80$           1,420.21$        1,420.21$         

Lake Marshall Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,189.39$         1,367.80$           1,495.84$        1,495.84$         

Lynd Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         899.35$                        1,034.26$            1,189.39$         1,367.80$           1,572.97$        1,808.92$         

Sodus Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         790.51$                        790.51$               790.51$            790.51$              790.51$           790.51$            
Stanley Township 447.14$          514.21$                     591.34$                         680.04$                         782.05$                         782.92$                        782.92$               782.92$            782.92$              782.92$           782.92$            

Page 27Item 3.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Steven Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval for a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Knights of Columbus 
Fundraiser 

Background 
Information: 

The Knights of Columbus will hosting their 3rd Annual Steak/Burger cookout in the Holy Redeemer 
Food Stand at the Lyon County Fairgrounds on May 19th. 

Fiscal Impact:   

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

None recommended. 

Recommendations: To approve the temporary on-sale liquor license for the Knights of Columbus. 

 
 
 

 

Page 28Item 4.



Page 29Item 4.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Steven Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of Amendments to Ordinance Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center 
Commission 

Background 
Information: 

The ordinance was last amended May 10, 2022, under Ordinance 22-003 to rename the Senior 
Citizens Center Commission to the Adult Community Center Commission. The change only 
updated the name of the title and none of the body was updated. The amendments being 
proposed are to further clarify and cleanup the ordinance to adhere to how the commission and 
the Marshall Area Senior Citizens Inc. currently operate. 
 
Changes were made and reviewed by City Attorney Whitmore. On April 4, 2023 the Legislative 
and Ordinance Committee all voted in favor of recommending the amendments be brought forth 
for council approval. 
 
The ordinance changes will not take effect until approved and a summary ordinance is published 
in the official newspaper. 

Fiscal Impact:  N/A 

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: To approve ordinance amendments to Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center Commission. 

 
 
 

 

Page 30Item 5.



Page 1

CITY OF MARSHALL
ORDINANCE 23-008

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Common Council of the City of
Marshall, in the State of Minnesota, as follows:

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT “Section 2-341 Established” of the Marshall
Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

Section 2-341 Established

The senior citizens Adult Community cCenter cCommission is hereby established.

(Code 1976, § 2.29)

SECTION 2: AMENDMENT “Section 2-342 Composition; Terms;
Qualifications” of the Marshall Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

Section 2-342 Composition; Terms; Qualifications

The senior citizens Adult Community cCenter cCommission shall be composed of seven
members. The term of any member shall be three years. Members of the commission shall be
appointed with due regard to their fitness for the efficient dispatch of the functions, powers and
duties vested in and imposed upon the commission.

(a) The Mayor with cCouncil approval shall appoint allfour (4) members at large from the
citizens of the city, and one member from the City Council to such commission.

(b) The remaining Ttwo (2) members of the Commission shall be appointed to the
Commission fromby the Marshall Area Senior Citizens, Inc. (MASC) from their board
of directors., one member shall be appointed from the city council, and four members
shall be appointed from the citizens of the city. If MASC does not choose to appoint a
member to the board the remaining members may choose to leave the position vacant
or may attempt to fill the position with an at-large member until such time that MASC
may choose to appoint a member.

(Code 1976, § 2.29(1), (2), (4); Ord. No. 496 2nd series, § 1, 7-7-2003)

Page 31Item 5.



Page 2

SECTION 3: AMENDMENT “Section 2-343 Function” of the Marshall
Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

Section 2-343 Function

The function of the senior citizensAdult Community cCenter cCommission shall be to manage,
operate and maintain the city's senior citizens adult community center.

(Code 1976, § 2.29(5))

SECTION 4: AMENDMENT “Section 2-344 Powers And Duties” of the
Marshall Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

Section 2-344 Powers And Duties

The powers and duties of the senior citizens Adult Community cCenter cCommission shall be
as follows:

(a) Adopt bylaws and rules for the conduct of its members, and the officers of its board,
including election of officers, assumption of duties and definition of responsibilities of
its boards' officers.

(b) The board shall, at its first meeting in each calendar year, elect from among its
members a chairperson, a vice-chairperson, a secretary and such other officers as it
may determine. The board shall hold at least one regular meeting annually and shall
keep minutes of its meetings, a copy of which minutes shall be furnished to the council
as soon as reasonably possible after the date of the meeting.

(c) At least once a year, Ddevelop and present to the cCity cCouncil their report with
recommendation on the city's senior citizensadult community center budget.

(d) Appoint members of their commission to serve on other commissions of the city.
(e) Adopt all necessary rules and regulations for their own guidance and for the proper

management and operation of such senior citizensadult community center.
(f) Make on or before December 31, of each year, an annual report to the council

regarding the operation of the senior citizensadult community center, and how the
funds of the city were spent during such year.

(g) The senior citizens center commission shall have the authority to eEnter into contracts
related to the management and operation of the adult communty center after submitting
only after theyproposed contract have been approved byto the cCity cCouncil and
receiving approval of the contract by the Council.

Page 32Item 5.



Page 3

(h) The commission shall have the authority to employ such persons as are necessary to
carry out their function, within their budgetary limitationsParticipate in any hiring
panel related to adult community center employees and have authority to make
recommendations to the City's Human Resource Manager related to employees or
potential employees of the adult community center.

(Code 1976, § 2.29(6))

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF MARSHALL COMMON COUNCIL
_______________________________.

Presiding O fficer  Attest

Robert Byrnes, Mayor, City of
Marshall

Steven Anderson, City Clerk, City of
Marshall

Page 33Item 5.



SUMMARY ORDINANCE NO. 23-008 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2-VI, DIVISION 2-VI-11  

ADULT COMMUNITY CENTER COMMISSION 
SECTIONS 2-341 THROUGH 2-344 

 
The Common Council of the City of Marshall does ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1: City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2 Administration, Article 2-VI Boards, Commissions and Authorities, 
Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center Commission, is hereby amended in Section 2-341, 2-342, 2-343, and 
2-344. 
 
Summary of Changes: Renaming of the Senior Citizens Center Commission and clarifying language to match 
how the Adult Community Center Commission currently operates. 
 
Section 2: It is hereby determined that publication of this Title and Summary Ordinance will clearly inform the 
public of the intent and effect of Ordinance No. 23-008. 
 
It is hereby directed that only the above Title and Summary of Ordinance No. 23-008 be published conforming 
to Minnesota Statutes §331A.01 with the following: 
 

NOTICE 
Persons interested in reviewing a complete copy of the Ordinance may do so at the office of the City Clerk, City 
Offices, 344 West Main Street, Marshall, Minnesota 56258. 
 
Section 3: This Ordinance shall take effect after its passage and summary publication. 
 
Passed and adopted by the Common Council this 25th day of April 2023. 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL      ATTEST: 
Robert Byrnes       Steven Anderson 
Mayor of the City of Marshall, MN     City Clerk 
 
  

Page 34Item 5.



 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Jason Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Amendment to Sec. 74-122 regarding Snow Emergency Declaration 

Background 

Information: 

Please see attached proposed amendments Sec. 74-122, Item 2, relating to snow 
emergency declaration.  At the L&O Committee meeting on 04/04/2023, all 
voted in favor on the recommendation the amendment be brought to the City 
Council.  

Fiscal Impact: None. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendations: that the City Council introduce the attached ordinance amending Sec. 74-122 of 
the City Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

Page 35Item 6.



ORDINANCE NO. 23-____ 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING 
MARSHALL CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES – CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE 74-V 

SECTION 74-122 RELATING TO WEATHER EMERGENCY, SNOW EMERGENCY,  
STREET REPAIR AND STREET CLEANING 

 
 

The Common Council of the City of Marshall does ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1:  City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74-Traffic and Vehicles, Article 74-V Stopping, 
Standing and Parking, is hereby amended in Section 74-122, Item 2 as follows:   
 
 

 
Section 74-122 Weather Emergency, Snow Emergency, Street Repair And Street Cleaning 
 

1. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 
 
Designated official shall be the director of public works, street superintendent, or director of 
public safety.  
 
Emergency means a condition created on city streets because of the presence of snow, freezing 
rain, sleet, ice or snow drifts thereon, or other natural phenomenon which create or are likely to 
create hazardous road conditions or impede or are likely to impede the free movement of fire, 
health, police, emergency or other vehicular traffic when such emergency has been duly declared 
by a designated official.  
 

2. Snow removal. After or during the fall of snow on any day between November 1 and April 1, a 
designated official is authorized to declare in writing a snow removal emergency which shall be 
announced by radio broadcast as soon as possible on the local radio stations. Thereafter, at 12:00 
midnight 12:01 p.m. following such broadcast, all vehicles shall be removed from all city streets 
or streets in the city so designated in such declaration. Such snow removal emergency shall end at 
the expiration of a 48-hour period unless the emergency shall be renewed and be announced by a 
designated official.  
` 
 

3. Unlawful acts.  
1. It is unlawful for any person to park a vehicle or permit a vehicle to remain parked in 

violation of subsection (b).  
2. It is unlawful for any person to park a vehicle or permit a vehicle to remain parked on any 

street at such times as any other emergency may exist or during such times as street 
cleaning or street repair operations are taking place, provided that a designated official 
shall have caused appropriate signs to be placed on such streets at least 12 hours prior to 
the time of such cleaning or repairing operations.  

3. The act of parking or permitting a vehicle to remain parked on any street contrary to the 
prohibitions of this section constitutes the violation notwithstanding the progress of street 
maintenance operations. 

 

 

Page 36Item 6.

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Section_74-122_Weather_Emergency,_Snow_Emergency,_Street_Repair_And_Street_Cleaning


 
Section 2: This Ordinance shall take effect after its passage and summary publication.  
 
Passed and adopted by the Common Council this ____ day of _______________, 2023. 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL   ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Mayor of the City of Marshall, MN  City Clerk 
 
 
Ordinance Introduced on:  April 25, 2023        
Final Passage on:  May 9, 2023         
Ordinance Published in the Marshall Independent:         
 
 

Page 37Item 6.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Ilya Gutman 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Introduction of Ordinance Amending Section 86-248 Outside storage and Call for Public 

Hearing 

Background 

Information: 

This section was amended several years ago to allow a single shipping container in a general 

business district as an interim use permit. This change was a result of a specific request since 

prior to that shipping containers were not permitted in business districts. However, after some 

conversations – internal and external – staff concluded that a limitation of just one shipping 

container may be relaxed because the ordinance requires a fencing around to mask them from 

public right of way anyway, and, on the other hand, also allows open storage behind fences.  

 

The proposed change will limit the total area of containers rather than the number of them, with 

suggested number being an equivalent of three 40’ x 8’ containers; a limitation of the area as a 

percentage of the building area on site will allow avoiding multiple containers placed next to 

smaller buildings, which would look disproportionate. This will also encourage owners to build 

an addition if a larger storage area is desired. Additionally, the change will allow storage units 

other than standard shipping containers, again, due to the reason they will be fenced off 

anyway and will not be visible.  

 

These changes have been presented at the Legislative & Ordinance Committee April 4, 2023, 

and recommended for approval. 

 
At the April 12, 2023, regular Planning Commission meeting, Muchlinski made a motion, 

second by Deutz to recommend to city council an approval as recommend by staff.  All voted 

in favor of the motion. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended 

Recommendations: Staff recommends that the Council introduce the Ordinance Amending Sections 86-248 

Outside storage and Call for Public Hearing to be held on May 9, 2023. 

 

Page 38Item 7.



Page 39Item 7.



Page 40Item 7.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Jim Marshall 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider authorization to declare vehicles as surplus property for the Marshall Police 

Department. 

Background 

Information: 

These vehicles have been abandoned or seized by the Marshall Police Department and have 

gone through the notification processes and required periods for disposal. 

Fiscal Impact: These vehicles will be auctioned on-line at the state site, sold, or will be taken to Alters for 

disposal. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: That these vehicles be declared as surplus property by the City of Marshall. 

 

Page 41Item 8.



 

Page 42Item 8.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Steven Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval for a Raffle LG220 Exempt Permit for Holy Redeemer 

Background 
Information: 

Holy Redeemer will be holding a raffle on July 29, 2023, at their Campus Religious Center. 
 
Gambling permits are issued by the State of MN but require local approval before submittal.  

Fiscal Impact:   

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

None recommended. 

Recommendations: To approve the LG220 Exempt Permit. 

 
 
 

 

Page 43Item 9.



Page 44Item 9.



Page 45Item 9.



Page 46Item 9.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Karla Drown 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the bills/project payments 

Background 

Information: 

Staff encourages the City Council Members to contact staff in advance of the meeting regarding 

these items if there are questions. Construction contract questions are encouraged to be 

directed to Director of Public Works, Jason Anderson at 537-6051 or Finance Director, Karla 

Drown at 537-6764 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: The following bills and project payments be authorized for payment. 

 

Page 47Item 10.



4/20/2023 3:51:14 PM Page 1 of 3

Council Check Report
Marshall, MN By Vendor Name

Date Range: 04/14/2023 - 04/25/2023

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP-REG AP

4549 A & B BUSINESS, INC 04/14/2023 127222,421.15EFT 0.00

7169 ACCOUNTS MANAGEMENT, INC 04/14/2023 1226991,610.21Regular 0.00

6128 ACTION COMPANY LLC 04/14/2023 12723875.00EFT 0.00

0567 ALEX AIR APPARATUS, INC 04/14/2023 127244,109.70EFT 0.00

0578 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 04/14/2023 12725666.27EFT 0.00

0606 ANIMAL HEALTH CENTER 04/14/2023 12270085.99Regular 0.00

0629 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY 04/14/2023 12726334.16EFT 0.00

6883 AT&T MOBILITY II LLC 04/14/2023 12270138.23Regular 0.00

0688 BELLBOY CORPORATION 04/14/2023 127279,479.11EFT 0.00

0699 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS, INC. 04/14/2023 12270234,068.64Regular 0.00

0726 BORCH'S SPORTING GOODS, INC. 04/14/2023 1272850.00EFT 0.00

4457 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MINNESOTA WINE & SPIRITS, LLC04/14/2023 1227042,380.00Regular 0.00

3568 BRUNSVOLD, QUENTIN 04/14/2023 1272914.56EFT 0.00

6857 BRUSVEN, KATHERINE 04/14/2023 12730221.19EFT 0.00

6791 CAPITAL ONE 04/14/2023 122705153.39Regular 0.00

0815 CATTOOR OIL COMPANY, INC 04/14/2023 127311,276.50EFT 0.00

0836 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 04/14/2023 1273211.99EFT 0.00

5733 CLARITY TELECOM, LLC 04/14/2023 12733347.72EFT 0.00

7246 COLEMAN MANAGEMENT LLC 04/14/2023 12270610,000.00Regular 0.00

0920 CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF MARSHALL 04/14/2023 12270721.00Regular 0.00

0934 D & G EXCAVATING INC 04/14/2023 127341,727.36EFT 0.00

7102 DAHLHEIMER BEVERAGE 04/14/2023 12735627.70EFT 0.00

7243 DERUYTER, JENNIFER 04/14/2023 1273618.15EFT 0.00

5731 DOLL DISTRIBUTING LLC 04/14/2023 1273710,691.25EFT 0.00

1029 EAGLE ENGRAVING 04/14/2023 12738311.20EFT 0.00

1061 EMERGENCY APPARATUS MAINTENANCE INC 04/14/2023 127391,011.00EFT 0.00

1090 FASTENAL COMPANY 04/14/2023 1274058.82EFT 0.00

7073 FIXEN CHIROPRACTIC 04/14/2023 12741100.00EFT 0.00

1122 FLAHERTY & HOOD, P.A. 04/14/2023 127429,500.00EFT 0.00

1158 GALLS INC 04/14/2023 12743343.86EFT 0.00

1201 GRAINGER INC 04/14/2023 12744168.90EFT 0.00

6127 GRANDVIEW VALLEY WINERY, INC 04/14/2023 1227081,884.00Regular 0.00

1215 GREENWOOD NURSERY 04/14/2023 1274518,722.00EFT 0.00

1256 HAWKINS INC 04/14/2023 127461,845.75EFT 0.00

1325 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST #300877 04/14/2023 1274750.00EFT 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 04/14/2023 DFT000281620.54Bank Draft 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 04/14/2023 DFT0002817286.00Bank Draft 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 04/14/2023 DFT00028184.78Bank Draft 0.00

1399 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 04/14/2023 1274812,661.14EFT 0.00

2036 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 04/14/2023 127495,996.25EFT 0.00

5447 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 04/14/2023 12750445.25EFT 0.00

5675 KNOCHENMUS ENTERPRISES, LLP 04/14/2023 12270910,000.00Regular 0.00

4140 KRUSE FORD-LINCOLN-MERCURY, INC 04/14/2023 127511,523.65EFT 0.00

3653 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 04/14/2023 12752411.46EFT 0.00

7220 LARSEN, DEANNA 04/14/2023 12753180.00EFT 0.00

1483 LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES INS TRUST 04/14/2023 122710420.49Regular 0.00

5363 LEXIPOL, LLC 04/14/2023 127543,604.79EFT 0.00

7146 LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA 04/14/2023 12755721.32EFT 0.00

1508 LOCKWOOD MOTORS INC 04/14/2023 12756492.48EFT 0.00

1545 LYON COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 04/14/2023 1275717,446.12EFT 0.00

1552 LYON COUNTY RECORDER 04/14/2023 12758148.15EFT 0.00

1555 LYON LINCOLN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 04/14/2023 12271137.55Regular 0.00

1565 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT INC. 04/14/2023 127593,314.42EFT 0.00

6292 MADDEN, GALANTER, HANSEN, LLP 04/14/2023 127601,073.69EFT 0.00

Page 48Item 10.



Council Check Report Date Range: 04/14/2023 - 04/25/2023

4/20/2023 3:51:14 PM Page 2 of 3

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

5813 MARSHALL LUMBER CO 04/14/2023 12761145.93EFT 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 04/14/2023 127627,519.67EFT 0.00

1635 MARSHALL NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS INC 04/14/2023 1276355.25EFT 0.00

7153 MAVERICK WINE LLC 04/14/2023 122712739.02Regular 0.00

6025 MELLENTHIN, CODY 04/14/2023 12764169.99EFT 0.00

4980 MENARDS INC 04/14/2023 12765120.88EFT 0.00

1818 MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 04/14/2023 DFT0002819182.41Bank Draft 0.00

1797 MINNESOTA FIRE SERVICE CERTIFICATION BOARD 04/14/2023 122713630.00Regular 0.00

0969 MN DEPT OF LABOR & INDUSTRY 04/14/2023 1227142,502.36Regular 0.00

1877 MOTION INDUSTRIES INC 04/14/2023 127661,408.85EFT 0.00

1903 NARTEC, INC 04/14/2023 12767189.05EFT 0.00

2512 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 04/14/2023 DFT0002814375.00Bank Draft 0.00

2512 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 04/14/2023 DFT00028151,516.87Bank Draft 0.00

1945 NORM'S GTC 04/14/2023 122715300.85Regular 0.00

1986 NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL, INC 04/14/2023 12768170.16EFT 0.00

1946 NORTH CENTRAL LABS 04/14/2023 12769130.34EFT 0.00

2019 PAUSTIS WINE COMPANY 04/14/2023 12770143.50EFT 0.00

7241 PLAN IT SOFTWARE LLC 04/14/2023 12771800.00EFT 0.00

2049 PLUNKETTS PEST CONTROL INC 04/14/2023 12772363.95EFT 0.00

2064 POWERPLAN 04/14/2023 12271622.48Regular 0.00

6166 PULVER MOTOR SVC, LLC 04/14/2023 1277380.00EFT 0.00

0707 ROADSIDE DEVELOPERS INC 04/14/2023 122717665.90Regular 0.00

2186 ROGGE EXCAVATING 04/14/2023 127741,500.00EFT 0.00

6684 ROLLING FORKS VINEYARDS, LLC 04/14/2023 12775336.00EFT 0.00

5867 ROUND LAKE VINEYARDS & WINERY 04/14/2023 12776800.00EFT 0.00

2201 RUNNING SUPPLY, INC 04/14/2023 12777454.81EFT 0.00

7247 SCHROEDER, AMANDA 04/14/2023 12778136.24EFT 0.00

7245 SHORE, ANTHONY 04/14/2023 122718500.00Regular 0.00

3495 SMSU 04/14/2023 127793,000.00EFT 0.00

4855 SOUTHERN GLAZER'S 04/14/2023 127809,068.63EFT 0.00

2311 SOUTHWEST GLASS CENTER, INC 04/14/2023 12781195.00EFT 0.00

5922 SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 04/14/2023 127825,345.04EFT 0.00

2373 STREICHERS 04/14/2023 12783792.84EFT 0.00

6137 TEIGS LAWN CARE & LANDSCAPING, LLC 04/14/2023 122719810.00Regular 0.00

0875 THE COMPUTER MAN INC 04/14/2023 1278411,377.00EFT 0.00

6709 THERMO KING OF SIOUX FALLS INC 04/14/2023 12785255.01EFT 0.00

2428 TITAN MACHINERY 04/14/2023 12786455.87EFT 0.00

0853 ULTIMATE SAFETY CONCEPTS, INC. 04/14/2023 12787126.40EFT 0.00

2477 UNIQUE PAVING MATERIALS CORPORATION 04/14/2023 127882,209.68EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 04/14/2023 1278935.01EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 04/14/2023 1279039.02EFT 0.00

2538 VIKING COCA COLA BOTTLING CO. 04/14/2023 12791282.45EFT 0.00

5288 WEST CENTRAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC 04/14/2023 12792898.46EFT 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

20

0

0

6

71

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

97 0.00

Payment

66,870.11

0.00

0.00

2,385.60

161,607.09

230,862.80

Payable
Count

47

0

0

6

129

182

Page 49Item 10.



Council Check Report Date Range: 04/14/2023 - 04/25/2023

Page 3 of 34/20/2023 3:51:14 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

20

0

0

6

71

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

97 0.00

66,870.11

0.00

0.00

2,385.60

161,607.09

230,862.80

47

0

0

6

129

182

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

999 POOLED CASH FUND 230,862.804/2023

230,862.80

Page 50Item 10.



CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA
PRIOR AND CURRENT  YEARS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

4/25/2023

ORIGINAL CURRENT
PROJECT #: Coding DATE CONTRACTOR: CONTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT 2020 Prior 2021 Prior 2022 Prior PYMTS THIS RETAINAGE BALANCE: PERCENT

AMOUNT: ORDERS AMOUNT Payments Payments Payments MEETING: COMPLETE

CH1 494-43300-55120 11/12/2019 City Hall Renovation Brennan Companies 5,030,200.00     749,360.00        5,779,560.00     3,039,722.04     2,661,221.96     66,794.00          11,822.00         -                     100.00%
ST-004 480-43300-55170 2/22/2022 Halbur Road Reconstruction Duininck, Inc 1,142,009.72     27,473.66          1,169,483.38     1,111,479.74     11,227.07         46,776.57          96.00%
ST-006 (Z79) 495-43300-55130 5/10/2022 School Pedestrian Crossing Improvements Duininck, Inc 480,250.35        15,028.32          495,278.67        495,278.57        -                    0.10                    100.00%
ST-002 495-43300-55170 3/14/2023 Bituminous Overlay on Various City Streets Duininck, Inc 793,285.10        793,285.10        793,285.10        0.00%
ST-008 401-43300-55170 3/14/2023 Channel Parkway Pavement Replacement Duininck, Inc 1,374,151.96     1,374,151.96     1,374,151.96     0.00%
ST-009 481-43300-55170 3/14/2023 W. Lyon Street/N. 3rd Street Reconstruction R & G Construction Co. 3,845,497.31     3,845,497.31     3,845,497.31     0.00%
SWM-002 630-49600-55170 3/14/2023 Legion Field Road Stormwater Study: Phase 2 Towne & Country Excavating LLC 703,749.60        703,749.60        703,749.60        0.00%
PK-092 481-45200-55120 4/11/2023 Amateur Sports Center Shelter & Storage-Ball Field Doom & Cuyper's Construction, Inc. 171,642.00        171,642.00        171,642.00        0.00%

13,540,786.04 791,861.98 14,332,648.02 3,039,722.04 2,661,221.96 0.00 23,049.07 6,935,102.64

Page 51Item 10.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Ilya Gutman 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Request for Conditional Use Permit by Western MN Municipal Power Agency, located at 1200 
North 7th Street 

Background 

Information: 

This area has been recently annexed into the city and is currently zoned A – Agricultural District.  Solar 

panels are a Conditional Use Permit in an A – Agricultural District.  Staff believe all standards for 

hearing are met.  Typical conditions are attached.   

 
The conditional use permit regulations are found in Section 86-46 
https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_A
RTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-46ISPU and the Standards for Hearing are found in Section 86-49.  
https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_A
RTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-49STHE.  An aerial photo and master plan are attached. 
 
At the April 12, 2023, Planning Commission meeting, after a public hearing, a motion was made by 

Doom, seconded by Deutz, to recommend approval to City Council as recommended by city staff.  All 

voted in favor. 

Fiscal Impact: None known. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended 

Recommendat

ions: 

that the Council approve the request by the Western MN Municipal Power Agency for a Conditional 
Use Permit to have solar panels in an A – Agricultural District at 1200 North 7th Street with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. That the regulations, standards, and requirements as set forth in the City Code and as pertains to 
the class of district in which such premises are located shall be conformed with. 

2. That the City reserves the right to revoke the Conditional Use Permit in the event that any 
person has breached the conditions contained in this permit provided that the City serve the 
person with written notice specifying items of any default and allow the applicant a reasonable 
time in which to repair such default. 

3. That the property is maintained to conform to the Zoning Code and not cause or create negative 
impacts to adjacent existing or future properties. 

 

Page 52Item 11.

https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_ARTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-46ISPU
https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_ARTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-46ISPU
https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_ARTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-49STHE
https://library.municode.com/mn/marshall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH86ZO_ARTIIADEN_DIV2COUSPE_S86-49STHE


Page 53Item 11.



Page 54Item 11.



Page 55Item 11.



Page 56Item 11.



Page 57Item 11.



Page 58Item 11.



Page 59Item 11.



Page 60Item 11.



Page 61Item 11.



Page 62Item 11.



Page 63Item 11.



Page 64Item 11.



Page 65Item 11.



Page 66Item 11.



Page 67Item 11.



Page 68Item 11.



Page 69Item 11.



Page 70Item 11.



Page 71Item 11.



Page 72Item 11.



Page 73Item 11.



Page 74Item 11.



Page 75Item 11.



Page 76Item 11.



Page 77Item 11.



Page 78Item 11.



Page 79Item 11.



Page 80Item 11.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Dave Schelkoph 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: WAPA contract No. 23-UGPR-28, Designated Entity Contract, allowing MRES to become MMU’s 
administrator of the new WAPA Renewable Energy Credits (REC). 

Background 
Information: 

On March 21st, 2023, the Marshall Utilities Commission approved a motion to recommend the 
approval of the WAPA contract No. 23-UGPR-28, Designated Entity Contract, allowing MRES to 
become MMU’s administrator of the new WAPA Renewable Energy Credits (REC)  
 
What is a REC?  From the website of the Environmental Protection Agency, “a renewable 
energy certificate, or REC (pronounced: rěk, like wreck), is a market-based instrument that 
represents the property rights to the environmental, social, and other non-power attributes of 
renewable electricity generation. RECs are issued when one megawatt-hour (MWh) of 
electricity is generated and delivered to the electricity grid from a renewable energy resource”. 
 
Starting in 2023, Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) has created and credited 
Renewable Energy Credits (REC) associated with the hydroelectric power they produce and 
deliver to all their power contract holders.  MMU is a preferred customer of WAPA and is one of 
those contract holders.  As the WAPA RECs are now recognized by the utility industry, they are 
now subject to the same regulations concerning all forms of REC contracted throughout the 
U.S.  As MRES is already performing this REC administrative work for all REC purchased by our 
customers through the Bright Energy Choices program, MRES is offering their services to 
administer the MMU allotted WAPA REC.  This service will be offered at no cost to MMU.  By 
approving this contract, MMU will not have to become a member of Midwest Renewable 
Energy Tracking System (M-RETS) and the subsequent administration cost associated with said 
REC required by M-RETS.  By signing this document MMU does not give up ownership or control 
of the WAPA REC.    
 
Both MRES and Dennis Simpson (on behalf of MMU) have reviewed this document for legal 
sufficiency and have given MMU the Green light to proceed.   

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Approve contract allowing MRES to become MMU’s administrator of the new WAPA RECs. 

 

Page 81Item 12.



 
 
  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
VIA EMAIL TRANSMITTAL 

 
TO: Dave Schelkoph, General Manager Marshall Municipal Utilities 
CC: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator 
FROM:  Dennis H. Simpson, Real Estate Consultant  
DATE:  March 17, 2023 
RE:  WAPA Renewable Energy Credits (REC) Designated Entity Contract   
FILE NO. M015.085 
 
This memo is sent to you as a follow-up to our phone conference on Thursday, March 16, 2023. On 
that date, you and I did discuss matters related to the new proposed WAPA Renewable Energy 
Credits (REC) Agreement. At your request,  I had reviewed the draft agreement as proposed by 
WAPA. The proposed agreement would allow for MRES to serve as Marshall’s agent for the 
administration for the WAPA REC contract.  
 
I have reviewed the draft agreement and you and I discussed that matter in detail. My questions 
regarding that contract, revolved around the potential costs to be incurred pursuant to Section 7 of 
the agreement. After our discussion, I do have a better handle on the financial implications and 
would recommend that the contract be brought forward for approval.  
 
As you and I discussed, Marshall Charter Provision §13.04(subd.1) indicates that the Marshall City 
Council must approve contracts for periods of time exceeding 10 years. The proposed WAPA REC 
Contract dovetails with the Firm Electric Service (FES) contract dated November 28, 2012. That FES) 
contract has previously been approved by Marshall City Council, as that contract runs through 
December 31, 2050. The proposed REC agreement is also to extend to December 31, 2050. 
Therefore, I have advised that this agreement between WAPA, MRES and the City of Marshall must 
be approved by the Marshall City Council. You have concurred with that recommendation and have 
indicated to me that you would work with City Administrator, Sharon Hanson at the appropriate 
time to bring this matter before Council for approval. You have indicated that approval by WAPA and 
MRES will take sometime and it may be a couple of months before this is brought to City Council for 
action. Please let me know if you have any additional questions or concerns.  
 
DHS:jlh 
 
 

 
Quarnstrom & Doering, P.A 

109 South Fourth Street 
Marshall, MN 56258 

Ph. (507) 537-1441 
Fax: (507) 537-1445 

Email: dsimpson@qdlawfirm.com 

 

Page 82Item 12.



Department of Energy 
Western Area Power Administration 

Upper Great Plains Customer Service Region 
P.O. Box 35800 

Billings, MT 59107-5800 
PM-0002 

B6212.HU 

David Schelkoph 
General Manager 
City of Marshall 
113 South Fourth Street 
Marshall, MN  56258 

Mr. Terry Wolf 
Vice President of Power Supply and Operations 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power Agency  

d.b.a. Missouri River Energy Services
P.O. Box 88920 
Sioux Falls, SD  57109-8920 

Dear Mr. Schelkoph and Mr. Wolf: 

Attached, for your consideration, is a DocuSign envelope of proposed Designated Entity 
Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 (Contract) between the City of Marshall, Minnesota (Marshall), 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power Agency d.b.a. Missouri River Energy Services (MRES), and 
Western Area Power Administration (WAPA).  The Contract provides the terms and conditions 
MRES shall follow in providing Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Management Services to 
Marshall, consistent with the WAPA Upper Great Plains Region (UGPR) REC Program 
Principles and the applicable General Power Contract Provisions (GPCP) dated September 1, 
2007.  Also attached, for reference, are the WAPA UGPR REC Program Principles. 

The Parties agree that the Contract may be signed and executed digitally in accordance with 
WAPA’s policy.  A digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be 
considered valid and acceptable. 

Mar 14, 2023

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 83Item 12.



The Contract is in final form for your signature.  If the Contract is satisfactory, please take the 
following actions to ensure proper execution and administration: 
 

• Have the appropriate official fill in the appropriate blocks and digitally sign the Contract 
using DocuSign.   

• Have the official’s signature attested by filling in the appropriate blocks and digitally sign 
using DocuSign. 

• For Marshall:  Attach a copy of the city council meeting minutes or resolution approving 
the Contract. 

• For MRES:  Complete the Certificate using DocuSign. 
• Apply the seal, if there is one, to the signature page. 
• Any changes or alterations made to the Contract shall render them null and void. 
• Please DocuSign the Contract within 60 days of the date above or the Contract shall be 

null and void. 
 
Once both Marshall and MRES have signed, WAPA will review the Contract upon return and, if 
satisfactory, execute and date the Contract with a digital signature.  One executed Contract will 
then be returned to each Party for their use. 
 
If you have any questions concerning the Contract, please contact Brianna Gray at  
(406) 255-2936, bgray@wapa.gov, or Marsha Thomas at (605) 354-8417, mthomas@wapa.gov. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Lori L. Frisk 
Vice President of Power Marketing  
  for Upper Great Plains Region  
 

Attachments:   
 Designated Entity Contract and GPCP 
 WAPA UGPR REC Program Principles 
  
(Letter sent electronically) 
  

Lori L. Frisk
Digitally signed by Lori L. 
Frisk 
Date: 2023.03.14 
16:44:18 -05'00'

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 84Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 
 

Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Program--Eastern Division 
 

CONTRACT FOR MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY D.B.A. 
MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES TO ADMINISTER 

RENEWABLE ENERGY CERTIFICATES 
FOR THE CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA  

(Designated Entity) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 85Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

 

 
UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 

 
Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Program--Eastern Division 

 
CONTRACT FOR MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY D.B.A. 

MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES TO ADMINISTER 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CERTIFICATES 

FOR THE CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA  
(Designated Entity) 

    
Section     Title                                   Page 
 
1.  Preamble .................................................................................................................... 1 
2.  Explanatory Recitals ................................................................................................... 2 
 3.  Definitions .................................................................................................................. 2 
 4.  Agreement .................................................................................................................. 3 
 5.  Term ........................................................................................................................... 4 
 6.  Existing Firm Electric Service Contract ...................................................................... 4 
 7.  Designated Entity Arrangements ................................................................................ 5 
 8.  Billing and Payment Provisions .................................................................................. 6 
 9.  General Power Contract Provisions ........................................................................... 7 
10.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries ...................................................................................... 7 
11.  Use of Digital Signatures ........................................................................................... 7 
12.  Execution in Counterparts ......................................................................................... 7 
      Signatures ................................................................................................................. 9 
   
  Certificate 
  General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 86Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

1 of 9 

 
UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 

 
Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Program--Eastern Division 

 
CONTRACT FOR MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY D.B.A. 

MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES TO ADMINISTER 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CERTIFICATES 

FOR THE CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA  
(Designated Entity) 

1.  PREAMBLE:  This Contract is made on __________________ , pursuant to the 

Acts of Congress approved June 17, 1902 (32 Stat. 388), December 22, 1944 

(58 Stat. 887), August 4, 1977 (91 Stat. 565), and Acts amendatory or supplementary to 

the foregoing Acts between the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through 

the Administrator, Western Area Power Administration, Department of Energy, 

hereinafter called WAPA, represented by the officer executing this Contract, a duly 

appointed successor, or a duly authorized representative, hereinafter called the 

Contracting Officer, the CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA, a municipal corporation 

duly organized under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Minnesota, hereinafter 

called Marshall or Contractor, their successor and assigns, and MISSOURI BASIN 

MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY, a body corporate and politic duly organized under and 

by virtue of the laws of the State of Iowa, doing business as Missouri River Energy 

Services, hereinafter called MRES or Contractor, their successors or assigns, each 

sometimes hereinafter called the Party or all sometimes hereinafter collectively called 

the Parties. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 87Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

2 of 9 

2.  EXPLANATORY RECITALS:   

2.1  WAPA’s Upper Great Plains Region (WAPA-UGPR) implemented a new 

Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Program.  

2.2  This REC Designated Entity Contract (Contract) was developed in accordance with 

the WAPA-UGPR REC Program Principles, effective September 27, 2022, as amended.  

2.3  Marshall entered into Firm Electric Service Contract No. 12-UGPR-1000 

(FES Contract), dated August 1, 2012, with WAPA.   

2.4  RECs are considered an attribute of the energy received under the FES Contract.  

Marshall is eligible to receive RECs in accordance with the WAPA-UGPR REC Program 

Principles.  

2.5  Marshall selected MRES to provide REC Management Services for Marshall. 

2.6  This Contract provides the terms and conditions MRES shall follow in providing 

REC Management Services to Marshall, consistent with the WAPA-UGPR REC 

Program Principles and the applicable General Power Contract Provisions dated 

September 1, 2007.  

  

3.  DEFINITIONS:  

3.1  Designated Entity:  The entity designated by Marshall to provide REC Management 

Services for Marshall. 

3.2  Export:  The electronic movement of RECs from a Midwest Renewable Energy 

Tracking System (M-RETS) account to an account in another tracking system 

compatible with M-RETS. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 88Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

3 of 9 

3.3  Midwest Renewable Energy Tracking System (M-RETS):  An online tracking 

system which issues, stores, retires, transfers, and exports RECs. 

3.4  Renewable Energy Certificate (REC):  A digital certificate which represents the 

generation of renewable electricity.  One megawatt hour of renewable energy is equal to 

one REC.   

3.5  REC Management Services:  The acceptance of the transfer of RECs on behalf of 

Marshall from WAPA and the retirement of such RECs on behalf of Marshall. 

3.6  Retirement:  The removal of a REC from circulation for voluntary or compliance 

purposes.  A REC cannot be transferred or sold once retired.  

3.7  Transfer:  The electronic movement of RECs from an M-RETS account to another 

M-RETS account. 

3.8  WAPA-UGPR Marketing Area:  Montana (east of the Continental Divide), all of 

North Dakota and South Dakota, Nebraska east of the 101° meridian, Iowa west of the 

94½° meridian, and Minnesota west of a line on the 94½° meridian from the southern 

boundary of the state to the 46° parallel and then northwesterly to the northern 

boundary of the state at the 96½° meridian. 

 

4.  AGREEMENT:  The Parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 89Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

4 of 9 

5.  TERM:   

5.1  This Contract shall become effective on its date of execution, and subject to prior 

termination as otherwise provided for herein, shall remain in effect until expiration or 

termination of the FES Contract.  

5.2  Any Party may terminate this Contract, with termination effective at the end of any 

calendar year, upon at least 90 days’ prior written notice to the other Parties.  Following 

a material breach of this Contract by MRES and/or Marshall, any Party shall have the 

right to terminate this Contract, in addition to all other rights and remedies under law for 

damages, before the annual transfer of RECs.  Such termination shall be effective 

immediately upon receipt of written notification to the other Parties.  

5.3  WAPA may suspend or terminate the REC Program upon 90 days’ advance written 

notice to UGPR customers.  If this occurs, this Contract will suspend or terminate upon 

the suspension or termination date of the REC Program. 

 

6.  EXISTING FIRM ELECTRIC SERVICE CONTRACT:   

6.1  WAPA and Marshall entered into the FES Contract which provides for firm electric 

service to Marshall through December 31, 2050.   

6.2  The Parties agree that by entering into this Contract, the rights, duties, and 

obligations contained in the FES Contract between WAPA and Marshall are unchanged. 

6.3  RECs are subject to the same terms and conditions contained in Marshall’s 

FES Contract. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 90Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

5 of 9 

7.  DESIGNATED ENTITY ARRANGEMENTS:  In accordance with WAPA-UGPR’s 

REC Program: 

7.1  Marshall selected MRES to be their Designated Entity, and MRES agrees to 

manage Marshall’s RECs on Marshall’s behalf.  

7.2  WAPA shall transfer or export Marshall’s RECs to MRES from M-RETS on an 

annual basis for MRES to manage the RECs on Marshall’s behalf.   

7.3  MRES shall provide REC Management Services to Marshall.  

7.4  All transfer, export, retirement, and M-RETS and other tracking system account 

fees are the sole responsibility of MRES and/or Marshall.  As of the execution date of 

this Contract, there are no fees for transfers between M-RETS accounts.  This is subject 

to change should M-RETS begin charging for transfers. 

7.5  WAPA will not retire RECs on behalf of Marshall or MRES. 

7.6  Upon WAPA’s receipt of any required payment, WAPA will transfer or export RECs 

to MRES.  

7.7  RECs issued to Marshall cannot be resold.  This includes RECs transferred or 

exported to MRES on behalf of Marshall.   

7.8  MRES may charge a fee to recover the costs of REC Management Services 

provided, as agreed to by Marshall and MRES.   

7.9  If MRES transfers or exports RECs to another entity, MRES must ensure the 

transferred and/or exported RECs are not sold.  MRES may charge a fee to recover the 

costs of transferring and/or exporting RECs to Marshall’s members and/or end use 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 91Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

6 of 9 

customers.  Marshall’s members or end use customers must be located within the 

WAPA-UGPR Marketing Area. 

7.10  WAPA is not liable for damages related to MRES’ management of Marshall’s 

RECs.  MRES and Marshall shall hold harmless and indemnify WAPA for any and all 

claims, liability, and damages related to the management of RECs. 

7.11  In no event shall a Party be liable to any other Party for incidental, consequential, 

or indirect damages arising out of or resulting from the performance under, or brought in 

connection with, this Contract whether arising in contract, tort, or otherwise.   

7.12  All WAPA transfers and exports of RECs are final and cannot be reversed. 

 

8.  BILLING AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS:  

8.1  WAPA shall bill MRES and MRES shall make electronic payment annually, in 

advance, as instructed on the Bill for Collection, for any tracking system costs assessed 

to WAPA associated with the transfer or export of RECs to MRES on Marshall’s behalf, 

as applicable.  As stated above in Subsection 7.4, as of the execution date of this 

Contract, there are no fees for transfers between M-RETS accounts. 

8.2  Actual cost accounting shall be utilized in this Contract.  WAPA shall keep detailed 

records of actual costs incurred by WAPA to transfer or export RECs.  If costs are 

projected to exceed the amount of advanced funds, WAPA will inform MRES of the 

additional cost and provide a written revised estimate, together with a Bill for Collection, 

for the difference.  MRES shall then pay WAPA the additional amount by the due date 

specified on the Bill for Collection.  If, upon completion of the transfer or export, costs 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 92Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

7 of 9 

incurred by WAPA are less than the sum of the payments made to WAPA by MRES, 

WAPA shall refund the difference to MRES, without interest, as soon as the necessary 

vouchers can be processed.  

8.3  WAPA will not transfer or export RECs until advance annual payment is received.   

 

9.  GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS:  The GPCP, effective September 1, 

2007, attached hereto, are made part of this Contract the same as if they had been 

expressly set forth herein except that Provisions 2 through 30, 33, and 36 shall not 

apply.  

 

10.  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  There are no intended third-party 

beneficiaries of this Contract.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create any 

duty to, any standard of care with reference to, or any liability to, any person or entity 

not a Party to this Contract. 

 

11.  USE OF DIGITAL SIGNATURES:  The Parties agree that this Contract may be 

signed and executed by digital signature in accordance with WAPA’s policy.  A digital 

signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid and 

acceptable. 

 

12.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Contract may be executed in any number 

of counterparts and, upon execution and delivery by each Party, the executed and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 93Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

8 of 9 

delivered counterparts together shall have the same force and effect as an original 

instrument as if all Parties had signed the same instrument.  Any signature page of this 

Contract may be detached by any counterpart of this Contract without impairing the 

legal effect of any signatures thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of 

this Contract identical in form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature 

pages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 94Item 12.



Contract No. 23-UGPR-28 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 
Missouri Basin Municipal Power 

Agency d.b.a. Missouri River 
Energy Services 

 

9 of 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Contract to be executed the day 

and year first above written. 

 
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 

By     

  Title  Vice President of Power Marketing   

     for Upper Great Plains Region   

  Address  P.O. Box 35800   

   Billings, MT  59107-5800   
 
 
(SEAL) CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 
By    

Attest:  Title     

By    Address   113 South Fourth Street  

Title      Marshall, MN  56258  
 
 
(SEAL) MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY   

D.B.A. MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 
 
  By          

Attest:  Title                 

By   Address         P.O. Box 88920     

Title              Sioux Falls, SD 57109-8920   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 95Item 12.



 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

I,      , certify that I am the       

of Missouri Basin Municipal Power Agency d.b.a. Missouri River Energy Services, the 

corporation named as Contractor or MRES herein; that              , 

who signed the above Contract on behalf of MRES, was then its     

        ; that such Contract was duly signed for and 

on behalf of MRES by authority of its governing body and is within the scope of its 

governmental powers.   

   Signature 

             

 

(SEAL) 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 96Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
     

  

 WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 
 GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS   Page  
  I.    APPLICABILITY. 
   1. Applicability ............................................................................................................................................. 1 
 
  II. DELIVERY OF SERVICE PROVISIONS. 

2. Character of Service...................................................................................................................................... 1 
3. Use of Capacity or Energy in Excess of Contract Obligation ....................................................................... 1 
4. Continuity of Service .................................................................................................................................... 1 
5. Multiple Points of Delivery........................................................................................................................... 2 

   6. Metering........................................................................................................................................................ 2 
7. Existence of Transmission Service Contract................................................................................................. 3 

   8. Conditions of Transmission Service ............................................................................................................. 3 
   9. Multiple Points of Delivery Involving Direct and Indirect Deliveries.......................................................... 3 

10. Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of Contractor’s Power System............................................... 3-4 
 
III.RATES, BILLING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS. 
   11. Change of Rates ............................................................................................................................................ 4 
   12. Minimum Seasonal or Annual Capacity Charge........................................................................................... 4 
   13. Billing and Payment................................................................................................................................... 4-5 
   14. Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due ....................................................................................................... 5 
   15. Adjustments for Fractional Billing Period .................................................................................................... 5 
   16. Adjustments for Curtailments to Firm Service .......................................................................................... 5-6 
 
 IV. POWER SALES PROVISIONS. 

   17. Resale of Firm Electric Service (Wholesale Sales for Resale)...................................................................... 6 
   18. Distribution Principles .................................................................................................................................. 6 
   19. Contract Subject to Colorado River Compact............................................................................................... 6 
 
 V. FACILITIES PROVISIONS. 

   20. Design Approval ........................................................................................................................................ 6-7 
   21. Inspection and Acceptance............................................................................................................................ 7 
   22. As-Built Drawings ........................................................................................................................................ 7 
   23. Equipment Ownership Markers .................................................................................................................... 7 
   24. Third-Party Use of Facilities......................................................................................................................... 7 
   25. Changes to Western Control Facilities....................................................................................................... 7-8 
   26. Modification of Western Facilities................................................................................................................ 8 
   27. Transmission Rights...................................................................................................................................... 8 
   28. Construction and Safety Procedures .......................................................................................................... 8-9 
   29. Environmental Compliance........................................................................................................................... 9 
   30. Responsibility for Regulated Materials......................................................................................................... 9 
 
 VI. OTHER PROVISIONS. 

   31. Authorized Representatives of the Parties .................................................................................................... 9 
   32. Effect of Section Headings ......................................................................................................................... 10 
   33. Operating Guidelines and Procedures......................................................................................................... 10 
   34. Uncontrollable Forces ................................................................................................................................. 10 
   35. Liability....................................................................................................................................................... 10 
   36. Cooperation of Contracting Parties........................................................................................................ 10-11 
        37. Transfer of Interest in the Contract or Change in Preference Status ........................................................... 11 
   38. Choice of Law and Forum .......................................................................................................................... 12 
   39. Waivers ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 
   40. Notices ........................................................................................................................................................ 12 
   41. Contingent Upon Appropriations and Authorization .................................................................................. 12 
   42. Covenant Against Contingent Fees............................................................................................................. 12 
 *  43. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards ............................................................................................... 13 
   44. Equal Opportunity Employment Practices.................................................................................................. 13 
   45. Use of Convict Labor.................................................................................................................................. 13 
*Legal Citation Revised September 1, 2007

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 97Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 1 

  
 
 WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 
 GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
 
 
 I.  APPLICABILITY. 
 
   1. Applicability. 
 
    1.1 These General Power Contract Provisions (Provisions) shall be a part of the contract to 
which they are attached.  In the event these Provisions differ from requirements of the contract, specific terms 
set forth in the contract shall prevail. 
 
     1.2 If the Contractor has member utilities which are either directly or indirectly receiving 
benefits  from the contract, then the Contractor shall require such members to comply with Provisions 10, 17, 
18, 19, 29, 30, 36, 43, 44, and 45 of these General Power Contract Provisions. 
 
 
 II.  DELIVERY OF SERVICE PROVISIONS. 

 

   2. Character of Service. 
 
     Electric energy supplied or transmitted under the contract will be three-phase, alternating current, 
at a nominal frequency of sixty (60) hertz (cycles per second). 
 
   3. Use of Capacity or Energy in Excess of Contract Obligation. 
 
     The Contractor is not entitled to use Federal power, energy, or capacity in amounts greater than 
the Western contract delivery obligation in effect for each type of service provided for in the contract except 
with the approval of Western.  Unauthorized overruns of contract delivery obligations shall be subject to 
charges specified in the contract or the applicable rate schedules.  Overruns shall not establish any continuing 
right thereto and the Contractor shall cease any overruns when requested by Western, or in the case of 
authorized overruns, when the approval expires, whichever occurs first.  Nothing in the contract shall obligate 
Western to increase any delivery obligation.  If additional power, energy, or capacity is not available from 
Western, the responsibility for securing additional power, energy, or capacity shall rest wholly with the 
Contractor. 
 
   4. Continuity of Service. 
 
    Electric service will be supplied or transmitted continuously except for:  (1) fluctuations, 
interruptions, or reductions due to uncontrollable forces, as defined in Provision 34 (Uncontrollable Forces) 
herein, (2) fluctuations, interruptions, or reductions due to operation of devices installed for power system 
protection; and (3) temporary fluctuations, interruptions, or reductions, which, in the opinion of the party 
supplying the service, are necessary or desirable for the purposes of maintenance, repairs, replacements, 
installation of equipment, or investigation and inspection.  The party supplying service, except in case of 
emergency, will give the party to whom service is being provided reasonable advance notice of such 
temporary interruptions or reductions and will remove the cause thereof with diligence. 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 98Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 2 

 
   5. Multiple Points of Delivery. 
 
    When electric service is supplied at or transmitted to two or more points of delivery under the same 
rate schedule, said rate schedule shall apply separately to the service supplied at or transmitted to each point of 
delivery; Provided, That where the meter readings are considered separately, and during abnormal conditions, the 
Contractor’s system is interconnected between points of delivery such that duplication of metered power is 
possible, the meter readings at each affected point of delivery will be adjusted to compensate for duplication of 
power demand recorded by meters at alternate points of delivery due to abnormal conditions which are beyond the 
Contractor’s control or temporary conditions caused by scheduled outages. 
 
   6. Metering. 
 
     6.1 The total electric power and energy supplied or transmitted under the contract will be 
measured by metering equipment to be furnished and maintained by Western, a designated representative of 
Western, or where situations deem it appropriate as determined by Western, by the Contractor or its agent(s).  In 
the event metering equipment is furnished and maintained by the Contractor or its agent(s) and the equipment is 
used for billing and other accounting purposes by Western, the Contractor shall ensure that the metering equipment 
complies with applicable metering policies established by Western. 
 
     6.2 Meters shall be secured by appropriate security measures and meters shall not be accessed 
except when the meters are to be inspected, tested, adjusted, or repaired.  Representatives of affected parties shall 
be afforded reasonable opportunity to be present upon such occasions.  Metering equipment shall be inspected and 
tested each year by the party responsible for meter maintenance, unless a different test interval is determined in 
accordance with good utility practices by an applicable regional metering policy, or as agreed upon by the parties.  
Meters shall also be tested at any reasonable time upon request by a party hereto, or by an affected supplemental 
power supplier, transmission agent, or control area operator.  Any metering equipment found to be damaged, 
defective, or inaccurate shall be repaired and readjusted or replaced by the party responsible for meter maintenance 
as soon as practicable.  Meters found with security breaches shall be tested for tampering and, if appropriate, meter 
readings shall be adjusted by Western pursuant to Provision 6.3 below. 
 
    6.3 Except as otherwise provided in Provision 6.4 hereof, should any meter that is used by 
Western for billing or other accounting purposes fail to register accurately, the electric power and energy supplied 
or transmitted during the period of failure to register accurately, shall, for billing purposes, be estimated by 
Western from the best available information. 
 
    6.4 If inspections and tests of a meter used by Western for billing or other accounting purposes 
disclose an error exceeding 2 percent, or a lesser range in error as agreed upon by the parties, then a correction 
based upon the inaccuracy found shall be made to the service records for the period of inaccuracy as determined by 
Western.  If the period of inaccuracy cannot be determined, the inaccuracy shall be assumed to have existed during 
the entire monthly billing period immediately preceding the billing period in which the inspection or test was made 
and the resulting correction shall be made accordingly. 
 
    6.5 Any correction in billing or other accounting information that results from a correction in 
meter records shall be made in a subsequent monthly bill rendered by Western to the Contractor.  Payment of such 
bill shall constitute full adjustment of any claim between the parties arising out of inaccurate metering equipment. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 99Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 3 

   7. Existence of Transmission Service Contract. 
 
    If the contract provides for Western to furnish services using the facilities of a third party, the 
obligation  of Western shall be subject to and contingent upon the existence of a transmission service contract 
granting Western rights to use such facilities.  If Western acquires or constructs facilities which would enable it to 
furnish direct service to the Contractor, Western, at its option, may furnish service over its own facilities. 
 
   8. Conditions of Transmission Service. 
 

8.1 When the electric service under the contract is furnished by Western over the facilities of 
others by virtue of a transmission service arrangement, the power and energy will be furnished at the voltage 
available and under the conditions which exist from time to time on the transmission system over which the 
service is supplied. 
 

8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the contract or applicable rate schedule, the Contractor shall 
maintain a power factor at each point of delivery from Western’s transmission agent as required by the 
transmission agent. 
 

8.3 Western will endeavor to inform the Contractor from time to time of any changes planned or 
proposed on the system over which the service is supplied, but the costs of any changes made necessary in the 
Contractor’s system, because of changes or conditions on the system over which the service is supplied, shall not 
be a charge against or a liability of Western. 
 

8.4 If the Contractor, because of changes or conditions on the system over which service under 
the contract is supplied, is required to make changes on its system at its own expense in order to continue receiving 
service under the contract, then the Contractor may terminate service under the contract upon not less than sixty 
(60) days written notice given to Western prior to making such changes, but not thereafter. 

 
8.5 If Western notifies the Contractor that electric service provided for under the contract cannot 

be delivered to the Contractor because of an insufficiency of capacity available to Western in the facilities of 
others over which service under the contract is supplied, then the Contractor may terminate service under the 
contract upon not less than sixty (60) days written notice given to Western prior to the date on which said capacity 
ceases to be available to Western, but not thereafter. 
 

9. Multiple Points of Delivery Involving Direct and Indirect Deliveries. 
 

When Western has provided line and substation capacity under the contract for the purpose of 
delivering electric service directly to the Contractor at specified direct points of delivery and also has agreed to 
absorb transmission service allowance or discounts for deliveries of energy over other system(s) to indirect points 
of delivery and the Contractor shifts any of its load served under the contract from direct delivery to indirect 
delivery, Western will not absorb the transmission service costs on such shifted load until the unused capacity, as 
determined solely by Western, available at the direct delivery points affected is fully utilized. 
 

10. Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of Contractor’s Power System. 
 

The Contractor shall, and, if applicable, shall require each of its members or transmission agents to 
construct, operate, and maintain its power system in a manner which, as determined by Western, will not interfere 
with the operation of the system of Western or its transmission agents over which electric services are furnished to 
the Contractor under the contract, and in a manner which will coordinate with the protective relaying and other 
protective arrangements of the system(s) of Western or Western’s transmission agents.  Western may reduce or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 100Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 4 

discontinue furnishing services to the Contractor if, after notice by Western, the Contractor fails or refuses to make 
such changes as may be necessary to eliminate an unsatisfactory condition on the Contractor’s power system 
which is determined by Western to interfere significantly under current or probable conditions with any service 
supplied from the power system of Western or from the power system of a transmission agent of Western.  Such a 
reduction or discontinuance of service will not relieve the Contractor of liability for any minimum charges 
provided for in the contract during the time said services are reduced or discontinued.  Nothing in this Provision 
shall be construed to render Western liable in any manner for any claims, demands, costs, losses, causes of action, 
damages, or liability of any kind or nature arising out of or resulting from the construction, operation, or 
maintenance of the Contractor’s power system. 

 
 
III.  RATES, BILLING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS. 
 

11. Change of Rates. 
 

Rates applicable under the contract shall be subject to change by Western in accordance with 
appropriate rate adjustment procedures.  If at any time the United States promulgates a rate changing a rate then in 
effect under the contract, it will promptly notify the Contractor thereof.  Rates shall become effective as to the 
contract as of the effective date of such rate.  The Contractor, by written notice to Western within ninety (90) days 
after the effective date of a rate change, may elect to terminate the service billed by Western under the new rate.  
Said termination shall be effective on the last day of the billing period requested by the Contractor not later than 
two (2) years after the effective date of the new rate.  Service provided by Western shall be paid for at the new rate 
regardless of whether the Contractor exercises the option to terminate service. 
 

12. Minimum Seasonal or Annual Capacity Charge. 
 

When the rate in effect under the contract provides for a minimum seasonal or annual capacity 
charge, a statement of the minimum capacity charge due, if any, shall be included in the bill rendered for service 
for the last billing period of the service season or contract year as appropriate, adjusted for increases or decreases 
in the contract rate of delivery and for the number of billing periods during the year or season in which service is 
not provided.  Where multiple points of delivery are involved and the contract rate of delivery is stated to be a 
maximum aggregate rate of delivery for all points, in determining the minimum seasonal or annual capacity charge 
due, if any, the monthly capacity charges at the individual points of delivery shall be added together. 
 

13. Billing and Payment. 
 

13.1 Western will normally issue bills to the Contractor for services furnished during the 
preceding month within ten (10) days after the end of the billing period. 
 

13.2 If Western is unable to issue timely monthly bill(s), Western may elect to render estimated 
bill(s).  Such estimated bill(s) shall be subject to the same payment provisions as final bill(s), and any applicable 
adjustments will be shown on a subsequent monthly bill. 
 

13.3 Payments of bills issued by Western are due and payable by the Contractor before the close 
of business on the twentieth (20th) calendar day after the date of issuance of each bill or the next business day 
thereafter if said day is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal holiday.  Bills shall be considered paid when payment is 
received by Western. Bills will be paid electronically or via the Automated Clearing House method of payment 
unless a written request to make payments by mail is submitted by the Contractor and approved by Western.  
Should Western agree to accept payments by mail, these payments will be accepted as timely and without 
assessment of the charge provided for in Provision 14 (Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due) if a United States 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 101Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 5 

Post Office first class mail postmark indicates the payment was mailed at least three (3) calendar days before the 
due date. 
 

13.4 The parties agree that net billing procedures will be used for payments due Western by the 
Contractor and for payments due the Contractor by Western for the sale or exchange of electric power and energy, 
use of transmission facilities, operation and maintenance of electric facilities, and other services.  Payments due 
one party in any month shall be offset against payments due the other party in such month, and the resulting net 
balance shall be paid to the party in whose favor such balance exists.  The parties shall exchange such reports and 
information that either party requires for billing purposes.  Net billing shall not be used for any amounts due which 
are in dispute. 
 

14. Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due. 
 

14.1 Bills not paid in full by the Contractor by the due date specified in Provision 13 (Billing and 
Payment) hereof shall bear a charge of five hundredths percent (0.05%) of the principal sum unpaid for each day 
payment is delinquent, to be added until the amount due is paid in full.  Western will also assess a fee of twenty-
five dollars ($25.00) for processing a late payment.  Payments received will first be applied to the charges for late 
payment assessed on the principal and then to payment of the principal. 
 

14.2 Western shall have the right, upon not less than fifteen (15) days advance written notice, to 
discontinue furnishing the services specified in the contract for nonpayment of bills in full when due, and to refuse 
to resume such services so long as any part of the amount due remains unpaid.  Such a discontinuance of service 
will not relieve the Contractor of liability for minimum charges during the time service is so discontinued.  The 
rights reserved to Western herein shall be in addition to all other remedies available to Western either by law or in 
equity, for the breach of any of the terms hereof. 
 

15. Adjustments for Fractional Billing Period.   
 

The demand or capacity charge and minimum charges shall each be proportionately adjusted when 
fractional billing periods are applicable under this contract.  A fractional billing period can occur:  1) at the 
beginning or end of electric service; 2) at the beginning or end of irrigation pumping service each year; 3) for a 
fractional billing period under a new rate schedule; or 4) for fractional periods due to withdrawals of electric 
services.  The adjustment will be made based on the ratio of the number of hours that electric service is available 
to the Contractor in such fractional billing period, to the total number of hours in the billing period involved.  
Energy billing shall not be affected by fractional billing periods. 
 

16. Adjustments for Curtailments to Firm Service. 
 

16.1 Billing adjustments will be made if firm electric service is interrupted or reduced because of 
conditions on the power system of the United States for periods of one (1) hour or longer in duration each.  Billing 
adjustments will not be made when such curtailment of electric service is due to a request by the Contractor or a 
discontinuance of electric service by Western pursuant to Provision 14 (Nonpayment of Bills In Full When Due).   
For purposes of billing adjustments under this Provision, the term power system of the United States shall include 
transmission facilities used under contract but not owned by the United States. 
 

16.2 The total number of hours of curtailed firm electric service in any billing period shall be 
determined by adding:  (1) the sum of the number of hours of interrupted electric service to (2) the product, of each 
reduction, of:  the number of hours reduced electric service and the percentage by which electric service was 
reduced below the delivery obligation of Western at the time of each said reduction of electric service.  The 
demand or capacity charge and applicable minimum charges shall each be proportionately adjusted in the ratio that 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 102Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 6 

the total number of hours of electric service determined to have been curtailed bears to the total number of hours in 
the billing period involved. 
 

16.3 The Contractor shall make written claim within thirty (30) days after receiving the monthly 
bill, for adjustment on account of any curtailment of firm electric service, for periods of one (1) hour or longer in 
duration each, alleged to have occurred that is not reflected in said bill.  Failure to make such written claim, within 
said thirty-day (30-day) period, shall constitute a waiver of said claim.  All curtailments of electric service, which 
are due to conditions on the power system of the United States, shall be subject to the terms of this Provision; 
Provided, That withdrawal of power and energy under the contract shall not be considered a curtailment of electric 
service. 
 
 
IV.  POWER SALES PROVISIONS. 
 

17. Resale of Firm Electric Service (Wholesale Sales for Resale). 
 

The Contractor shall not sell any firm electric power or energy supplied under the contract to any 
electric utility customer of the Contractor for resale by that utility customer; Provided, That the Contractor may 
sell the electric power and energy supplied under the contract to its members on condition that said members not 
sell any of said power and energy to any customer of the member for resale by that customer. 
 

18. Distribution Principles. 
 

The Contractor agrees that the benefits of firm electric power or energy supplied under the contract 
shall be made available to its consumers at rates that are established at the lowest possible level consistent with 
sound business principles, and that these rates will be established in an open and public manner.  The Contractor 
further agrees that it will identify the costs of firm electric power or energy supplied under the contract and power 
from other sources to its consumers upon request.  The Contractor will demonstrate compliance with the 
requirements of this Provision to Western upon request. 
 

19. Contract Subject to Colorado River Compact. 
 

Where the energy sold under the contract is generated from waters of the Colorado River system, the 
contract is made upon the express condition and with the express covenant that all rights under the contract shall 
be subject to and controlled by the Colorado River Compact approved by Section 13 (a) of the Boulder Canyon 
Project Act of December 21, 1928, 43 U.S.C. §§ 617a-e, and the parties to the contract shall observe and be 
subject to and controlled by said Colorado River Compact in the construction, management, and operation of the 
dams, reservoirs, and powerplants from which electrical energy is to be furnished by Western to the Contractor 
under the contract, and in the storage, diversion, delivery, and use of water for the generation of electrical energy 
to be delivered by Western to the Contractor under the contract. 
 
 
V.  FACILITIES PROVISIONS. 
 

20. Design Approval. 
 

All facilities, construction, and installation by the Contractor pursuant to the contract shall be subject 
to the approval of Western.  Facilities interconnections shall normally conform to Western’s current “General 
Requirements for Interconnection,” in effect upon the signing of the contract document providing for each 
interconnection, copies of which are available from Western.  At least ninety (90) days, unless otherwise agreed, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 103Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 7 

prior to the date the Contractor proposes to commence construction or to incur an obligation to purchase facilities 
to be installed pursuant to the contract, whichever date is the earlier, the Contractor shall submit, for the approval 
of Western, detailed designs, drawings, and specifications of the facilities the Contractor proposes to purchase, 
construct, and install.  The Contractor assumes all risks for construction commenced or obligations to purchase 
facilities incurred prior to receipt of approval from Western.  Western review and approval of designs and 
construction work in no way implies that Western is certifying that the designs meet the Contractor’s needs. 

 
21. Inspection and Acceptance. 

 
Western shall have the right to inspect the materials and work furnished by the Contractor, its agents, 

employees, and subcontractors pursuant to the contract.  Such inspections shall be at reasonable times at the work 
site.  Any materials or work that Western determines is defective or not in accordance with designs, drawings, and 
specifications, as approved by Western, shall be replaced or modified, as directed by Western, at the sole expense 
of the Contractor before the new facilities are energized. 
 

22. As-Built Drawings. 
 

Within a reasonable time, as determined by Western, after the completion of construction and 
installation of facilities pursuant to the contract, the Contractor shall submit to Western marked as-built prints of 
all Western drawings affected by changes made pursuant to the contract and reproducible drawings the Contractor 
has prepared showing facilities of Western.  The Contractor’s drawings of Western facilities shall use drawing title 
blocks, drawing numbers, and shall be prepared in accordance with drafting standards all as approved by Western.  
Western may prepare, revise, or complete said drawings and bill the Contractor if the Contractor fails to provide 
such drawings to Western within a reasonable time as determined by Western. 
 

23. Equipment Ownership Markers. 
 

23.1 The Contractor shall identify all movable equipment and, to the extent agreed upon by the 
parties, all other salvageable facilities constructed or installed on the United States right-of-way or in Western 
substations pursuant to the contract which are owned by the Contractor, by permanently affixing thereto suitable 
markers clearly identifying the Contractor as the owner of said equipment and facilities. 
 

23.2 If requested by the Contractor, Western shall identify all movable equipment and, to the 
extent agreed upon by the parties, all other salvageable facilities constructed or installed on the Contractor’s 
right-of-way or in the Contractor’s substations pursuant to the contract which are owned by the United States, by 
permanently affixing thereto suitable markers clearly identifying the United States as the owner of said equipment 
and facilities. 
 

24. Third-Party Use of Facilities. 
 

The Contractor shall notify Western of any proposed system change relating to the facilities governed 
by the contract or allowing third-party use of the facilities governed by the contract.  If Western notifies the 
Contractor that said system change will, as solely determined by Western, adversely affect the operation of 
Western’s system the Contractor shall, at no cost to Western, provide a solution to said adverse effect acceptable to 
Western. 
 

25. Changes to Western Control Facilities. 
 

If at any time during the term of the contract, Western determines that changes or additions to control, 
relay, or communications facilities are necessary to maintain the reliability or control of Western’s transmission 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 104Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 8 

system, and said changes or additions are entirely or partially required because of the Contractor’s equipment 
installed under the contract, such changes or additions shall, after consultation with the Contractor, be made by 
Western with all costs or a proportionate share of all costs, as determined by Western, to the be paid by the 
Contractor.  Western shall notify the Contractor in writing of the necessary changes or additions and the estimated 
costs to be paid by the Contractor.  If the Contractor fails to pay its share of said estimated costs, Western shall 
have the right, after giving sixty (60) days’ written notice to the Contractor, to terminate the applicable facility 
installation provisions to the contract and require the removal of the Contractor’s facilities. 
 

26. Modification of Western Facilities. 
 

Western reserves the right, at any time, to modify its facilities.  Western shall keep the Contractor 
informed of all planned modifications to Western facilities which impact the facilities installation pursuant to the 
contract.  Western shall permit the Contractor to change or modify its facilities, in a manner satisfactory to and at 
no cost or expense to Western, to retain the facilities interconnection pursuant to the contract.  At the Contractor’s 
option, Western shall cooperate with the Contractor in planning alternate arrangements for service which shall be 
implemented at no cost or expense to Western.  The Contractor and Western shall modify the contract, as 
necessary, to conform to the new facilities arrangements. 
 

27. Transmission Rights. 
 

If the contract involves an installation which sectionalizes a Western transmission line, the Contractor 
hereby agrees to provide a transmission path to Western across such sectionalizing facilities at no cost or expense 
to Western.  Said transmission path shall be at least equal, in terms of capacity and reliability, to the path in the 
Western transmission line prior to the installation pursuant to the contract. 
 

28. Construction and Safety Procedures. 
 

28.1 The Contractor hereby acknowledges that it is aware of the hazards inherent in high-voltage 
electric lines and substations, and hereby assumes full responsibility at all times for the adoption and use of 
necessary safety measures required to prevent accidental harm to personnel engaged in the construction, 
inspection, testing, operation, maintenance, replacement, or removal activities of the Contractor pursuant to the 
contract.  The Contractor and the authorized employees, agents, and subcontractors of the Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable safety laws and building and construction codes, including the provisions of Chapter 1 of the 
Power System Operations Manual, entitled Power System Switching Procedure, and the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration regulations, Title 29 C.F.R. §§ 1910 and 1926, as amended or supplemented.  In addition to 
the safety program required herein, upon request of the United States, the Contractor shall provide sufficient 
information to demonstrate that the Contractor’s safety program is satisfactory to the United States. 
 

28.2 The Contractor and its authorized employees, agents, and subcontractors shall familiarize 
themselves with the location and character of all the transmission facilities of Western and interconnections of 
others relating to the work performed by the Contractor under the contract.  Prior to starting any construction, 
installation, or removal work, the Contractor shall submit a plan of procedure to Western which shall indicate the 
sequence and method of performing the work in a safe manner.  No work shall be performed by the Contractor, its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors until written authorization to proceed is obtained from Western. 
 

28.3 At all times when the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors are performing 
activities of any type pursuant to the contract, such activities shall be under supervision of a qualified employee, 
agent, or subcontractor of the Contractor who shall be authorized to represent the Contractor in all matters 
pertaining to the activity being performed.  The Contractor and Western will keep each other informed of the 
names of their designated representatives at the site. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 105Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 9 

   28.4 Upon completion of its work, the Contractor shall remove from the vicinity of the right-of-
way of the United States all buildings, rubbish, used materials, concrete forms, and other like material belonging to 
the Contractor or used under the Contractor’s direction, and in the event of failure to do so the same may be 
removed by Western at the expense of the Contractor. 
 

28.5 In the event the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors fail to comply with any 
requirement of this Provision, or Provision 21 (Inspection and Acceptance) herein, Western or an authorized 
representative may issue an order to stop all or any part of the work until such time as the Contractor demonstrates 
compliance with the provision at issue.  The Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall make no 
claim for compensation or damages resulting from such work stoppage.  
 

29. Environmental Compliance. 
 

Facilities installed under the contract by any party shall be constructed, operated, maintained, 
replaced, transported, and removed subject to compliance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to the 
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, 16 U.S.C. §§ 470x-6, the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 
42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4347, the Endangered Species Act of 1973, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531-1544, and the Archaeological 
Resources Protection Act of 1979, 16 U.S.C. §§ 470aa-470mm, and the regulations and executive orders 
implementing these laws, as they may be amended or supplemented, as well as any other existing or subsequent 
applicable laws, regulations, and executive orders. 
 

30. Responsibility for Regulated Materials. 
 

When either party owns equipment containing regulated material located on the other party’s 
substation, switchyard, right-of-way, or other property, the equipment owner shall be responsible for all activities 
related to regulated materials in such equipment that are necessary to meet the requirements of the Toxic 
Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2692, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 
6901-6992k, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. §§ 
9601-9675, the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, 33 U.S.C. §§ 2702-2761, the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387, 
the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f-j26, and the regulations and executive orders implementing these 
laws, as they may be amended or supplemented, and any other existing or subsequent applicable laws, regulations, 
and executive orders.  Each party shall label its equipment containing regulated material in accordance with 
appropriate laws and regulations.  If the party owning the equipment does not perform activities required under 
appropriate laws and regulations within the time frame specified therein, the other party may perform or cause to 
be performed the required activities after notice to and at the sole expense of the party owning the equipment. 
 
 
VI.  OTHER PROVISIONS. 
 

31. Authorized Representatives of the Parties. 
 

Each party to the contract, by written notice to the other, shall designate the representative(s) who is 
(are) authorized to act in its behalf with respect to those matters contained in the contract which are the functions 
and responsibilities of the authorized representatives of the parties.  Each party may change the designation of its 
authorized representative(s) upon oral notice given to the other, confirmed promptly by written notice. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 106Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 10 

 
32. Effect of Section Headings. 

 
Section headings or Provision titles appearing in the contract or these General Power Contract 

Provisions are inserted for convenience only and shall not be construed as interpretations of text. 
 

33. Operating Guidelines and Procedures. 
 

The parties to the contract may agree upon and put into effect from time to time, such other written 
guidelines and procedures as may be required in order to establish the methods of operation of the power system to 
be followed in the performance of the contract. 
 
  34. Uncontrollable Forces. 
 

Neither party to the contract shall be considered to be in default in performance of any of its 
obligations under the contract, except to make payment as specified in Provision 13 (Billing and Payment) herein, 
when a failure of performance shall be due to an uncontrollable force.  The term “uncontrollable force” means any 
cause beyond the control of the party affected, including but not restricted to, failure of or threat of failure of 
facilities, flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, labor 
dispute, labor or material shortage, sabotage, restraint by court order or public authority and action or nonaction 
by, or failure to obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals from, any governmental agency or authority, 
which by exercise of due diligence such party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid and which by 
exercise of due diligence it shall be unable to overcome. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require a 
party to settle any strike or labor dispute in which it may be involved.  Either party rendered unable to fulfill any of 
its obligations under the contract by reason of an uncontrollable force shall give prompt written notice of such fact 
to the other party and shall exercise due diligence to remove such inability with all reasonable dispatch. 
 

35. Liability. 
 

35.1 The Contractor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the United States, its 
employees, agents, or contractors from any loss or damage and from any liability on account of personal injury, 
death, or property damage, or claims for personal injury, death, or property damage of any nature whatsoever and 
by whomsoever made arising out of the Contractors’, its employees’, agents’, or subcontractors’ construction, 
operation, maintenance, or replacement activities under the contract. 
 

35.2 The United States is liable only for negligence on the part of its officers and employees in 
accordance with the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1346(b), 1346(c), 2401(b), 2402, 2671, 2672, 2674-
2680, as amended or supplemented. 
 

36. Cooperation of Contracting Parties. 
 

If, in the operation and maintenance of their respective power systems or electrical equipment and the 
utilization thereof for the purposes of the contract, it becomes necessary by reason of any emergency or 
extraordinary condition for either party to request the other to furnish personnel, materials, tools, and equipment 
for the accomplishment thereof, the party so requested shall cooperate with the other and render such assistance as 
the party so requested may determine to be available.  The party making such request, upon receipt of properly 
itemized bills from the other party, shall reimburse the party rendering such assistance for all costs properly and 
reasonably incurred by it in such performance, including administrative and general expenses, such costs to be 
determined on the basis of current charges or rates used in its own operations by the party rendering assistance.  
Issuance and payment of bills for services provided by Western shall be in accordance with Provisions 13 (Billing 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 107Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 11 

and Payment) and 14 (Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due) herein.  Western shall pay bills issued by the 
Contractor for services provided as soon as the necessary vouchers can be prepared which shall normally be within 
twenty (20) days. 

 
37. Transfer of Interest in Contract or Change in Preference Status. 

 
37.1 No voluntary transfer of the contract or of the rights of the Contractor under the contract shall 

be made without the prior written approval of the Administrator of Western.  Any voluntary transfer of the contract 
or of the rights of the Contractor under the contract made without the prior written approval of the Administrator 
of Western may result in the termination of the contract; Provided, That the written approval of the Administrator 
shall not be unreasonably withheld; Provided further, That if the Contractor operates a project financed in whole or 
in part by the Rural Utilities Service, the Contractor may transfer or assign its interest in the contract to the Rural 
Utilities Service or any other department or agency of the Federal Government without such prior written 
approval; Provided further, That any successor to or assignee of the rights of the Contractor, whether by voluntary 
transfer, judicial sale, foreclosure sale, or otherwise, shall be subject to all the provisions and conditions of the 
contract to the same extent as though such successor or assignee were the original Contractor under the contract; 
and, Provided further, That the execution of a mortgage or trust deed, or judicial or foreclosure sales made 
thereunder, shall not be deemed voluntary transfers within the meaning of this Provision. 

 
37.2 The Contractor shall maintain its status as an entity eligible for preference in Western’s sale 

of Federal power pursuant to Reclamation law, as amended and supplemented. 
 
37.3 Western shall give the Contractor written notice of Western’s proposed determination that the 

Contractor has violated Provision 37.1 and Western’s proposed action in response to the violation. 
 
37.4 The Contractor shall have 120 days after receipt of Western’s notice provided under 

Provision 37.3 to submit a written response to Western.  The Contractor may also make an oral presentation to the 
Administrator during this 120-day period. 

 
37.5 At any time during this process, the Contractor and Western may agree upon corrective 

action to resolve Western’s proposed determination that the Contractor is in violation of Provision 37.1. 
 
37.6 Within 30 days of receipt of the Contractor’s written response provided under Provision 37.4, 

Western will notify the Contractor in writing of its final decision.  The Administrator’s written notice will include 
the intended action, the effective date thereof, and the reasons for taking the intended action.  Implementation of 
the Administrator’s action shall take place no earlier than 60 days from the Contractor’s receipt of such notice. 

 
37.7 Any successor to Western shall be subject to all the provisions and conditions of the contract 

to the same extent as though such successor were an original signatory to the contract. 
 
37.8 Nothing in this Provision shall preclude any right to judicial review available to the 

Contractor under Federal law. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 108Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 12 

38. Choice of Law and Forum. 
 

Federal law shall control the obligations and procedures established by this contract and the 
performance and enforcement thereof.  The forum for litigation arising from this contract shall exclusively be 
a Federal court of the United States, unless the parties agree to pursue alternative dispute resolution. 
 

39. Waivers. 
 

 Any waivers at any time by either party to the contract of its rights with respect to a default or any 
other matter arising under or in connection with the contract shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any 
subsequent default or matter. 
 

40. Notices. 
 

Any notice, demand, or request specifically required by the contract or these Provisions to be in 
writing shall be considered properly given when delivered in person or sent by postage prepaid registered or 
certified mail, commercial delivery service, facsimile, electronic, prepaid telegram, or by other means with prior 
agreement of the parties, to each party’s authorized representative at the principal offices of the party.  The 
designation of the person to be notified may be changed at any time by similar notice.  Where facsimile or 
electronic means are utilized for any communication covered by this Provision, the sending party shall keep a 
contemporaneous record of such communications and shall verify receipt by the other party. 

 
41. Contingent Upon Appropriations and Authorization. 

 
41.1 Where activities provided for in the contract extend beyond the current fiscal year, continued 

expenditures by the United States are contingent upon Congress making the necessary appropriations required for 
the continued performance of the United States’ obligations under the contract.  In case such appropriation is not 
made, the Contractor hereby releases the United States from its contractual obligations and from all liability due to 
the failure of Congress to make such appropriation. 

 
41.2 In order to receive and expend funds advanced from the Contractor necessary for the 

continued performance of the obligations of the United States under the contract, additional authorization may be 
required.  In case such authorization is not received, the Contractor hereby releases the United States from those 
contractual obligations and from all liability due to the lack of such authorization. 

 
42. Covenant Against Contingent Fees. 

 
The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or 

secure the contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the 
Contractor for the purpose of securing business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, Western shall have the 
right to annul the contract without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration the 
full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 109Item 12.



Effective September 1, 2007 

 

 
 13 

 
43. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards. 

 
The contract, to the extent that it is of a character specified in Section 103 of the Contract Work 

Hours and Safety Standards Act (Act), 40 U.S.C. § 3701, as amended or supplemented, is subject to the provisions 
of the Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708, as amended or supplemented, and to regulations promulgated by the Secretary 
of Labor pursuant to the Act. 
 

44. Equal Opportunity Employment Practices. 
 

Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12319 (1965), as amended by Executive 
Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46501 (1978), as amended or supplemented, which provides, among other things, 
that the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin, is incorporated herein by reference the same as if the specific language had been 
written into the contract, except that Indian Tribes and tribal organizations may apply Indian preference to the 
extent permitted by Federal law. 
 

45. Use of Convict Labor. 
 

The Contractor agrees not to employ any person undergoing sentence of imprisonment in performing 
the contract except as provided by 18 U.S.C. § 3622(c), as amended or supplemented, and Executive Order No. 
11755, 39 Fed. Reg. 779 (1973), as amended or supplemented. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 110Item 12.



2022 UGPR REC Program Principles  Page 1 of 2 

Western Area Power Administration 

Upper Great Plains Region (UGPR)  

Renewable Energy Certificate Program Principles 

 
1. Customers that receive Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Program -- Eastern Division Firm Electric 

Service (FES) allocations and take delivery of firm energy are eligible to obtain Renewable 
Energy Certificates (RECs) under the Upper Great Plains Region (UGPR) REC Program 
(Program).  Customers that receive FES allocations and take delivery of firm energy will be 
allocated RECs under the Program and will herein be called Participants.  Peaking power 
contracts are excluded from the Program.   

2. RECs will be allocated annually based upon the energy associated with each customer’s FES 
allocation.  Energy generated from U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) and the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers (CORPS) hydropower facilities during the preceding calendar year will 
be allocated in the ratio of one (1) REC to one (1) megawatt hour (MWh) generated.  Purchase 
Power, including Purchase Power from renewable resources, is not part of the Program.   

3. Generation from the hydropower facilities fluctuates each year.  Participants will be allocated 
RECs on a proportionate share of the actual generation from the hydropower dams in UGPR, not 
to exceed each Participant’s firm power allocation.   
a. Should generation be less than the sum of the Participants’ firm power allocations, 

Participants will receive a proportionate share of RECs for actual generation from each 
hydropower dam in UGPR that year.  This amount may be less than the Participant’s firm 
power allocation. 

b. Should generation be greater than the sum of the Participants’ firm power allocations, WAPA 
may, at its sole discretion, allocate the excess RECs to Participants on a proportionate share 
to offset lesser generation years. 

c. The equation for determining each Participant’s allocated RECs shall be the total available 
Program RECs multiplied by each Participant’s percentage of firm energy, then rounded 
down to the last whole MWh.   

d. Allocated RECs cannot exceed the Participant’s firm power allocation. 
4. WAPA offers these RECs as an additional benefit of the firm energy delivered to Participants and 

considers RECs an environmental attribute of the energy generated by Reclamation and the 
CORPS.  RECs are subject to the same terms and conditions as the Participant’s FES Contract.   
No additional contract or letter agreement between WAPA and the Participant is required. 

5. RECs issued to Participants under this Program cannot be resold.  Participants may transfer 
RECs issued under the Program to its members and/or end use customers located in the UGPR 
marketing area.  Participants must ensure that any transferred RECs are not sold.  Participants 
may charge a fee to recover the costs of transferring RECs to their members and/or end use 
customers. 

6. WAPA makes no representations as to whether Program RECs qualify for or meet any renewable 
energy standards.  It is the Participant’s responsibility to verify whether Program RECs qualify 
for State, Federal, or other renewable energy standard requirements.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 111Item 12.



2022 UGPR REC Program Principles Page 2 of 2 

7. Tracking and Management of RECs:  UGPR uses the Midwest Renewable Energy Tracking
System (M-RETS) to track each Participant’s annual proportionate share of RECs from each of
UGPR’s eight hydropower dams.  Note, Yellowtail Dam’s generation was initially registered by
WAPA’s Rocky Mountain Region in a different tracking system called Western Renewable
Energy Generation Information System (WREGIS).  UGPR’s portion of the Yellowtail Dam
generation (50 percent) is transferred from WREGIS to M-RETS annually.

8. WAPA shall hold each Participant’s RECs in separate subaccounts in M-RETS, unless other
arrangements have been requested.  WAPA will not retire RECs for Participants in M-RETS.

9. Participants may request other arrangements for the tracking and management of their RECs
which include:  1) managing their own RECs in M-RETS or a similar compatible tracking
system, or 2) designating another entity (Designated Entity), approved by WAPA, to manage the
Participant’s RECs in M-RETS or a similar compatible tracking system.
a. A separate contract with WAPA is required for Participants 1) requesting a Designated Entity

manage their RECs, or 2) requesting to transfer RECs to a different REC tracking system that
is compatible with M-RETS.

b. The Designated Entity will manage RECs on the behalf of the Participant to be used for the
Participant’s benefit or transferred to the Participant’s end use customer, located in the UGPR
marketing area.

c. Participants and/or their Designated Entity are responsible for:
i. tracking, managing, and retiring RECs and paying any associated fees.

ii. ensuring established REC Program Principles are followed, including but not limited to:
following the terms of the FES Contract, no resale, ensuring transfers be made to
customers and/or end users, a fee to recover costs may be charged, and customers and/or
end users must be located within the established UGPR marketing area.

d. Upon request and receipt of associated fees, WAPA will transfer RECs to the Participant or
Designated Entity in accordance with the separate contract as mentioned in 9a above.

10. RECs associated with Project Use Power Contracts will be allocated in the same manner as FES
Contracts.

11. UGPR REC Program Costs:
a. Costs for WAPA to administer the program and costs for the initial issuance of RECs will be

incorporated into the UGPR firm power rate.
b. Costs associated with transferring and/or exporting RECs to a Participant’s or Designated

Entity’s account, and other costs as described in Principle 9c above, are the responsibility of
the Participant and/or Designated Entity.

c. Advanced funding will be required.
12. WAPA reserves the right to suspend or terminate the Program upon reasonable advance written

notice to Participants.  Though WAPA may solicit input, it can change these Principles, without
notice, at its discretion.

Approved:    Date: Lori L. Frisk Digitally signed by Lori L. Frisk 
Date: 2022.09.27 13:02:57 
-05'00' September 27, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: CE42BD3D-C758-4804-823B-BF21226F6EAC

Page 112Item 12.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Dave Schelkoph 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Missouri River Energy Services & MMU Reserve Capacity Agreement 

Background 
Information: 

On April 18th, 2023, the Marshall Utility Commission passed a motion that recommends the 
Marshall City Council approve and sign the new Reserve Capacity Agreement from MRES.  
Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) provides approximately 75% of the electricity for the city 
of Marshall.  During the 2023 budget process at MRES, it was proposed and adopted to change 
the Reserve Capacity Agreement (RCA) between MRES and it’s members.  The philosophy 
behind the changes was to promote membership development of distributive generation with 
cash incentives and larger monthly payments that would increase the power capacity of MRES 
to better serve their membership.  Under the new agreement monthly payments to MMU will 
increase from $2.00/KW/Month to $5.00/KW/Month.  In addition to this increase, an additional 
$2.00/KW/Month for ten years will be given to MMU as up-front payment for all new 
generation installed and in service.  A copy of the agreement is attached to this report.   
MMU needs to replace our 54-year-old generator.  We have not gone forward with a 
replacement plan to date because to do so, MMU would have to increase electrical rates to pay 
for a new generation project.   Circumstances have changed.  MRES and the new RCA will 
significantly increase payments to the membership for distribution generators.  This increase in 
compensation is significant enough so that MMU can replace/add to our generator capacity 
resulting in little to no inflationary pressure on our rates.  
As in the old RCA, there is no cost to unilaterally leave the agreement should a member choose 

to do so. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Approve the new reserve capacity agreement from MRES. 

 

Page 113Item 13.



 
 
  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
VIA EMAIL TRANSMITTAL 

 
TO: Dave Schelkoph, General Manager Marshall Municipal Utilities 
CC: Pamela Whitmore, City Attorney; Sharon Hanson, City Administrator 
FROM:  Dennis H. Simpson, Real Estate Attorney City of Marshall 
DATE:  April 4, 2023 
RE:  Review of Reserved Capacity Agreement  
FILE NO. M015.082 
 
 
Thank you to you and MRES for the quick turnaround of the Amended Reserved Compacity 
Agreement (RCA). I met with you on Tuesday, March 28th and discussed and reviewed with you my 
thoughts regarding the RCA. I wanted clarification that there were no unintended financial or 
personnel consequences to MMU as a result of entering into the RCA. You have provided assurance 
to me that both MMU and MRES understand the financial consequences and implications related to 
the RCA. You believe that the financial benefit to MMU outweighs any requirements of the City of 
Marshall and MMU. The financial benefit to the City will allow the City and MMU to install additional 
generators for the increased electrical compacity for use by the City and resale to MRES. The costs of 
the generators will be paid in a significant amount by the funds from MRES as set forth in the RCA.  
 
As we discussed, the RCA is for a period of time exceeding 10 years and as such the Marshall City 
Council will have to approve that agreement. The exhibits of the agreement, which provide for 
operational procedures and reserved compacity requirements should be signed by MMU. I have 
reviewed recent correspondence from City Attorney Pam Whitmore and agree with her analysis 
regarding the appropriate resolution to be signed verifying City authority to approve the contract 
with MMU authority to sign the exhibits.  
 
Finally, my only suggestion for the March 30th amended draft from MRES would be to include the 
City of Marshall as a signatory to that Exhibit E as also set forth in Exhibit D. Just ask MRES to add 
Marshall, Minnesota above the signature line in the middle of Page 2, Exhibit E.  
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any additional questions or concerns.  
 
DHS:jlh 
 
 

 
Quarnstrom & Doering, P.A 

109 South Fourth Street 
Marshall, MN 56258 

Ph. (507) 537-1441 
Fax: (507) 537-1445 

Email: dsimpson@qdlawfirm.com 

 

Page 114Item 13.



Resolution No. 203 

A Resolution in Support of the Reserve Capacity Agreement (RCA) 

Between Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) and Marshall, Minnesota 
 

 

Whereas, The City of Marshall acting by and through Marshall Municipal Utilities (MMU), has 

contracted to sell the capacity in their turbine used for electrical generating purposes, to Missouri 

River Energy Services (MRES).  Said Contract is currently scheduled to expire December 31, 

2029, and  

 

Whereas, MRES desires to enter into a new Reserve Capacity Agreement (RCA) with MMU  

that will extend the agreement to May 31, 2052 and, will increase the monthly financial 

payments to MMU for current generation and provide financial incentives for MMU to install 

new generation; and 

 

Whereas, the Marshall Municipal Utilities Commission desires to sell said generating capacity to 

MRES under the terms of the proposed RCA, finding it to be in the best interest of the electric 

customers of MMU; and 

 

Whereas, said RCA contract exceeds ten years in length and pursuant to Marshall City Charter 

section 13.04, requires approval by the Marshall City Council.   

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, MMU herein once again expresses its desire to sell the 

capacity of the turbine to MRES and respectfully requests the Marshall City Council to adopt a 

resolution approving the RCA with MRES, in substantially the form as presented to the City of 

Marshall. 

 

Upon vote being taken thereon, the following Commissioners voted in favor:  

 

 

and the following voted against the same: 

 

 

whereupon the resolution was declared passed and adopted and was signed by the Chairperson and 

attested by the Secretary on this 18th day of April 2023. 

 
 

 

________________________________________. 

Kristina Carrow, Chair of the Commission 

 

 

________________________________________. 

Leslie Hisken, Secretary to the Commission 

 

Page 115Item 13.



 

 
 

January 31, 2023 
 
 
 
David Schelkoph 
davids@marshallutilities.com 
113 South 4 Street 
Marshall, MN 56258 
 
 
RE:  Reserved Capacity Agreement – Request execution and return prior to May 15, 2023 
 
Dear David: 
 
The Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) Board of Directors has authorized MRES staff to 
update the rates and key terms of the Reserved Capacity Agreement (RCA). MRES is requesting 
MRES members participating in the RCA program to execute the revised and attached RCA by 
May 15, 2023. 
 
As you know, the RCA is an agreement between MRES and its members with local generation 
whereby MRES pays the member a monthly capacity payment in exchange for making the 
member’s local generating capacity available to MRES. The RCA helps MRES and its members 
meet their capacity requirements, while participating members have local backup generation to 
increase the reliability of their operations. This revised agreement continues that intent. Key 
changes to the revised RCA are as follows: 
 

• Capacity rate increase to $5/kW-mo 
• Incentive for members to install new generation by providing a lump sum payment of 

$2/kW-mo for the first ten years 
• Removal of DCA and CPA terminology 
• Termination of the existing RCA upon the effective date of the revised RCA 
• Aligning terms with changes to market requirements of the respective regional transmission 

organizations, such as moving to a seasonal construct 
• Fuel requirements providing for a minimum of twenty hours of run time or documentation 

from fuel supplier to support the same. 
• Requirement that systems are able to operate in extreme weather conditions 

 
If you are comfortable with the new RCA, please have the RCA approved by your governing body, 
as appropriate. 
 
Execution instructions: 
 

1. Review and verify information contained in the agreement and exhibits are correct. If these 
are not correct, please contact us. We will modify and return. 

2. RCA – sign. Do not date the agreement. 

3724 West Avera Drive 
PO Box 88920 

Sioux Falls, SD  57109-8920 
Telephone: 605.338.4042 

Fax: 605.978.9360 
www.mrenergy.com 

Page 116Item 13.

mailto:davids@marshallutilities.com


 

3. Exhibit A – sign. 
4. Exhibit D – sign. 
5. Please return the signed documents by May 15, 2023. If you are not able to do so, please let 

us know. 
6. MRES will sign and date the documents and return the fully executed originals to you. 

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call Reece Chambers at 605-330-6982 or email 
him at reece.chambers@mrenergy.com, or call me at 605-330-6977 or email me at 
terry.wolf@mrenergy.com. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Terry Wolf  
Vice President of Power Supply & Operations 
 
 
Enclosures 

Page 117Item 13.

mailto:reece.chambers@mrenergy.com
mailto:terry.wolf@mrenergy.com


 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 1 

 

RESERVED CAPACITY AGREEMENT 
 

between 
 

MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 
 

and 
 

THE CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
 
This Reserved Capacity Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 

_______________, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), between Missouri Basin Municipal Power 
Agency d/b/a Missouri River Energy Services, a body corporate and politic organized under 
Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa and existing under the intergovernmental cooperation laws of 
the States of Iowa, Minnesota, North Dakota, and South Dakota (“MRES”), and Marshall, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Minnesota (“Municipality”).  MRES and Municipality are 
at times referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
 A.  Municipality is a member of MRES and has entered into a Power Sale Agreement 
with MRES under which Municipality purchases its power and energy requirements from 
MRES. 
 
 B.  MRES owns or has contractual rights to the output of generating facilities for the 
purpose of furnishing firm electric power and energy at wholesale to meet the requirements of 
Municipality and other members of MRES, and to meet other obligations of MRES. 
 
 C.  Municipality owns certain electric generating facilities that, through the 
interconnection of Municipality’s electric distribution system with the transmission systems of 
other utilities, can be made available to the regional transmission system. 
 
 D.  If Municipality’s generating facilities are maintained in a dependable operating 
condition in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, MRES can beneficially utilize, and 
desires to purchase, the output of Municipality’s generating facilities to meet MRES’s power 
supply obligations to its members and for other mutually beneficial purposes. 
 
 E.  MRES has the dispatch, scheduling and transmission services required to utilize 
the output of Municipality’s generating facilities on an economical basis.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements set forth in this 

Agreement, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
1.  

Page 118Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 2 

 

2. ARTICLE 1 
3. DEFINITIONS 

4.  
The following terms, when capitalized in this Agreement, have the meanings set forth in 

this Article below.  Other capitalized terms used in this Agreement, but not defined in this 
Article, have the meanings given them elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 

1.1 “Energy Adder 1” means the amount added to the Energy Costs, for energy 
production as specified in Section 3.4 up to Energy Block 1 in any month, in determining the 
total payment by MRES to Municipality for energy produced by a Unit.  The Energy Adder 1 
will be $0.017 per kilowatt-hour (“kWh”) through May 31, 2024.  Starting with the first day of 
the June 2024 billing period and continuing thereafter on the first day of each subsequent June 
billing period, MRES will adjust the monthly rate for the Energy Adder 1 by taking the product 
of $0.017 per kWh and the quotient of the GDP Deflator for the calendar year preceding the 
adjustment date divided by the GDP Deflator for calendar year 2023 ($0.017 x (Current GDP 
Deflator/2022 GDP Deflator) = Updated Energy Adder 1), rounded to the nearest $0.001; 
provided, however, that the Energy Adder 1 may not be less than $0.015 per kWh. 
 

1.2 “Energy Adder 2” means the amount added to the Energy Costs, for energy 
production as specified in Section 3.4 exceeding Energy Block 1 in any month, in determining 
the total payment by MRES to Municipality for energy produced by a Unit.  The Energy Adder 2 
is $0.01 per kWh. 
 

1.3 “Energy Block 1” means eighty (80) times the Reserved Capacity amount of a 
Unit.   
 

1.4 “Energy Costs” means the sum of the cost of fuel consumed in a Unit to generate 
energy, including any incremental cost for station service, plus the amount of any federal or state 
energy tax based on the amount or type of fuel consumed in the generation of electricity, plus the 
amount of any federal or state pollution or emissions tax based upon the amount or type of fuel 
consumed in the generation of electricity. 
 

1.5 “Forced Outage Rate” means the equivalent demand forced outage rate of a Unit, 
representing the number of hours such Unit is not available to run or is limited in its run capacity 
compared to the number of hours the Unit is available to run at full capacity while in demand, as 
more particularly defined by the RTO in which a Unit is located or, if not defined by the RTO, 
by the North American Electric Reliability Corporation or any successor thereto.  For example, a 
Forced Outage Rate of two percent means a Unit is unavailable to run two percent of its potential 
running time.  The Forced Outage Rate of a Unit will be as determined by the applicable RTO or, 
if the RTO does not calculate the Forced Outage Rate for generating units within its footprint, by 
MRES based on information provided by Municipality. 

 
1.6  “GDP Deflator” means the average annual Gross Domestic Product Implicit 

Price Deflator as published by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis or its successor 
organization, computed to the nearest tenth.  The value published by April 1 will be considered 
to be the final value for the prior calendar year. 

Page 119Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 3 

 

 
1.7 “GVTC Test” means the annual capacity testing requirements and procedures 

required to be Planning Reserve Qualified capacity, as set forth in the Reserved Capacity 
Qualification Requirements. 
 

1.8 “Local Balancing Authority” has the meaning given to this term in the RTO tariff 
applicable to a Unit. 
 

1.9 “Network Transmission” has the meaning given to this term in the RTO tariff 
applicable to a Unit. 

 
1.10 “Operating Procedures” means the operating requirements and procedures 

required to be met and followed by Municipality in operating each Unit, as set forth in Exhibit D. 
 

1.11 “Planning Reserve Qualified” means generation that meets the requirements of 
this Agreement, including metering, GVTC Testing, and other reporting and call-out 
requirements as specified in this Agreement. 
 

1.12 “Planning Period” means the applicable planning period (i.e., year, season, etc.) 
used by the RTO tariff applicable to a Unit; provided, however, in the event the applicable RTO 
tariff provides for a planning period of less than six months in duration, the Planning Periods for 
purposes of this Agreement will be October 15 to April 15 and April 16 to October 14. 
 

1.13 “Point of Delivery” means the point at which energy is delivered by Municipality 
to MRES under this Agreement, as identified in Exhibit B. 
 

1.14 “Power Sale Agreement” means the long-term power supply purchase and sale 
agreement between MRES and Municipality, as described in Recital A. 
 

1.15 “Prudent Utility Practice” means those practices, methods and procedures, as 
modified from time to time, used by electric utilities to design, engineer, select, construct, 
operate and maintain electric power facilities and equipment dependably, reliably, safely and 
economically with due regard for the practices required within the region. 
 

1.16 “Reserved Capacity” means the entire amount of Planning Reserve Qualified 
capacity of a Unit as measured and determined according to the tests and criteria set forth in 
Article 5.  The Reserved Capacity of each Unit, as so measured and determined, is set forth in 
Exhibit A, as may be updated from time to time in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
1.17 “Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements” means the minimum 

requirements to be met and followed by Municipality for a Unit to be Planning Reserve 
Qualified, as set forth in Exhibit E. 

 
1.18 “Reserved Capacity Rate” means a monthly rate of $5.00 per kilowatt (“kW”) 

from the Effective Date through May 31, 2024.  Starting with the first day of the June 2024 
billing period and continuing thereafter on the first day of each subsequent June billing period, 

Page 120Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 4 

 

MRES will adjust the Reserved Capacity Rate by taking the product of $5.00 per kW and the 
quotient of the GDP Deflator for the calendar year preceding the adjustment date divided by the 
GDP Deflator for the calendar year 2023 ($5.00 x (Prior Year GDP Deflator/2022 GDP Deflator) 
= Updated Reserved Capacity Rate).  The resulting Reserved Capacity Rate will be rounded to 
the nearest $0.01 per kW.  
 

1.19 “RTO” means Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. or Southwest 
Power Pool, Inc., as applicable based on the location of a Unit, or any successor thereto. 
 

1.20 “Transmission Provider” has the meaning given to this term in the RTO tariff 
applicable to a Unit. 
 

1.21 “Uncontrollable Forces” means any cause beyond the control of the Party affected 
by such cause, including without limitation flood, earthquake, storm, lightning, fire, epidemic, 
pandemic, pestilence, war, riot, civil disturbance, labor disturbance, sabotage, or restraint by 
court or public authority, which by due diligence and foresight such Party could not reasonably 
have been expected to avoid.  The term Uncontrollable Forces does not include an equipment 
failure, scheduled or forced outage, or any unexcused periods of unavailability of the Reserved 
Capacity for reasons within the control of Municipality.   
 

1.22 “Unexcused Failure” means the failure of Municipality to provide all or a portion 
of the Reserved Capacity or energy, for a period exceeding five minutes, when dispatched or 
operated by MRES for any reason other than: (a) the temporary removal of a Unit from service 
for normal maintenance outages, testing or training pursuant to a schedule agreed upon by 
Municipality and MRES in accordance with Section 6.10; or (b) an inability to operate a Unit 
due to Uncontrollable Forces. 
 

1.23 “Unit” means a generator and associated equipment capable of generating electric 
energy that is owned and maintained by or on behalf of, and within the city limits of, 
Municipality and is used to provide Reserved Capacity and any associated energy under this 
Agreement.  Each Unit is listed in Exhibit A.     
 

1.24 “Units” means the combination of each and every Unit listed in Exhibit A, 
whether in the same location or different locations. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
2.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and 

remain in effect through May 31, 2052, unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

2.2 Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by MRES upon thirty (30) 
days’ written notice to Municipality upon the occurrence of any of the following events:  
 

a. There ceases to be any Units listed in Exhibit A.  

Page 121Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 5 

 

 
b. The Power Sale Agreement is terminated for any reason.  

 
c. Municipality breaches or violates any of its obligations under this 

Agreement and fails to cure such breach or violation within thirty (30) days of MRES’s 
written notice to Municipality of the breach or violation. 

 
2.3 Removal of Unit.  A Unit may be removed from Exhibit A, and thereby 

disqualified and removed from the terms of this Agreement, as set forth in this section below. 
 

a. The Parties may remove a Unit from Exhibit A at any time by written 
agreement of the Parties. 

 
b. MRES may remove a Unit from Exhibit A upon written notice to 

Municipality upon the occurrence of either of the following events: (i) the Unit is not 
Planning Reserve Qualified for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days; or (ii) the Unit 
fails to operate for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days due to an Unexcused Failure 
and was scheduled on four (4) or more of those days. 

 
c. Municipality may remove a Unit from Exhibit A upon written notice to 

MRES in the event the Unit is no longer economically viable as reasonably determined 
by Municipality, provided that such removal will not take effect until the end of the 
period for which the Unit is then registered by MRES as a resource with the applicable 
RTO. 
 
2.4   Addition of Unit.  After the Effective Date, the Parties may agree to add as a 

Unit to Exhibit A one or more additional generators and associated equipment of Municipality 
capable of generating electric energy and otherwise satisfying the requirements of a Unit that is 
Planning Reserve Qualified under this Agreement. 

1.  
2. ARTICLE 3 

3. PURCHASE AND SALE 
4.  

3.1 Purchase and Sale of Reserved Capacity; Energy.  During the term of this 
Agreement, and pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof, (a) Municipality will make 
available and sell to MRES, and MRES will purchase and accept from Municipality, the 
Reserved Capacity; and (b) MRES will take and pay for any energy associated with Reserved 
Capacity that is scheduled by MRES and delivered by Municipality to the Point of Delivery.  
Municipality will provide service over its transmission system and distribution system; no 
transmission, distribution or other service charges or loss compensation will be charged by 
Municipality to MRES for the delivery of the Reserved Capacity and energy to MRES. 

 
3.2 Reserved Capacity Rate.  MRES will pay Municipality for the Reserved Capacity 

furnished at the Point of Delivery, each month, a sum equal to the amount of Reserved Capacity 
multiplied by the Reserved Capacity Rate, subject to any adjustment pursuant to Article 4. 

 

Page 122Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 6 

 

3.3 New Unit Payment.  In the event Municipality, after June 1, 2023, constructs, 
installs and commissions a new generator and associated equipment that satisfies the 
requirements of a Unit that is Planning Reserve Qualified under this Agreement, and MRES 
agrees to the addition of such generator to Exhibit A pursuant to Section 2.4 (a “New Unit”), 
MRES will pay to Municipality, in addition to the Reserved Capacity Rate described in Section 
3.2, a lump sum payment equal to $2.00 per kW/month for ten (10) years based on the Limited-
Time Running (LTP) nameplate capacity rating according to ISO 8528 of the New Unit (the 
“New Unit Payment”).  If, prior to the tenth anniversary of the date upon which the New Unit 
was first accredited in the applicable RTO, the New Unit is removed from Exhibit A for any 
reason or this Agreement is terminated for any reason other than breach by MRES, Municipality 
will repay to MRES a pro-rated portion of the New Unit Payment, pro-rated to the date of such 
removal or termination. For example, if a New Unit was removed from Exhibit A seven years 
after the New Unit was first accredited in the RTO, Municipality would be required to repay 
MRES thirty percent (30%) of the New Unit Payment. 

 
3.4 Energy Rates.  MRES will pay Municipality for energy scheduled by MRES and 

generated by a Unit and delivered by Municipality to the Point of Delivery, as follows: (a) at a 
rate equal to Municipality’s Energy Costs plus the Energy Adder 1, for such energy production 
up to Energy Block 1 in any month; and (b) at a rate equal to Municipality’s Energy Costs plus 
the Energy Adder 2, for such energy production exceeding Energy Block 1 in any month.  The 
fuel cost portion of the Energy Costs will be calculated at the average cost of the fuel consumed 
during the month as purchased by Municipality and reflected in its accounting records.  The cost 
of fuel when using a Unit for generation by Municipality as described in Section 6.8(a) will be 
the responsibility of Municipality.  The cost of fuel consumed for heating a Unit is included in 
the price for Reserved Capacity and will be the responsibility of Municipality. 

 
3.5 Payment.  MRES will pay for Reserved Capacity and energy purchased pursuant 

to Section 3.1 as set forth below.  All payments will be made by Automated Clearing House. 
 

a. For Reserved Capacity, MRES will pay Municipality by the twentieth 
(20th) day of the month for all Reserved Capacity purchased in the preceding month. 

 
b. For a New Unit Payment, MRES will pay Municipality by the ninetieth 

(90th) day following the addition of the New Unit to Exhibit A as described in Section 
3.3.   

  
c. For energy, Municipality will send MRES an invoice by the tenth (10th) 

day of each calendar month succeeding the month in which Municipality supplied energy 
to MRES, which invoice will identify the amount of energy sold and sufficient detail to 
support the Energy Costs, including the average cost of fuel as described in Section 3.4 
and a reliable accounting (including meter readings) of all fuel consumed.  Such invoice 
will be clearly marked for “Reserved Capacity/Energy” and be addressed to: 

 
Accounts Payable 
Missouri River Energy Services 
P.O. Box 88920 

Page 123Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 7 

 

Sioux Falls, SD 57109-8920 
 

MRES will determine the amount owed for the energy, using the invoice for Energy 
Costs and supporting fuel records, and pay that amount to Municipality by the later of the 
twentieth (20th) day of the month or ten (10) business days after receipt of the invoice.   

 
ARTICLE 4 

FEE ADJUSTMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT 
 

 4.1 Forced Outage Rate Adjustment.  The fees paid by MRES for the Reserved 
Capacity of a Unit pursuant to Section 3.2 assume and require that the Unit has a Forced Outage 
Rate of five percent or less.  In the event the Forced Outage Rate of a Unit in any given Planning 
Period is more than five percent, the monthly fees payable by MRES to Municipality for the 
Reserved Capacity of such Unit in the ensuing Planning Period will be decreased by the percent 
amount that the Forced Outage Rate of such Unit exceeds five percent, rounded to the nearest 
one-tenth of a percent.  For example, if the Forced Outage Rate of a Unit in a Planning Period is 
8.83%, the Reserved Capacity payments for such Unit in the ensuing Planning Period will be 
reduced by 3.8%. 
 
 4.2 Unexcused Failure to Operate.  In the event a Unit is unable to operate for any 
period of time due to an Unexcused Failure, MRES will be entitled to reduce monthly payments 
for Reserved Capacity with respect to such Unit in an amount equal to the number of days during 
which the Unit was unable to operate as required by this Agreement, which reduction will 
continue until Municipality demonstrates to the satisfaction of MRES that the Unit is available as 
required by this Agreement; provided, however, that in the event MRES is assessed or incurs any 
penalties, fines, charges or costs due to a failure to meet any resource adequacy requirements or 
other regulatory or reliability requirements as a result of the Unexcused Failure, MRES will be 
entitled to recover from the Municipality the greater of (a) the reduction in monthly payments for 
Reserved Capacity resulting from such Unexcused Failure as described in this section above, and 
(b) the amount of any penalties, fines, charges and costs assessed against or incurred by MRES 
due to the Unexcused Failure, provided that Municipality’s responsibility for such penalties, 
fines, charges and costs due to any single Unexcused Failure will not exceed an amount equal to 
twelve months of Reserved Capacity payments to Municipality under this Agreement.   

 
ARTICLE 5 

QUALIFICATION OF RESERVED CAPACITY 
 

5.1 Qualified Reserved Capacity.  A Unit will be deemed to be Planning Reserve 
Qualified if and to the extent it meets the requirements of this Agreement, including this Article, 
the Operating Procedures, and the Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements.  The Reserved 
Capacity of each Unit, as measured and determined pursuant to this Article, is set forth in Exhibit 
A, as may be updated from time to time in accordance with this Article.  MRES from time to 
time may modify the Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements to reflect new criteria 
applicable to testing or qualification of generation. 

 

Page 124Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 8 

 

5.2 Calculation of Reserved Capacity Amount.  The amount of Reserved Capacity for 
each Unit will not exceed the highest rating of such Unit, based on continuous operation of the 
Unit for twenty-four (24) hours per day not exceeding the number of hours per year described in 
the Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements, without derates, exclusions or operational 
limits consistent with the Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements, and adjusted to 
summer peak conditions at the Point of Delivery, as determined by the most recent GVTC Test 
performed during the previous sixteen (16) months.  The sum of Reserved Capacity amounts for 
all Units will be adjusted down to the nearest 100 kW and will not exceed any transmission 
interconnection service limitations applicable to the Units. 

 
5.3 GVTC Tests.  Municipality, upon the request of MRES, will conduct periodic 

GVTC Tests consistent with the requirements and procedures set forth in the Reserved Capacity 
Qualification Requirements.  Such requests will be made at least two weeks in advance and, to 
the extent possible, for a time convenient to Municipality.  GVTC Tests will be required once per 
year and also immediately after a modification or repair of a Unit.  If a change of at least 100 kW 
in Planning Reserve Qualified capacity for any Unit results from a GVTC Test, MRES will 
revise Exhibit A to change the Reserved Capacity for that Unit in accordance with the updated 
Planning Reserve Qualified capacity amount, effective the first day of the month following the 
month during which the test was conducted.  MRES will pay Energy Costs plus the Energy 
Adder 1 and Energy Adder 2, if applicable, for energy produced during scheduled GVTC Tests. 

 
5.4 Test Procedure and Results.  Municipality will furnish all personnel and 

equipment necessary for all GVTC Tests, measure and record the results of all GVTC Tests, and 
report all test results to MRES.  MRES reserves the right to be present at any GVTC Test. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
OBLIGATIONS OF MUNICIPALITY 

 
6.1 Licenses.  Municipality will obtain and maintain in full compliance all licenses, 

permits and approvals, including air quality permits, required by federal, state and local laws and 
regulations to enable the Units to be Planning Reserve Qualified and to permit the dispatch and 
operation of the Units in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
6.2 Compliance.  Municipality will maintain and operate the Units in compliance with 

all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, including environmental laws and 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of all contracts, permits, licenses and approvals relating 
to the Units. 
   

6.3 Additional Facilities and Services.  Municipality will install or cause to be 
installed all switches, relays, controls and any other protective equipment required to protect the 
Units and any on-site personnel during operation of the Units.  Municipality will be responsible 
for any facilities in addition to the Units and any arrangements for service over the transmission 
systems of other utilities required for Municipality to provide the Reserved Capacity and energy 
under this Agreement and to perform its other obligations under this Agreement.  Exhibit C 
identifies certain additional facilities and services identified by the Parties.  
 

Page 125Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 9 

 

6.4 Fuel.  Municipality will purchase and maintain a fuel supply sufficient for the 
Units to be Planning Reserve Qualified and to permit the dispatch and operation of the Units in 
accordance with this Agreement.  Municipality will comply with all federal, state and local laws 
and regulations, including all environmental laws and regulations, applicable to fuel and any 
other hazardous substances used in connection with the Units. 
 

6.5 Connection.  Municipality will connect each Unit to MRES’s wide area network 
(“WAN”), if requested by MRES.  MRES will be responsible for the cost of connection to the 
WAN and for any monthly fees associated with the WAN. 
 

6.6 Repairs and Improvements.  Municipality will make all repairs, replacements, 
modifications and improvements to the Units or associated facilities, whether required by 
applicable laws or regulations or by other causes, necessary to enable the Units to provide the 
amount of Reserved Capacity specified in Exhibit A.  In the event any required repairs, 
replacements, modifications or improvements are not made by Municipality, the Reserved 
Capacity set forth in Exhibit A will be adjusted if and as necessary and MRES may exercise any 
other rights and remedies under this Agreement. 
 

6.7 Maintenance and Operation.  Municipality will maintain and operate the Units in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Prudent Utility Practice, and the Operating 
Procedures.  The Operating Procedures will be reviewed from time to time by the Parties and 
may be modified by agreement of the Parties.  Any agreed modifications to the Operating 
Procedures will be memorialized in an updated Exhibit D executed by the Parties.  If the Parties 
are unable to reach an agreement on proposed modifications to the Operating Procedures, either 
Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other Party; 
provided such termination will not take effect prior to the end of the then-current Planning 
Period.  
 

6.8 Dispatch.  Municipality may operate the Units only for MRES’s use and only 
when dispatched under this Agreement, except as specifically provided in this section below.  
MRES, the Local Balancing Authority, and the Transmission Provider will have the sole 
authority for dispatching the Units as provided in this section.  When MRES schedules a Unit for 
operation, such schedule will require a minimum operating time as specified in the Operating 
Procedures.  MRES may designate one or more agents to represent MRES for purposes of this 
Agreement for scheduling and dispatching activities.  Dispatching may be provided verbally by 
telephone or electronically via email, facsimile or the WAN.  Municipality will generate 
electricity from a Unit pursuant to dispatch instructions provided by MRES, including schedules 
for testing or exercising a Unit. 
 

a. Municipality may operate a Unit for its own use only: (i) when a 
distribution system failure prevents the delivery of firm electric power and associated 
energy from MRES to Municipality; or (ii) for Unit testing as requested by Municipality 
and approved by MRES.  In either event, Municipality may operate a Unit solely for 
Municipality’s use at its own expense, and Municipality will submit to MRES a report of 
the amount of generation (capacity and energy) and the amount of fuel used during such 
generation period.  The report will be clearly marked as not being for payment by MRES.  

Page 126Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 10 

 

Any operation of a Unit pursuant to this subsection (a) may not be used by Municipality 
to offset or reduce demand charges due MRES under the Power Sale Agreement. 
 

b. Municipality may operate a Unit to mitigate transmission limitations, 
including isolation from the transmission system serving Municipality’s load or other 
local area load similarly situated to Municipality, when directed to do so by the Local 
Balancing Authority, or Transmission Provider.  In such an event, Municipality will 
immediately notify MRES of such operation.  If the transmission limitation being 
mitigated involves Network Transmission, MRES will pay Municipality for energy 
produced during such operation.  If the transmission limitation being mitigated does not 
involve Network Transmission, Municipality will take reasonable steps to minimize the 
amount and costs of operation, including implementing undervoltage load shedding, 
using demand response resources, making public appeals for reduction of load, utilizing 
distribution side switching in coordination with the transmission owner, and seeking 
reimbursement of operating costs from governmental sources, the Local Balancing 
Authority, and the Transmission Provider; and MRES will pay Municipality for energy 
produced during such operation (less any payment or reimbursement received by 
Municipality from the Local Balancing Authority and/or Transmission Provider) except 
to the extent Municipality fails to implement the above-described operation and cost 
minimization efforts.  

 
6.9 Telephone Contact.  Municipality will maintain one telephone contact which is 

continuously staffed or monitored for receiving and responding to MRES dispatch instructions 
for operation of the Units.   

 
6.10 Planned Outages.  MRES and Municipality will jointly identify and schedule all 

planned outages for each Unit.  The planned outages will be scheduled to conform with the needs 
and economics of MRES’s generating plans and applicable RTO accreditation rules, and, unless 
otherwise agreed by MRES, will be scheduled at least one hundred fifty (150) days in advance or 
longer if and as required by the applicable RTO.  Municipality may not plan an outage of all or 
any part of a Unit except as provided in this section.  MRES will continue to make monthly 
capacity payments to Municipality during planned outages jointly identified and scheduled by 
the Parties in accordance with this section. 

 
6.11 Emergency.  In the event of an operating emergency with respect to a Unit or the 

distribution or transmission system of Municipality, Municipality will take such action as it, in 
its discretion, may deem prudent to terminate the emergency so as to preserve the safety, 
integrity and operability of the Unit or associated facilities, protect the health and safety of the 
public and its personnel, and minimize any adverse environmental effects of the emergency. 
 

6.12 Information.  Municipality will provide information and data concerning each 
Unit as reasonably requested by MRES, including information relating to generator availability 
required for capacity accreditation with an RTO, to determine the Forced Outage Rate, or 
otherwise.  Municipality acknowledges and agrees that this information is necessary for MRES 
to receive the benefits of the Reserved Capacity under this Agreement, and that MRES may 

Page 127Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 11 

 

withhold from Municipality any payments hereunder until such information is provided to 
MRES. 
 

6.13 Notices.  Municipality will notify MRES as soon as possible (not to exceed one 
business day after discovery) when anything is discovered which might affect the availability or 
capacity of a Unit, and will keep MRES informed regarding the status of the Unit and of all 
actions and steps taken by Municipality to restore full availability of the Unit.   
 

6.14 Access.  Municipality will permit MRES representatives to enter Unit sites at 
reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to Municipality. 
 

6.15 No Other Sales.  Municipality may not enter into any sales, including non-firm 
sales, from any Unit to other utilities or any other third party. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
OBLIGATIONS OF MRES 

 
7.1 Dispatching Services.  MRES will provide or obtain generation dispatching 

services for the Reserved Capacity.   
 
7.2 Transmission Service.  MRES will obtain any transmission service beyond 

Municipality’s system required for MRES to make use of any capacity and associated energy 
dispatched from the Units pursuant to this Agreement.   

 
7.3 Ancillary Services.  MRES will provide any ancillary services due solely to 

MRES scheduling and dispatching of the Units.   
 
7.4 Registration.  MRES, at its option, may register the Units with an RTO as 

necessary to obtain its full value as a resource adequacy resource.  
 
7.5 Reports.  MRES will report to Municipality any failure of a Unit to start remotely 

so Municipality can follow-up and prepare the Unit for future starts. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
METERING 

 
 8.1  Meters.  Municipality, at its cost, will furnish, install and maintain, or cause to be 
furnished, installed and maintained, all metering equipment required to measure and record all 
energy generated and delivered from each Unit to MRES at the Point of Delivery, consistent with 
requirements of Exhibit B.  The metering equipment will provide, in a format acceptable to 
MRES, a continuous record of the thirty (30) minute integrated total energy produced by the Unit 
and transmitted to MRES at the Point of Delivery during each month in which energy was 
generated and sold to MRES under this Agreement.  MRES, upon advanced notice to 
Municipality, may install and operate remote communications systems in connection with the 
metering equipment, including without limitation a supervisory control and data acquisition 
(“SCADA”) system. 

Page 128Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 12 

 

 
 8.2 Testing.  Municipality will test and calibrate the meters by comparison with 
accurate standards in accordance with Prudent Utility Practice at intervals of not greater than 
three (3) years after initial testing and calibration.  Municipality also will conduct special meter 
tests upon the request of MRES.  The costs of all tests will be borne by Municipality; provided, 
however, if any special meter test requested by MRES discloses that the meters are recording 
accurately, MRES will reimburse Municipality for the cost of such test.  Meters registering not 
more than two percent above or below normal will be deemed to be accurate.  The readings for 
any meter determined by test to be inaccurate will be corrected from the beginning of the 
monthly billing period immediately preceding the billing period during which the test was made 
in accordance with the percentage of inaccuracy found by such test.  If any meter fails to register, 
the energy delivered from the impacted Unit during such period of failure will be estimated by 
the Parties from the best information available.  Municipality will notify MRES in advance of the 
time of any meter test so that a representative of MRES may be present at such test. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY 

 
9.1 No Third Party Beneficiary.  Nothing in this Agreement will be considered or 

construed to create any duty, standard of care, or liability or obligation (contractual or otherwise) 
to any third party. 

 
9.2 Waiver of Consequential Damages.  In no event will MRES or Municipality be 

liable to the other Party or any third party for special, indirect, incidental, punitive or 
consequential damages under, arising out of, or in connection with the performance or non-
performance of this Agreement, whether based on contract, tort, strict liability, warranty, 
indemnity or otherwise, except as expressly provided in this Agreement. 
 

9.3 Indemnity by Municipality.  Municipality agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless MRES and its officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all 
claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of or related to any breach or default in the performance by Municipality of any of its obligations 
under this Agreement. 
 

9.4 Indemnity by MRES.  MRES agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
Municipality and its officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all 
claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of or related to any breach or default in the performance by MRES of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
GENERAL TERMS 

  
10.1 Records.  The Parties, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles and practices, will keep and maintain such records as may be necessary or useful in 
carrying out this Agreement, and make such records available to the other Party for inspection. 

Page 129Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 13 

 

 
10.2 Uncontrollable Forces.  Neither MRES nor Municipality will be considered to be 

in default of any obligation under this Agreement if prevented from fulfilling such obligation by 
reason of an Uncontrollable Force.  If either Party cannot fulfill an obligation under this 
Agreement because of an Uncontrollable Force, that Party will notify the other Party within one 
business day of the occurrence.  A Party rendered unable to fulfill any obligation by reason of an 
Uncontrollable Force must exercise due diligence to remove such inability as soon as practicable. 

 
10.3 Notices.  Any notice required by this Agreement will be given in writing unless 

otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement.  All notices will be deemed properly given if 
delivered personally or sent by U.S. mail, first-class postage prepaid to a Party at the address set 
forth on the signature page of this Agreement.  Either Party may change its designation of the 
person or position who is to receive notices on its behalf by giving the other Party written notice 
of such change. 
 

10.4 Assignment.  Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other Party, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, MRES may assign this Agreement to Western Minnesota Municipal Power 
Agency and may collaterally pledge and assign this Agreement as security for debt obligations of 
MRES or Western Minnesota Municipal Power Agency. 
 

10.5 Binding Effect.  All of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement will 
be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by, the Parties and their 
respective successors, heirs, executors and permitted assigns. 

 
10.6 Survival.  Notwithstanding any other term or condition of this Agreement, the 

terms of Section 4.2, Article 9, and Article 10 will survive termination or expiration of this 
Agreement.  
 

10.7 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to any extent to be 
invalid, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected and every other provision of this 
Agreement will be valid and in force to the fullest extent allowed by law.  
 

10.8 No Waiver.  No failure on the part of any Party to exercise, and no delay in 
exercising, any right or remedy under this Agreement will preclude any other or further exercise 
thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy.  No remedy conferred upon the Parties under 
this Agreement is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy will be cumulative and in 
addition to every other remedy available under this Agreement or at law or in equity. 
 

10.9 Governing Law.  With the exception of other state or federal statutes and 
regulations governing the operation of the Units, this Agreement will be governed by the laws of 
the state in which the Units are located. 
 

10.10 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all exhibits attached hereto which 
are incorporated herein by this reference, contain and constitute the entire agreement between the 
Parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements between the 

Page 130Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 14 

 

Parties relating to the subject matter hereof, including the Reserved Capacity Agreement 
between the Parties dated _____________.  This Agreement may not be amended, modified or 
terminated, except by a written instrument signed by both Parties.  
 

10.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, 
each of which will be an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same 
instrument.  A facsimile or PDF copy of this Agreement and any signature thereon will be 
considered for all purposes as an original. 
 

[Signature Page Follows] 
  

Page 131Item 13.



 

Reserved Capacity Agreement 
Page 15 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Reserved Capacity 
Agreement to be executed as of the date and year first written above. 
 
MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL  
POWER AGENCY d/b/a MISSOURI  
RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 

 
 

By:                                                               
Name:      Terry Wolf                                  
Title:  Vice President of Power Supply & 
Operations  
 
Notice Address: 
Missouri River Energy Services 
Attn: Legal Department 
3724 West Avera Drive 
P.O. Box 88920  
Sioux Falls, SD 57109-8920  
 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA    
 
 
 
 
By:                                                              
Name:                                                          
Title:                                                            
 
 
Notice Address: 
Attn: Robert Byrnes 
344 W Main St 
Marshall, MN 56258 
 
 

 
 
 
List of Exhibits (Attached) 
Exhibit A – Reserved Capacity Table 
Exhibit B – Point of Delivery Description 
Exhibit C – Transmission and Additional Facilities Arrangements 
Exhibit D – Operating Procedures 
Exhibit E – Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements 

Page 132Item 13.



Exhibit A: RESERVED CAPACITY TABLE  
 

This Reserved Capacity Table is hereby made a part of the Reserved Capacity Agreement between Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) and 
Marshall, Minnesota (the Municipality). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(1) Reserved Capacity (kW) is the unit’s generation capacity based on the GVTC test, after transformer losses and station service load, rounded down to the nearest 100 kW. The 
Capacity Totals must be less than the transmission service limits and behind the meter load constraints, as determined by MRES. 
 

MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
 
 
By: 

 
 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
Name: 

 
 

 
Title: 

 
 

 

Unit No. 
Type: 

CT, IC Fuel(s) 
Year in 
Service 

Nameplate 
Rating (kW) GVTC Test Date 

Reserved 
Capacity (kW)(1) 

6 CT FO 1969 21,176 7/12/22 15,500 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
On-Site Fuel Storage Capacity: 60,000 Gallons Capacity Totals (kW): 15,500 

MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 
d/b/a MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 
 
By: 

 
 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
Name: 

 
Terry Wolf 

 
Title: 

 
Vice President of Power Supply & Operations 

Page 133Item 13.



Exhibit B: POINT OF DELIVERY DESCRIPTION 
 

 
This Point of Delivery Description is hereby made a part of the Reserved Capacity Agreement 
between Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) and Marshall, Minnesota (the Municipality). 
 
1. The attached diagram of the Municipality's electrical system shows the configuration of its 

equipment. The Point of Delivery shall be where the Plant bus interconnects with the 
distribution system of the Municipality.  

 
2. The Municipality shall provide and install electronic interval metering of revenue accuracy 

capable of recording demand and energy at 15 or 30-minute intervals. MRES may establish 
remote communication from the meter to MRES’s software by a telephone number using a 
dial up connection or the meter’s IP address using an Ethernet connection. If meters are 
replaced or newly installed by the Municipality, they shall be Schweitzer SEL-735 or a newer 
equivalent model as approved by MRES and be able to communicate via dial up connection or 
Ethernet connection. This metering shall also be compatible with the MRES meter data 
translation scheme. The metering scheme shall be installed so that the total load of the 
Municipality and the total generation by the Municipality can be determined from these 
recordings and the recordings of the Municipality’s metering. The metering scheme shall also 
ensure that any time a Unit is generating, it will not reduce the Municipality’s overall billing 
demand or billing energy consumption.  

 
3. If the generation is not metered at or towards the load side of the generator step-up 

transformer, if the facility has one, the meter readings shall be adjusted downwards by one 
percent.  

Page 134Item 13.



~ 

I 
i 
~ 

I~ 
I~ . -

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

"'" 

"'" N£. 

ERIE ROAD SUBSTATION 

"" 

n"R 

TI 

115A -13.IYU 
UMVAOA!iS'C 
2SMVAFA65"C 

WITHL'" ....... ..". 

n 

I 'N" 
1UFABTIUVER E D I [ 

I 

I 

L_ 
"'" 

11'0. -13'syn' 
UMVAOA,WC 
28 MVAFA6S"C 

WITHL'" 
IMP- ."'" 

1----:----------
SOUTHWEST SUBSTATION 

I CO.RD7 S41l1ST SJJlATOGA NHWY23 SPAn 

21.llfi~AI) 

llSA -ll.lIYn' 
16.2122A12S MY A, 65"(: 

WITHLUO 
IMP-9.29% 

CAP'''' 

115.6. - 34.sY:KV 
Il.4l17.9fl2.4MVA, 6S"C 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

ro __ F_~·L 
~·g~jtr/· 

DATE DESCRIF1ION 

TO XCEL ENERGY 
:L.ArillYANJ(lUNSUB 

IIIIII 

-I 
nIDUSTlUAL pARX.1 

WASTBWA'I'BI. I 

AllU'ORT 

NBWY59 

ADMin 

ADM" 

I 

I 

I 

"'14' 

1 
I 

"'",·n.BYKV ~ 
31N44.I1156MVA,6S'C ~ 

WITHL'" 

""' .. " 

--

""" I 

--

I 

I 

NORTH 7TH ST. SUBSTATION I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
EHWYlll 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

L ADMlll ADM--=--ADMff3 CAPBANK SPARE ADM" 

~ 

ADM" 

-~ 
,----- - - - -

I I SARATOGA SUBSTATION 

I 

I 

I 

I 

"'" 'y1" 

L 

~ 

DIIWIld Grant Recbrt &: AMoo. Co. 
CDII!IIltinj EngimItn 

Rock RIIpids. Iowa 

D"" 
D~By; 

ProjIlCt~ 
Project NUIIIbw; 

llSA -ll.lIYn' 
lSMVAOASS"C 
2I1MVAFAM"C 

WITHL'" 
IMP-1I.63% 

~" 
TWM 

CAR 

42(000 

STATION I 

SBRV>CB 

N""'" I 

I 
N4n1ST 

I 
EAlITHlGH 

I 
NORTHSIDE 

I 
SOU"IHWIlST 

I 
WESTSIDE 

I 
"ARB 
~ 

MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

r-- --

ADM" 

CNIYROAD33 

"'U 

SCHOOLB ... 

L --

I 
I COO>" 

I ssu 

I O<X>NNEU. 

I PAIKSIDE 

I "ARB 

I 

L 

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

SWITClllNG STATION SUBSTATION 
T ~ 

--

I,,,,, 

te/ 
lISA-ll.BYKV 

IS MVAOA SS"C 
2IMVAFAfiS"C 

WITHL'" 

~ 
I--------n---l-TO XCEL ENBRGY 

IMP-1.74% LYON CN'IY SUB 

" XCEL40MVARCAP 
(CONNECI'ED 30 MVAR) 

L ~ -- -- -- -- -- -- --

SOUTHEAST SUBSTATION 

'N" 

I "te/--+ 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

lISA _ll.IIYICV 
ISMVAOASS"C 
18MYAFAM-(; 

WITHL'" 
IMP-8.6O% 

115 ICY FACILITIES 

34.S KVFACILITIES 

13.8 KV FACILITIES 

------j ~ CAPACITOR BANK. 

GOABSWITCH 

LEGEND 

""00 
N.C. 

"'" 

D 

~ 

ClRCUIT BBEAKER 

I-- ClRCUlT SWITCHER 

@ GENERATOR 

-l--
SYSTEM ONE-LINE DIAGRAM 

D 
W 
G 

N 
o 

1 OF 1 Page 135Item 13.



 
 

Exhibit C: TRANSMISSION AND ADDITIONAL FACILITIES ARRANGEMENTS 
 

 
These Transmission and Additional Facilities Arrangements are hereby made a part of the 
Reserved Capacity Agreement between Missouri River Energy Services (MRES) and Marshall, 
Minnesota (the Municipality). 
 
1. The Municipality is interconnected with the 115 kV transmission facilities of Northern States 

Power Company (Minnesota) which are integrated with the high voltage transmission network of 
the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. (MISO).    
 

Page 136Item 13.



1  

EXHIBIT D 
TO RESERVED CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

 
OPERATING PROCEDURES 

 
These Operating Procedures are made a part of the Reserved Capacity Agreement between Missouri 
River Energy Services (“MRES”) and Marshall, Minnesota (“Municipality”). 

1. Municipality will maintain each Unit in readily operable condition so it can be placed into 
service, synchronized in parallel with the regional interconnected transmission system, and 
loaded to full Reserved Capacity within an acceptable call-out and start-up period for MRES 
peaking or emergency capacity. An acceptable call-out and start-up period for Reserved 
Capacity will be within two hours following notice by MRES. MRES, from time to time, may 
engage in tests and exercises to ensure that each Unit is able to meet these requirements, and 
Municipality will cooperate accordingly. 

 
2. A Unit may be dispatched only as provided in Section 6.8 of the Agreement. For any GVTC 

Tests, generation schedules will be provided by MRES not later than noon of the prior business 
day. The schedules may be revised from time to time on reasonable notice and by mutual 
agreement of the Parties. 

 
3. For Reserved Capacity that does not have remote control capability installed, Municipality will 

have personnel available to operate the Units when called upon by MRES. 
 
4. Municipality will notify the MRES Scheduling Desk of any Unit outages, limitations, or other 

changes in a Unit’s status, including the failure of Reserved Capacity to start remotely. 
 
5. Municipality will strive, during each dispatch or test period, to have each Unit generating at the 

full amount scheduled (normally from on-the-hour to on-the-hour time intervals) for each 
respective hour. Startup, shutdown, and changes from one hour to the next will follow a ramp- 
up or ramp-down process across the hour (not to exceed a ten-minute period starting five 
minutes before the next hour). 

 
6. If any problem occurs during operation of a Unit, Municipality will immediately contact MRES 

or Local Balancing Authority as applicable. See the table below for contact information. 
 

 MUNICIPALITY MRES LBA: Xcel 
 

Contact Person 
 

Plant Operator 
Scheduling 

Desk 
Local Balancing 

Authority 
Telephone 507-537-7005 605-330-6966 612-321-7432 

 
7. The minimum operating time that each Units is to be scheduled is one hour. 

 
8. MRES will consider the physical constraints and operating characteristics of the Units, such as 

startup and shutdown limitations as well as minimum and maximum continuous and peak 
generation levels of each Unit, when dispatching the Units. 

Page 137Item 13.



2  

9. MRES will endeavor to schedule the Units so as not to exceed any known operating limit or air 
quality permits. However, Municipality is responsible for ensuring the Units are not operated 
in excess of any operating limits or permits. 

 
10. Municipality will, at the end of each month in which a Unit is operated, submit to MRES a 

monthly unit report and any other reports as may be reasonably requested by MRES. 
 
11. Municipality and MRES will mutually agree upon, and put into effect, from time to time, such 

other operating procedures as may be required in order to establish the methods of operation to 
be followed in the performance of the Agreement and these Operating Procedures. 

 
These Operating Procedures are approved and effective as of  , 2023. These 
Operating Procedures will remain in effect concurrently with the Agreement and will terminate 
therewith. 

 
MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 
d/b/a MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 

 
 

By:   
Name: Terry Wolf 
Title: Vice President of Power Supply & Operations 

 
 

Marshall, Minnesota  
 
 

By:   
Name:    
Title:     

Page 138Item 13.



1  

EXHIBIT E 
TO RESERVED CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

 
RESERVED CAPACITY QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 
These Reserved Capacity Qualification Requirements are made a part of the Reserved Capacity 
Agreement between Missouri River Energy Services (“MRES”) and Marshall, Minnesota 
(“Municipality”). 

 
For each Unit to remain Planning Reserve Qualified, the Municipality must meet the 
requirements specified in this Exhibit in addition to those specified in the Agreement. 

 
1. Municipality will perform an annual GVTC Test as follows: 

a) Each Unit will be tested. MRES may schedule all Units to operate simultaneously. 
b) The test will be performed at least once each year, between September 1 and August 

31. 
c) The test will operate the Unit at full load for at least one full hour for diesel units, and 

at least two hours for steam and combined cycle units. 
 

2. Municipality will provide outage reporting as follows: 
a) Municipality will report any planned outages to MRES in advance and any unplanned 

outages and startup failures to MRES as soon as possible upon determination. 
b) Municipality will report any generation production or availability data required by 

NERC, an RTO, or other regional entities to such entities. 
 

3. Municipality will provide staffing and callout responsiveness and capabilities as follows: 
a) For remote operation, the Unit will respond within ten minutes’ notice. For other 

scheduled operation, the Unit will respond within two hours. 
b) Responding includes producing at the full scheduled amount within the specified 

time. 
c) The Unit is expected to operate when scheduled, unless excused via a previously 

agreed scheduled outage. 
d) Municipality will respond to MRES staff, MRES’s agent, or the Balancing Area as 

specified in the Operating Procedures. 
e) The Unit will be prepared to operate for a minimum of twenty-four consecutive hours 

per day for at least five consecutive days each year. 
f) The Unit will be permitted, and capable of operating, for at least 450 hours per year. 

 
4. Municipality will maintain fuel storage and availability as follows: 

a) Municipality will maintain sufficient fuel storage and handling facilities in good 
repair and in operational condition. Damage to or failure of Municipality’s fuel 
storage or handling facilities will be repaired or corrected by Municipality on a timely 
basis at Municipality’s expense. 

b) For Units operated on liquid fuel, on-site fuel storage will be sufficient to maintain 
the full Reserved Capacity for a minimum of twenty hours prior to start-up. In 
addition, sufficient storage and replenishment capability will be arranged to ensure 
capability to operate at the full Reserved Capacity. Written documentation from fuel 

Page 139Item 13.



2  

supplier(s) for fuel delivery to meet these requirements is necessary to ensure a Unit 
is Planning Reserve Qualified. 

c) Municipality shall be required to have availability during all seasons. Fuel systems 
shall be designed to perform during all conditions reasonably anticipated, specifically 
extreme cold weather and extreme hot weather conditions. 

d) Firm delivery is not required for natural gas supply, so long as the Unit meets all 
requirements to be Planning Reserve Qualified but may be a requirement in the 
future or once a Unit experiences a natural gas supply interruption while scheduled to 
operate. 

 
MRES may update these requirements as necessary to remain consistent with RTO and regional 
planning reserve qualification requirements. 

 
This Exhibit is approved and effective as of  , 2023. 

 
MISSOURI BASIN MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 
d/b/a MISSOURI RIVER ENERGY SERVICES 

 
 

By:   
Name: Terry Wolf 
Title: Vice President of Power Supply & Operations 
 
 
MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
 
By:   
Name: _________________________________ 
Title:             

Page 140Item 13.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 

Presenter: Jason Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project AP-003:  Airport Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) Building - Consider Rejection of Bids 

Background 

Information: 

The City of Marshall Public Works desires to construct a new Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) and 
Maintenance Equipment Storage Building at the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport. The 
existing building does not adequately accommodate all airport maintenance equipment storage 
needs. The new facility is planned to be constructed on the East Building Area of the airport, as 
shown on the recently completed Airport Master Plan. The Project has been identified on the 
Airport CIP since FFY2011.  
 
The following is the most recent timeline received from TKDA, the City’s consultant: 

February 21st – TKDA to provide Ad for Bids, Estimate, and Plans and Specifications (99%) 
to the city for the council packet. 
February 28th – City Council approves advertising for bids 
March 1st – Post Plans and Specifications (100%) to QuestCDN 
April 3rd – Bid Opening 
April 11th – City Council conditionally accepts bid, and approves application for funding 
April 14th – Grant application to FAA and MnDOT Aeronautics 
August 1st – Award Construction Contract (120 days after bid opening) 
September – November 2023 – site improvements 
April 2024 – September 2024 – building construction (not to begin before April 1, 2024) 
October 2024 – final completion and occupancy 

 
Historical reference for action items relating to the project: 
03/23/2021 - Council authorized the first transfer of Airport Federal Entitlement Funds and 
authorized execution and filing of FAA Form 5100-110 for the transfer of $150,000 of MML 
Airport 2021 Federal Entitlement Funds to Dodge Center, MN (TOB).  
 

        Background: Based on the timeline above, the City’s consultant, TKDA, proposed that two 
entitlement transfers be performed, one in 2021 (Dodge Center, MN-TOB), and one in 2022 
(Waseca, MN-ACQ), to ensure that those entitlements do not expire. These entitlement transfers 
will provide the City and TKDA with enough time to prepare the necessary pre-project planning 
documents to secure state aeronautics funding while also helping the City to secure enough FAA 
entitlement funds to facilitate the construction of this improvement in 2023.  
 
Based on 03/23/2021 Council authorization of the first transfer of Airport Federal Entitlement 
Funds to Dodge Center, MN, the proposed timeline was presented as follows: 

Phase 1 - 2021: Preliminary Design Study and Funding Plan 
Phase 2 - 2022: Design and Site Preparation 
Phase 3 - 2023: Construction 

 

Page 141Item 14.



10/12/2021 - Council authorized acceptance of the Proposal with TKDA for a Predesign Study in 
the amount of $35,000.00. 
 
03/08/2022 - Council authorized the second transfer of Airport Federal Entitlement Funds and 
authorized execution and filing of FAA Form 5100-110 for the transfer of $150,000 of MML 
Airport 2022 Federal Entitlement Funds to Waseca, MN (ACQ). (See 03/23/2021 regarding first 
transfer.) 
 
04/26/2022 - Council authorized TKDA submittal of an FAA Grant Application in the amount 
of $135,598.00. Total design cost in the request for grant funding was $297,000.00. This total 
included $7,000 in local project costs and $35,000 reimbursement for the TKDA pre-design study. 
 
05/10/2022 - City Council authorized acceptance of the Proposal with TKDA for Design Phase 
Services in the amount of $255,000 with services under this proposal, contingent on receipt of 
the federal and State grant agreements. 
 
08/15/2022 - FAA Grant Agreement 3-27-0056-019-2022 received and electronically signed by 
Mayor and City Attorney. 
 
09/13/2022 - City Council acknowledgement of FAA Grant Agreement 3-27-0056-019-2022 for 
Funding of Site and Building Design in the amount of $135,598.00.  
 
09/27/2022 - Consider Resolution of Authorization to Execute MnDOT Grant Agreement 
No. 1051776 for funding of Site and Building Design in the amount of $109,968.00. 
 
10/20/2022 - Submission of 2023 Federal Grant Initiation Request to ensure eligible utilization of 
all Airport entitlements and indicating the project is planned to utilize both the airports AIP and 
AIG funding available in 2023. At the time of submission of Initiation Request, it was noted that 
the building design was just beginning, and the funding eligibility and prorates would be revisited 
prior to the grant application.  
 
02/07/2023 – Most recent TKDA presentation of project to the Airport Commission. Commission 
member Ron Halgerson has served as the Airport Commission representative to the project to 
help review project plans and offer outside input to the project.  
 
02/14/2023 - Project presented to Public Improvement/Transportation Committee for their 
information. 
 
02/28/2023 - City Council authorization to advertise for bids. 
 
04/03/2023 - Bids received – One bid was received from Sussner Construction, Inc. in the amount 
of $4,346,000, which substantially exceeds the construction cost estimate of $3,118,023 for 
construction costs. Total estimated project budget, including construction administration and 
special testing costs, was $3,353,023. At the Airport Commission meeting on 04/04/2023, Airport 
Commission discussed and recommended a re-evaluation of the project scope, bidding 
requirements and potential cost control measures for the City’s review/consideration. 
 
If the Council elects to reject the bid received, it is recommended that City staff work with TKDA 
and the Airport Commission to re-evaluate the bid package to ensure that the project is 
economical. Staff would propose to seek City Council authorization to bid a re-evaluated project 
in late 2023 or early 2024.  
 

Page 142Item 14.



Fiscal Impact: Current project cost estimate is $3,353,023, including construction administration and special 
inspections fees. Local cost participation with this estimate is roughly $1,059,000.  
 
Additional costs over the project estimate will fall largely upon the City of Marshall. A project that 
is $1M over budget may result in local costs that are $1M greater than originally anticipated. Our 
federal funding allotment is capped due to programmatic limitations placed upon the project by 
FAA funding policy. State funding is capped at $1M annually by MnDOT Aeronautics policy. 
Additional State funding to help offset local costs is possible, but not guaranteed.  
 
Further, a recommendation to reject bids will require the City to seek a transfer partner for 
expiring Federal AIP funds. City staff would work with TKDA to find a suitable airport to transfer 
$150,000 in Federal AIP funds to ensure that we do not allow the funds to expire. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 
 

Recommendations: that the City Council to reject the bid received April 3, 2023 and authorize City staff to work with 
TKDA and the Airport Commission to re-evaluate the project AP-003 bid package to ensure the 
project is more economical. 

 

Page 143Item 14.



Page 144Item 14.



Page 145Item 14.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Jason Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project ST-003: South 1st Street/Greeley Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution 
Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 
2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment 

Background 

Information: 

This project consisted of:  reconstruction and utility replacement on South 1st Street 
from George Street to Greeley Street, on Greeley Street from West College Drive to 
Saratoga Street, and on Williams Street from Maple Street to George Street; sanitary 
sewer, watermain, and storm sewer will be replaced. This project also included new curb 
& gutter, new 5-ft. sidewalk on one or both sides of the streets, driveway aprons, water 
services, and sewer services to the right-of-way. 

Fiscal Impact: Attached please find a “Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the 
Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for the project. The following is a breakdown 
of the proposed project funding. The costs shown below include 16% for engineering 
and administrative costs, for a total project cost of $1,904,144. The following is a 
proposed breakdown of the project funding:   
 
 Wastewater Fund $379,680 
 MMU $689,719 
 Surface Water Management Utility $105,927 
 City Participation (Ad Valorem) $360,050 
 Assessed to Property Owners     $368,768 
 Total Project Amount $1,904,144 
 
Attached please find the “Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment,” setting the 
hearing date for the proposed assessments on May 23, 2023, for the above-referenced 
project.  
 
Per the current Fee Schedule, the assessment interest rate is calculated using the most 
recent bond interest rate and adding 2% for administrative costs. Per Finance, the 2022A 
Bonding has a Net Interest Cost of 2.1% for the Street Improvements, plus 2%, results in 
a 4.1% interest rate for Special Assessments. 
 
The term of the assessment repayment is proposed by staff to be 8 years. The City has no 
formal written policy on the term but has followed an administrative past practice to 
generally match the assessment repayment to the bond repayment term. If the 
assessment is substantially higher in cases such as commercial assessments, it may be 
appropriate to increase the assessment repayment term. Alternatively, on smaller 
assessment projects consideration could be made to shorten the assessment term. One 
other item to note is that if additional principal is paid each year the interest is 
recalculated annually to address the payments. Therefore, there is no penalty for 
individuals to repay on a more accelerated schedule if they choose. 
 Page 146Item 15.



Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendations: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-032, which provides for the 
“Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation of the Proposed 
Assessment” for Project ST-003: South 1st Street/Greeley Reconstruction Project. 
 
that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-033, which provides for the 
“Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment” for Project ST-003: South 1st 
Street/Greeley Reconstruction Project setting the hearing date on the proposed 
assessments for May 23, 2023. 
 

 

 

Page 147Item 15.



COST BREAKDOWN

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
Per Pay Request #9 (Final) dated 12/08/2022

SURFACE
WATER

SPECIAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
ITEM TOTAL ASSESSMENTS FUND MMU Mn/DOT UTILITY AD VALOREM

SANITARY SEWER $299,471 $74,185 $225,286
WATERMAIN $421,120 $0 $421,120
STORM SEWER $86,613 $0 $86,613
DRIVEWAY $16,739 $16,739 $0 $0
SIDEWALK $3,303 $3,303 $0
STREET $1,076,898 $274,542 $154,394 $268,599 $0 $19,313 $360,050
TOTALS $1,904,144 $368,768 $379,680 $689,719 $0 $105,926 $360,050
% PARTICIPATION 100.0% 19.4% 19.9% 36.2% 0.0% 5.6% 18.9%

CONTRACT AMOUNT 1,641,503.05
      CONTINGENCIES 0.00 0%

1,641,503.05
       ENG. & ADMIN. 262,640.49 16%

1,904,143.54

Project ST-003:  South 1st Street/Greeley Street/Williams Street Reconstruction Project

Cost Breakdown (ST-003) Cost Breakdown
Page 148Item 15.



 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-032 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARING COST TO BE ASSESSED, 

AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 
 

WHEREAS, costs have been determined for the following project: 
 

PROJECT ST-003: SOUTH 1ST STREET/GREELEY RECONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT - This project consisted of the following: reconstruction and utility 
replacement on South 1st Street from George Street to Greeley Street, on Greeley 
Street from West College Drive to Saratoga Street, and on Williams Street from Maple 
Street to George Street; sanitary sewer, watermain, and storm sewer will be replaced. 
This project also included new curb & gutter, new 5-ft. sidewalk on one or both sides of 
the streets, driveway aprons, water services, and sewer services to the right-of-way. 

 
 AND WHEREAS, the price for such improvement is $1,641,503, and the estimated expenses 
incurred in the making of such improvement amount to $262,640, so that the total estimated cost of the 
improvement will be $1,904,143. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The portion of the cost to be assessed against benefited property owners is declared 
to be approximately $368,768. The portion of the cost to be paid by the Wastewater 
Fund is hereby declared to be approximately $379,680. The portion of the cost of 
the project to be paid by MMU is hereby declared to be approximately $689,719. The 
portion of the cost to be paid by the Surface Water Management Utility is hereby 
declared to be approximately $105,927. The portion of the cost to be paid by the City 
(Ad Valorem) is hereby declared to be approximately $360,050. 

 
2. Assessments shall be payable in equal annual principal installments extending over 

a period of eight (8) years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the 
first Monday in January, 2024, and shall bear interest at the rate of 4.1% per annum 
from the date of the adoption of the assessment resolution. 

 
3. The City Clerk, with the assistance of the City Engineer, shall forthwith calculate the 

proper amount to be specially assessed for such improvement against every 
assessable lot, piece or parcel of land within the district affected, without regard to 
cash valuation, as provided by law, and he shall file a copy of such proposed 
assessment in his office for public inspection. 

 
4. The City Clerk shall upon the completion of such proposed assessment, notify the 

City Council thereof. 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this 25th day of April , 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 
    Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 

Page 149Item 15.



RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-033 
 

RESOLUTION FOR HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, by a resolution passed by the Council on April 25, 2023, the City Clerk was directed to 
prepare a proposed assessment of the cost of the improvements for the following project: 
 

PROJECT ST-003: SOUTH 1ST STREET/GREELEY RECONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT - This project consisted of the following: reconstruction and utility replacement 
on South 1st Street from George Street to Greeley Street, on Greeley Street from West 
College Drive to Saratoga Street, and on Williams Street from Maple Street to George 
Street; sanitary sewer, watermain, and storm sewer will be replaced. This project also 
included new curb & gutter, new 5-ft. sidewalk on one or both sides of the streets, driveway 
aprons, water services, and sewer services to the right-of-way. 

 
AND WHEREAS, the City Clerk has notified the City Council that such proposed assessment has 

been completed and filed in his office for public inspection. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. A hearing shall be held on the 23rd day of May 2023 in the Council Chambers of City Hall located 
at 344 West Main Street to pass upon such proposed assessment, and at such time and place all 
persons owning property affected by such improvement will be given an opportunity to be heard 
with reference to such assessment. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a notice of the hearing on the proposed assessment 

to be published once in the official newspaper at least two weeks prior to the hearing, and he shall 
state in the notice the total cost of the improvement. He shall also cause mailed notice to be given 
to the owner of each parcel described in the assessment roll not less than two weeks prior to the 
hearing. 

 
3. The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the assessment 

to the County Auditor, pay the whole of the assessment on such property, with interest accrued 
to the date of payment to the City of Marshall, except that no interest shall be charged if the entire 
assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of the assessment. They may at any time 
thereafter, pay to the City of Marshall, the entire amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, 
with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made. Such payment 
must be made before October 15 or interest will be charged through December 31 of the 
succeeding year. 

 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this 25th day of April 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 

 

Page 150Item 15.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Jason Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project ST-004:  Halbur Road Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be 
Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on 
Proposed Assessment 

Background 

Information: 

This project consisted of:  reconstruction and utility replacement on Halbur Road from Michigan 
Street to Erie Road (CR 33); sanitary sewer and storm sewer will be replaced with a concrete 
paved surfacing. This project also included new curb & gutter, driveway aprons, and sewer 
services to the right-of-way. 

Fiscal Impact: Attached please find a “Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation 
of the Proposed Assessment” for the project. The following is a breakdown of the proposed 
project funding. The costs shown below include 16% for engineering and administrative costs, 
for a total project cost of $1,302,340. The following is a proposed breakdown of the project 
funding:   
 
 Wastewater Fund $275,407 
 MMU $20,181 
 Surface Water Management Utility $291,210 
 City Participation (Ad Valorem) $356,769 
 Assessed to Property Owners     $358,773 
 Total Project Amount $1,302,340 
 
Attached please find the “Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment,” setting the hearing 
date for the proposed assessments on May 23, 2023, for the above-referenced project.  
 
Per the current Fee Schedule, the assessment interest rate is calculated using the most recent 
bond interest rate and adding 2% for administrative costs. Per Finance, the 2022A Bonding has 
a Net Interest Cost of 2.1% for the Street Improvements, plus 2%, results in a 4.1% interest rate 
for Special Assessments. 
 
The term of the assessment repayment is proposed by staff to be 8 years. The City has no formal 
written policy on the term but has followed an administrative past practice to generally match 
the assessment repayment to the bond repayment term. If the assessment is substantially higher 
in cases such as commercial assessments, it may be appropriate to increase the assessment 
repayment term. Alternatively, on smaller assessment projects consideration could be made to 
shorten the assessment term. One other item to note is that if additional principal is paid each 
year the interest is recalculated annually to address the payments. Therefore, there is no penalty 
for individuals to repay on a more accelerated schedule if they choose. 
 

Page 151Item 16.



Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendations: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-034, which provides for the “Resolution 
Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for 
Project ST-004:  Halbur Road Reconstruction Project. 
 
that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-035, which provides for the “Resolution for 
Hearing on Proposed Assessment” for Project ST-004:  Halbur Road Reconstruction Project 
setting the hearing date on the proposed assessments for May 23, 2023. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 152Item 16.



COST BREAKDOWN

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
Per Pay Request #6 dated 03/16/2023

SURFACE
WATER

SPECIAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
ITEM TOTAL ASSESSMENTS FUND MMU Mn/DOT UTILITY AD VALOREM

SANITARY SEWER $136,960 $20,519 $116,441
WATERMAIN $19,111 $0 $19,111
STORM SEWER $255,505 $0 $255,505
DRIVEWAY $56,606 $39,620 $0 $16,987
SIDEWALK $0 $0 $0
STREET $834,158 $298,634 $158,966 $1,070 $0 $35,705 $339,783
TOTALS $1,302,340 $358,773 $275,407 $20,181 $0 $291,210 $356,769
% PARTICIPATION 100.0% 27.5% 21.1% 1.5% 0.0% 22.4% 27.4%

CONTRACT AMOUNT 1,122,707.21
      CONTINGENCIES 0.00 0%

1,122,707.21
       ENG. & ADMIN. 179,633.15 16%

1,302,340.36

Project ST-004:  Halbur Road Reconstruction Project

Cost Breakdown (ST-004) Cost Breakdown
Page 153Item 16.



 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-034 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARING COST TO BE ASSESSED, 

AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 
 

WHEREAS, costs have been determined for the following project: 
 

PROJECT ST-004: HALBUR ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT -- This project 
consisted of: reconstruction and utility replacement on Halbur Road from Michigan Street 
to Erie Road (CR 33); sanitary sewer and storm sewer will be replaced with a concrete 
paved surfacing. This project also included new curb & gutter, driveway aprons, and sewer 
services to the right-of-way.   

 
 AND WHEREAS, the price for such improvement is $1,122,707, and the estimated expenses 
incurred in the making of such improvement amount to $179,633, so that the total estimated cost of the 
improvement will be $1,302,340. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The portion of the cost to be assessed against benefited property owners is declared 
to be approximately $358,773. The portion of the cost to be paid by the Wastewater 
Fund is hereby declared to be approximately $275,407. The portion of the cost of 
the project to be paid by MMU is hereby declared to be approximately $20,181. The 
portion of the cost to be paid by the Surface Water Management Utility is hereby 
declared to be approximately $291,210. The portion of the cost to be paid by the City 
(Ad Valorem) is hereby declared to be approximately $356,769. 

 
2. Assessments shall be payable in equal annual principal installments extending over 

a period of eight (8) years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the 
first Monday in January, 2024, and shall bear interest at the rate of 4.1% per annum 
from the date of the adoption of the assessment resolution. 

 
3. The City Clerk, with the assistance of the City Engineer, shall forthwith calculate the 

proper amount to be specially assessed for such improvement against every 
assessable lot, piece or parcel of land within the district affected, without regard to 
cash valuation, as provided by law, and he shall file a copy of such proposed 
assessment in his office for public inspection. 

 
4. The City Clerk shall upon the completion of such proposed assessment, notify the 

City Council thereof. 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this   25th day of April, 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 
    Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 

Page 154Item 16.



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-035 SECOND SERIES 
 

RESOLUTION FOR HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, by a resolution passed by the Council on April 25, 2023, the City Clerk was directed to 
prepare a proposed assessment of the cost of the improvements for the following project: 
 

PROJECT ST-004: HALBUR ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT -- This project 
consisted of: reconstruction and utility replacement on Halbur Road from Michigan Street to 
Erie Road (CR 33); sanitary sewer and storm sewer will be replaced with a concrete paved 
surfacing. This project also included new curb & gutter, driveway aprons, and sewer services 
to the right-of-way.   
 
AND WHEREAS, the City Clerk has notified the City Council that such proposed assessment has 

been completed and filed in his office for public inspection. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. A hearing shall be held on the 23rd day of May 2023 in the Council Chambers of City Hall located 
at 344 West Main Street to pass upon such proposed assessment, and at such time and place all 
persons owning property affected by such improvement will be given an opportunity to be heard 
with reference to such assessment. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a notice of the hearing on the proposed assessment 

to be published once in the official newspaper at least two weeks prior to the hearing, and he shall 
state in the notice the total cost of the improvement. He shall also cause mailed notice to be given 
to the owner of each parcel described in the assessment roll not less than two weeks prior to the 
hearing. 

 
3. The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the assessment 

to the County Auditor, pay the whole of the assessment on such property, with interest accrued 
to the date of payment to the City of Marshall, except that no interest shall be charged if the entire 
assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of the assessment. They may at any time 
thereafter, pay to the City of Marshall, the entire amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, 
with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made. Such payment 
must be made before October 15 or interest will be charged through December 31 of the 
succeeding year. 

 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this   25th day of April 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 

 

Page 155Item 16.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Jason Anderson 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) Reconstruction Project – 1) Resolution Declaring 
Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for 
Hearing on Proposed Assessment 

Background 

Information: 

The project included street and utility reconstruction of W. Lyon Street from College Drive to 
N. 1st Street including: street, sidewalk, curb and gutter, driveways, water main, sanitary 
sewer, and sewer and water service lines to the right of way. 

Fiscal Impact: Attached please find a “Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation 
of the Proposed Assessment” for the project. The following is a breakdown of the proposed 
project funding. The costs shown below include 16% for engineering and administrative costs, 
for a total project cost of $467,283. The following is a proposed breakdown of the project 
funding:   
 
 Wastewater Fund $68,939 
 MMU $131,349 
 Surface Water Management Utility $14,718 
 City Participation (Ad Valorem) $185,078 
 Assessed to Property Owners     $67,199 
 Total Project Amount $467,283 
 
Attached please find the “Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment,” setting the hearing 
date for the proposed assessments on May 23, 2023, for the above-referenced project.  
 
Per the current Fee Schedule, the assessment interest rate is calculated using the most recent 
bond interest rate and adding 2% for administrative costs. Per Finance, the 2022A Bonding has 
a Net Interest Cost of 2.1% for the Street Improvements, plus 2%, results in a 4.1% interest rate 
for Special Assessments. 
 
The term of the assessment repayment is proposed by staff to be 8 years. The City has no formal 
written policy on the term but has followed an administrative past practice to generally match 
the assessment repayment to the bond repayment term. If the assessment is substantially higher 
in cases such as commercial assessments, it may be appropriate to increase the assessment 
repayment term. Alternatively, on smaller assessment projects consideration could be made to 
shorten the assessment term. One other item to note is that if additional principal is paid each 
year the interest is recalculated annually to address the payments. Therefore, there is no penalty 
for individuals to repay on a more accelerated schedule if they choose. 
 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Page 156Item 17.



Recommendations: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-036, which provides for the “Resolution 
Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for 
Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) Reconstruction Project. 
 
that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-037, which provides for the “Resolution for 
Hearing on Proposed Assessment” for Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) 
Reconstruction Project setting the hearing date on the proposed assessments for May 23, 2023. 
 

 

 
 

Page 157Item 17.



COST BREAKDOWN

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
Per Pay Request #4 (Final) dated 11/01/2022

SURFACE
WATER

SPECIAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
ITEM TOTAL ASSESSMENTS FUND MMU Mn/DOT UTILITY AD VALOREM

SANITARY SEWER $30,669 $7,998 $22,671
WATERMAIN $51,672 $0 $51,672
STORM SEWER $8,052 $0 $8,052
DRIVEWAY $4,886 $2,549 $0 $2,337
SIDEWALK $0 $0 $0
STREET $372,004 $56,652 $46,268 $79,677 $0 $6,666 $182,741
TOTALS $467,283 $67,199 $68,939 $131,349 $0 $14,718 $185,078
% PARTICIPATION 100.0% 14.4% 14.8% 28.1% 0.0% 3.1% 39.6%

CONTRACT AMOUNT 402,830.25
      CONTINGENCIES 0.00 0%

402,830.25
       ENG. & ADMIN. 64,452.84 16%

467,283.09

Project ST-023: W Lyon Street Reconstruction Project (College to 1st)

Cost Breakdown (ST-023) Cost Breakdown
Page 158Item 17.



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-036 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING COST TO BE ASSESSED, 
AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 

 
WHEREAS, costs have been determined for the following project: 

 
PROJECT ST-023: W. LYON STREET (COLLEGE TO N. 1ST) RECONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT – The project included street and utility reconstruction of W. Lyon Street from 
College Drive to N. 1st Street including: street, sidewalk, curb and gutter, driveways, 
water main, sanitary sewer, and sewer and water service lines to the right of way. 

 
 AND WHEREAS, the price for such improvement is $402,830, and the estimated expenses 
incurred in the making of such improvement amount to $64,453, so that the total estimated cost of the 
improvement will be $467,283. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The portion of the cost to be assessed against benefited property owners is declared 
to be approximately $67,199. The portion of the cost to be paid by the Wastewater 
Fund is hereby declared to be approximately $68,939. The portion of the cost of the 
project to be paid by MMU is hereby declared to be approximately $131,349. The 
portion of the cost to be paid by the Surface Water Management Utility is hereby 
declared to be approximately $14,718. The portion of the cost to be paid by the City 
(Ad Valorem) is hereby declared to be approximately $185,078. 

 
2. Assessments shall be payable in equal annual principal installments extending over 

a period of eight (8) years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the 
first Monday in January, 2024, and shall bear interest at the rate of 4.1% per annum 
from the date of the adoption of the assessment resolution. 

 
3. The City Clerk, with the assistance of the City Engineer, shall forthwith calculate the 

proper amount to be specially assessed for such improvement against every 
assessable lot, piece or parcel of land within the district affected, without regard to 
cash valuation, as provided by law, and he shall file a copy of such proposed 
assessment in his office for public inspection. 

 
4. The City Clerk shall upon the completion of such proposed assessment, notify the 

City Council thereof. 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this   25th  day of  April , 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 
    Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 

Page 159Item 17.



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-037 
 

RESOLUTION FOR HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, by a resolution passed by the Council on April 25, 2023, the City Clerk was directed to 
prepare a proposed assessment of the cost of the improvements for the following project: 
 

PROJECT ST-023: W. LYON STREET (COLLEGE TO N. 1ST) RECONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT – The project included street and utility reconstruction of W. Lyon Street from College 
Drive to N. 1st Street including: street, sidewalk, curb and gutter, driveways, water main, sanitary 
sewer, and sewer and water service lines to the right of way. 
 
AND WHEREAS, the City Clerk has notified the City Council that such proposed assessment has 

been completed and filed in his office for public inspection. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. A hearing shall be held on the 23rd  day of May, 2023 in the Council Chambers of City Hall located 
at 344 West Main Street to pass upon such proposed assessment, and at such time and place all 
persons owning property affected by such improvement will be given an opportunity to be heard 
with reference to such assessment. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a notice of the hearing on the proposed assessment 

to be published once in the official newspaper at least two weeks prior to the hearing, and he shall 
state in the notice the total cost of the improvement. He shall also cause mailed notice to be given 
to the owner of each parcel described in the assessment roll not less than two weeks prior to the 
hearing. 

 
3. The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the assessment 

to the County Auditor, pay the whole of the assessment on such property, with interest accrued 
to the date of payment to the City of Marshall, except that no interest shall be charged if the entire 
assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of the assessment. They may at any time 
thereafter, pay to the City of Marshall, the entire amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, 
with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made. Such payment 
must be made before October 15 or interest will be charged through December 31 of the 
succeeding year. 

 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this   25th day of April, 2023. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 

Page 160Item 17.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: E.J. Moberg 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider a Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s GO Bond Series 2023A 

Background 
Information: 

The issuance of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A in the principal aggregate 
amount of $6,295,000 currently includes the following: 
 

 Abatement Portion: $600,000  
o Parking Lot Improvements 
o City Park Improvements 

 Street Reconstruction Portion: $3,680,000  
o North 3rd St./ W. Lyon St. Downtown Reconstruction 

 Utility Revenue Portion: $910,000 
o Legion Field Stormwater Improvements 

 Airport Portion: $1,105,000 
o SRE Building 

 
The resolution includes language that City staff may determine, in consultation with the 
Municipal Advisor and Bond Counsel, to adjust the Terms of Proposal to withdraw the Airport 
Bonds portion of the Bonds based on this Council’s concurrent or subsequent determination as 
to construction bids received in connection with the Airport Improvements. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Approve Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s GO Bond Series 2023A. 

 

Page 161Item 18.



3 
 

RESOLUTION 23-038 

 

 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE CITY’S 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2023A, IN THE ESTIMATED 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $6,295,000  

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Marshall, Minnesota (the 

“City”), in regular meeting assembled: 

 

1. Street Reconstruction Bonds. 

 

(a) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, as amended (“Chapter 475”), 

specifically Section 475.58, subdivision 3b (collectively, the “Street Reconstruction Act”), the City 

is authorized to issue general obligation bonds to finance street reconstruction and bituminous 

overlays, which may include: (i) utility replacement and relocation and other activities incidental 

to the street reconstruction; (ii) the addition or reconstruction of turn lanes, bicycle lanes, sidewalks, 

paths, and other improvements having a substantial public safety function; (iii) realignments and 

other modifications to intersect with state and county roads; and (iv) the local share of state and 

county road projects, but does not include, except in the case of (i) turn lanes, bicycles lanes, 

sidewalks, paths, or other safety improvements; (ii) realignments; (iii) intersection modifications; 

and (iv) the local share of state or county road projects, the portion of project costs allocable to 

widening a street or adding curbs and gutters where none previously existed.  

 

(b) As a condition to the issuance of general obligation street reconstruction bonds, 

the City must adopt a street reconstruction or overlay plan that describes the street reconstruction 

or overlay to be financed, the estimated costs, and any planned reconstruction or overlay of other 

streets in the municipality over the next five years, and such plan and issuance of the street 

reconstruction bonds must be approved by a vote of a two-thirds majority of the members of the 

governing body present following a public hearing for which notice has been published in the 

official newspaper at least ten (10) days but not more than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the 

hearing. 

 

(c) By resolution of the Council, adopted on April 11, 2023, the Council approved a 

five-year street reconstruction plan for the years 2023 through 2027 (the “Street Reconstruction 

Plan”) prepared in compliance with the Street Reconstruction Act and the proposed issuance of 

general obligation bonds (the “Street Reconstruction Bonds”), in the maximum principal amount 

of $3,700,000, to finance certain street reconstruction described in the Street Reconstruction Plan, 

including the project designated by the City as the N. 3rd St./W. Lyon St. Downtown 

Reconstruction Project  (the “Street Reconstruction”), by a vote of at least two-thirds majority of 

the members of the Council present at the meeting following the duly noticed public hearing on 

that date.  

 

(d) The City proposes to issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds in the estimated 

aggregate principal amount of $3,680,000 to finance the Street Reconstruction, subject to the 

contingency described in subsection (e) below.  The principal of and interest on the Street 

Reconstruction Bonds will be paid from revenues derived from the imposition of ad valorem 

property taxes.   

 

(e) If a petition requesting a vote on the issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds, 

signed by voters equal to five percent (5%) of the votes cast in the last municipal general election, 

Page 162Item 18.



4 
 

is filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after the date of the public hearing, the City may 

issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds only after obtaining approval of a majority of voters voting 

on the question at an election.  The authorization to issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds is subject 

to expiration of the thirty (30) day period without the City’s receipt of a qualified petition under 

the Street Reconstruction Act, or if a qualified petition is filed, upon the approving vote of a 

majority of the voters voting on the question of issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds. 

 

2. Abatement Bonds. 

 

(a) The City has determined to finance certain public improvements, including parking 

lot improvements and improvements to various city parks (Independence Park, Legion Field and 

the Amateur Sports Center) (the “Public Improvements”). 

 

(b) Under Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815, 

as amended (collectively, the “Abatement Act”), the City is authorized to grant a property tax 

abatement on specified parcels in order to accomplish certain public purposes, including the 

provision or construction of public improvements such as the Public Improvements. 

 

(c) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Council on April 11, 2023 (the “Abatement 

Resolution”), following a duly noticed public hearing, the Council approved a property tax 

abatement (the “Abatements”) for certain property in the City (the “Abatement Parcels”) over a 

period of ten (10) years, in an amount not to exceed $600,000. 

 

(d) In the Abatement Resolution, the City found and determined that the Public 

Improvements benefit the Abatement Parcels, and that the maximum principal amount of bonds to 

be secured by Abatements (the “Abatement Bonds”) does not exceed the estimated sum of 

Abatements from the Abatement Parcels for the term authorized under the Abatement Resolution. 

 

(e) The City has determined to issue the Abatement Bonds in the estimated aggregate 

principal amount of $600,000, pursuant to the Abatement Act, to provide financing for the Public 

Improvements. The principal of and interest on the Abatement Bonds will be paid from revenues 

derived from the imposition of the Abatements.    

 

3. Utility Revenue Bonds. 

 

(a) The City is authorized by Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 444, as 

amended (collectively, the “Utility Revenue Act”) to issue general obligation bonds (the “Utility 

Revenue Bonds”) to pay the costs of building, constructing, reconstructing, repairing, enlarging, 

and improving waterworks, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer systems of the City.  The term “storm 

sewer” means storm sewer systems, including mains, holding areas and ponds, and other 

appurtenances and related facilities for the collection and disposal of stormwater. 

 

(b) The City Council finds it necessary and expedient to the sound financial 

management of the affairs of the City to issue the Utility Revenue Bonds, in the estimated aggregate 

principal amount of $910,000, pursuant to the Utility Revenue Act to finance the Legion Field 

stormwater improvements (the “Utility Improvements”). The principal of and interest on the Utility 

Revenue Bonds will be paid from net revenues of the wastewater and surface water systems of the 

City.  

  

4. Airport Bonds. 

 

Page 163Item 18.



5 
 

(a) The City is authorized by Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 360.036, 

as amended (collectively, the “Airport Act”), to issue general obligation bonds to finance the costs 

of investigating, surveying, planning, acquiring, establishing, constructing, enlarging, or improving 

or equipping airports and other navigation facilities, and the sites therefor, including structures and 

other property incidental to their operation.  

 

(b) No election is required to authorize the issuance of bonds under the Airport Act if 

such bonds are authorized by a resolution of the Council, adopted by a vote of not less than 60 

percent (60%) of its members. 

 

(c) It is necessary and expedient to the sound financial management of the affairs of 

the City to issue general obligation bonds in the estimated aggregate principal amount of $1,105,000 

(the “Airport Bonds”), pursuant to the Airport Act, to provide financing for certain improvements 

to the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport (the “Airport”), including the construction of a new 

snow removal equipment (SRE) and maintenance equipment storage building (the “Airport 

Improvements”).  The principal of and interest on the Airport Bonds will be paid from revenues 

derived from the imposition of ad valorem property taxes.  The Airport Bonds may also be payable 

in part from net revenues obtained from the ownership, control, and operation of the Airport, 

including passenger facility charges and other revenues.  

 

5. Sale of Bonds.   

 

(a) It is necessary and expedient to the sound financial management of the affairs of 

the City to issue its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A (the “Bonds”), in the proposed 

aggregate principal amount of $6,295,000, pursuant to the Street Reconstruction Act, the 

Abatement Act, the Utility Revenue Act, and the Airport Act to provide financing for the Street 

Reconstruction, the Public Improvements, the Utility Improvements, and the Airport Improvements 

and to pay capitalized interest and the costs of issuing the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued, sold, 

and delivered in accordance with the Terms of Proposal substantially in the form attached hereto 

as EXHIBIT A (the “Terms of Proposal”); provided that City staff may determine, in consultation 

with the Municipal Advisor and Bond Counsel (each, as defined below), to adjust the Terms of 

Proposal to withdraw the Airport Bonds portion of the Bonds based on this Council’s concurrent 

or subsequent determination as to construction bids received in connection with the Airport 

Improvements. 

 

(b) The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, subdivision 2(9) of 

to negotiate the sale of the Bonds, it being determined that the City has retained an independent 

municipal advisor in connection with such sale.   

 

6. Authority of Municipal Advisor.  Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC (the “Municipal 

Advisor”) is authorized and directed to negotiate the Bonds in accordance with the Terms of Proposal, 

subject to adjustment as provided in Section 5(a) of this resolution.  The Council will meet at 5:30 P.M. on 

Tuesday, May 23, 2023, to consider proposals on the Bonds and/or take any other appropriate action with 

respect to the Bonds. 

 

7. Authority of Bond Counsel.  The law firm of Kennedy & Graven, Chartered, as bond 

counsel for the City (“Bond Counsel”), is authorized to act as bond counsel and to assist in the preparation 

and review of necessary documents, certificates and instruments relating to the Bonds.  The officers, 

employees and agents of the City are hereby authorized to assist Bond Counsel in the preparation of such 

documents, certificates, and instruments. 

 

Page 164Item 18.



6 
 

8. Covenants.  In the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds the Council will set forth the 

covenants and undertakings required by the Street Reconstruction Act, the Abatement Act, the Utility 

Revenue Act, and the Airport Act, as applicable. 

 

9. Official Statement.  In connection with the sale of the Bonds, the officers or employees of 

the City are authorized and directed to cooperate with the Municipal Advisor and participate in the 

preparation of an official statement for the Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the City upon 

its completion. 

 

10. Reimbursement.  The City has or may have incurred certain expenditures with respect to 

the Street Reconstruction, Public Improvements, Utility Improvements, and Airport Improvements 

(collectively, the “Improvements”) that were financed temporarily from other sources but are expected to 

be reimbursed with proceeds of the Bonds.  The City hereby declares its intent to reimburse certain costs 

of the Improvements from proceeds of the Bonds (the “Declaration”).  This Declaration is intended to 

constitute a declaration of official intent for purposes of Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations 

promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 

Passed and adopted this April 25, 2023. 

 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

 

  

Robert J. Byrnes 

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

  

Steven Anderson 

City Clerk 

Page 165Item 18.



A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Terms of Proposal 

 
  

Page 166Item 18.



A-2 
 

THE CITY HAS AUTHORIZED BAKER TILLY MUNICIPAL ADVISORS, LLC TO NEGOTIATE THIS 
ISSUE ON ITS BEHALF.  PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED ON THE FOLLOWING BASIS: 
 

TERMS OF PROPOSAL 
 

$6,295,000* 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2023A 
 

(BOOK ENTRY ONLY) 
 
Proposals for the above-referenced obligations (the “Bonds”) will be received by the City of Marshall, 
Minnesota (the “City”) on Tuesday, May 23, 2023 (the “Sale Date”) until 10:00 A.M., Central Time (the “Sale 
Time”) at the offices of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC (“Baker Tilly MA”), 30 East 7th Street, Suite 
3025, Saint Paul, MN 55101, after which time proposals will be opened and tabulated.  Consideration for 
award of the Bonds will be by the City Council at its meeting commencing at 5:30 P.M., Central Time, of 
the same day.   
 

SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS 
 
Baker Tilly MA will assume no liability for the inability of a bidder or its proposal to reach Baker Tilly MA 
prior to the Sale Time, and neither the City nor Baker Tilly MA shall be responsible for any failure, 
misdirection or error in the means of transmission selected by any bidder.  All bidders are advised that each 
proposal shall be deemed to constitute a contract between the bidder and the City to purchase the Bonds 
regardless of the manner in which the proposal is submitted. 
 
(a)  Sealed Bidding.  Completed, signed proposals may be submitted to Baker Tilly MA by email to 
bids@bakertilly.com, and must be received prior to the Sale Time.   
 
OR 
 
(b)  Electronic Bidding. Proposals may also be received via PARITY®.  For purposes of the electronic 
bidding process, the time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time with respect to all 
proposals submitted to PARITY®.  Each bidder shall be solely responsible for making necessary 
arrangements to access PARITY® for purposes of submitting its electronic proposal in a timely manner and 
in compliance with the requirements of the Terms of Proposal.  Neither the City, its agents, nor PARITY® 
shall have any duty or obligation to undertake registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to provide or 
ensure electronic access to any qualified prospective bidder, and neither the City, its agents, nor PARITY® 
shall be responsible for a bidder’s failure to register to bid or for any failure in the proper operation of, or 
have any liability for any delays or interruptions of or any damages caused by the services of PARITY®.  
The City is using the services of PARITY® solely as a communication mechanism to conduct the electronic 
bidding for the Bonds, and PARITY® is not an agent of the City. 
 
If any provisions of this Terms of Proposal conflict with information provided by PARITY®, this Terms of 
Proposal shall control.  Further information about PARITY®, including any fee charged, may be obtained 
from: 
 

PARITY®, 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018 
Customer Support:  (212) 849-5000 

 
*Preliminary; subject to change. 
 
Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is a registered municipal advisor and controlled subsidiary of Baker Tilly US, LLP, 
an accounting firm.  Baker Tilly US, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly 
International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities.  © 2023 Baker Tilly Municipal 
Advisors, LLC.  

Page 167Item 18.

mailto:bids@bakertilly.com


A-3 
 

DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 
The Bonds will be dated as of the date of delivery and will bear interest payable on February 1 and August 1 
of each year, commencing February 1, 2024.  Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-day months. 
 
The Bonds will mature February 1 in the years and amounts* as follows: 
 

 
*The City reserves the right, after proposals are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the 
principal amount of the Bonds or the amount of any maturity or maturities in multiples of $5,000.  In the 
event the amount of any maturity is modified, the aggregate purchase price will be adjusted to result in the 
same gross spread per $1,000 of Bonds as that of the original proposal.  Gross spread for this purpose is 
the differential between the price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which the proposal 
indicates the securities will be initially offered to the investing public. 
 
Proposals for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination of serial bonds and 
term bonds.  All term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price of par plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption scheduled to conform to the maturity schedule set forth above.  
In order to designate term bonds, the proposal must specify “Years of Term Maturities” in the spaces 
provided on the proposal form. 
 

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM 
 
The Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system with no physical distribution of Bonds made to 
the public.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and one Bond, representing the aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds maturing in each year, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, which will act as securities 
depository for the Bonds.  Individual purchases of the Bonds may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 
or any multiple thereof of a single maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC 
and its participants.  Principal and interest are payable by the registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered 
owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the 
responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by participants will 
be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners.  The lowest bidder (the 
“Purchaser”), as a condition of delivery of the Bonds, will be required to deposit the Bonds with DTC.   
 

REGISTRAR 
 
The City will name the registrar which shall be subject to applicable regulations of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  The City will pay for the services of the registrar. 
 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 
 
The City may elect on February 1, 2032, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Bonds due on or after 
February 1, 2033.  Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in part at the option of the City and in such 
manner as the City shall determine.  If less than all Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, the City 
will notify DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the 
amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select 
by lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed.  All redemptions shall be at a 
price of par plus accrued interest.   
  

The Bonds will mature February 1 in the years and amounts* as follows: 
 
2025 $575,000 

2026 $585,000 

2027 $595,000 

2028 $600,000 

2029 $625,000 

2030 $630,000 

2031 $645,000 

2032 $660,000 

2033 $680,000 

2034 $700,000 

 

Page 168Item 18.



A-4 
 

SECURITY AND PURPOSE 
 
The Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its full faith and credit and 
power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  In addition, the City will pledge (i) available tax abatement 
revenue for repayment of a portion of the Bonds, and (ii) net revenues of the City’s Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities and Surface Water Management Funds for repayment of a portion of the Bonds.  The proceeds 
of the Bonds, along with available City funds, will be used to finance (i) various improvement projects within 
the City, (ii) various improvements to the Southwest Minnesota International Airport, (iii) various park 
improvements, (iv) various street reconstruction projects pursuant to the City’s 2023-2027 Street 
Reconstruction Plan, (v) various utility improvements, (vi) capitalized interest ; and (vii) the cost of issuance. 
 

BANK QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS 
 
The City will designate the Bonds as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 

BIDDING PARAMETERS  
 
Proposals shall be for not less than $6,232,050 plus accrued interest, if any, on the total principal amount 
of the Bonds.   
 
No proposal can be withdrawn or amended after the time set for receiving proposals on the Sale Date 
unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of the Bonds is adjourned, recessed, or continued to 
another date without award of the Bonds having been made.  Rates shall be in integral multiples of 1/100 
or 1/8 of 1%.  The initial price to the public for each maturity as stated on the proposal must be 98.0% or 
greater.  Bonds of the same maturity shall bear a single rate from the date of the Bonds to the date of 
maturity.  No conditional proposals will be accepted. 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE  
 
In order to provide the City with information necessary for compliance with Section 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, 
the “Code”), the Purchaser will be required to assist the City in establishing the issue price of the Bonds 
and shall complete, execute, and deliver to the City prior to the closing date, a written certification in a form 
acceptable to the Purchaser, the City, and Bond Counsel (the “Issue Price Certificate”) containing the 
following for each maturity of the Bonds (and, if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to each 
separate CUSIP number within that maturity):  (i) the interest rate; (ii) the reasonably expected initial offering 
price to the “public” (as said term is defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f) (the “Regulation”)) 
or the sale price; and (iii) pricing wires or equivalent communications supporting such offering or sale price.  
Any action to be taken or documentation to be received by the City pursuant hereto may be taken or 
received on behalf of the City by Baker Tilly MA. 
 
The City intends that the sale of the Bonds pursuant to this Terms of Proposal shall constitute a “competitive 
sale” as defined in the Regulation based on the following: 
 

(i) the City shall cause this Terms of Proposal to be disseminated to potential bidders 
in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential bidders; 

  (ii) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to submit a bid;  
(iii) the City reasonably expects that it will receive bids from at least three bidders that 

have established industry reputations for underwriting municipal bonds such as the 
Bonds; and 

(iv) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who provides a 
proposal with the lowest true interest cost, as set forth in this Terms of Proposal 
(See “AWARD” herein). 

 
Any bid submitted pursuant to this Terms of Proposal shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of 
the Bonds, as specified in the proposal.  The Purchaser shall constitute an “underwriter” as said term is 

Page 169Item 18.



A-5 
 

defined in the Regulation.  By submitting its proposal, the Purchaser confirms that it shall require any 
agreement among underwriters, a selling group agreement, or other agreement to which it is a party relating 
to the initial sale of the Bonds, to include provisions requiring compliance with the provisions of the Code 
and the Regulation regarding the initial sale of the Bonds. 
 
If all of the requirements of a “competitive sale” are not satisfied, the City shall advise the Purchaser of such 
fact prior to the time of award of the sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser.  In such event, any proposal 
submitted will not be subject to cancellation or withdrawal.  Within twenty-four (24) hours of the notice 
of award of the sale of the Bonds, the Purchaser shall advise the City and Baker Tilly MA if 10% of any 
maturity of the Bonds (and, if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to each separate CUSIP number 
within that maturity) has been sold to the public and the price at which it was sold.  The City will treat such 
sale price as the “issue price” for such maturity, applied on a maturity-by-maturity basis.  The City will not 
require the Purchaser to comply with that portion of the Regulation commonly described as the “hold-the-
offering-price” requirement for the remaining maturities, but the Purchaser may elect such option.  If the 
Purchaser exercises such option, the City will apply the initial offering price to the public provided in the 
proposal as the issue price for such maturities.  If the Purchaser does not exercise that option, it shall 
thereafter promptly provide the City and Baker Tilly MA the prices at which 10% of such maturities are sold 
to the public; provided such determination shall be made and the City and Baker Tilly MA notified of such 
prices whether or not the closing date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to each maturity 
of the Bonds or until all of the Bonds of a maturity have been sold. 
 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT 
 
To have its proposal considered for award, the Purchaser is required to submit a good faith deposit via wire 
transfer to the City in the amount of $62,950 (the “Deposit”) no later than 1:00 P.M., Central Time on the 
Sale Date.  The Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the timely delivery of its Deposit, and neither the 
City nor Baker Tilly MA have any liability for delays in the receipt of the Deposit.  If the Deposit is not 
received by the specified time, the City may, at its sole discretion, reject the proposal of the lowest bidder, 
direct the second lowest bidder to submit a Deposit, and thereafter award the sale to such bidder. 
 
A Deposit will be considered timely delivered to the City upon submission of a federal wire reference number 
by the specified time.  Wire transfer instructions will be available from Baker Tilly MA following the receipt 
and tabulation of proposals.  The successful bidder must send an e-mail including the following information: 
(i) the federal reference number and time released; (ii) the amount of the wire transfer; and (iii) the issue to 
which it applies.  
 
Once an award has been made, the Deposit received from the Purchaser will be retained by the City and 
no interest will accrue to the Purchaser.  The amount of the Deposit will be deducted at settlement from the 
purchase price.  In the event the Purchaser fails to comply with the accepted proposal, said amount will be 
retained by the City. 

AWARD 
 
The Bonds will be awarded on the basis of the lowest interest rate to be determined on a true interest cost 
(TIC) basis calculated on the proposal prior to any adjustment made by the City.  The City's computation of 
the interest rate of each proposal, in accordance with customary practice, will be controlling. 
 
The City will reserve the right to:  (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any proposal or of matters 
relating to the receipt of proposals and award of the Bonds, (ii) reject all proposals without cause, and 
(iii) reject any proposal that the City determines to have failed to comply with the terms herein. 
 

BOND INSURANCE AT PURCHASER'S OPTION 
 
The City has not applied for or pre-approved a commitment for any policy of municipal bond insurance with 
respect to the Bonds.  If the Bonds qualify for municipal bond insurance and a bidder desires to purchase 
a policy, such indication, the maturities to be insured, and the name of the desired insurer must be set forth 
on the bidder’s proposal.  The City specifically reserves the right to reject any bid specifying municipal bond 
insurance, even though such bid may result in the lowest TIC to the City.  All costs associated with the 

Page 170Item 18.



A-6 
 

issuance and administration of such policy and associated ratings and expenses (other than any 
independent rating requested by the City) shall be paid by the successful bidder.  Failure of the municipal 
bond insurer to issue the policy after the award of the Bonds shall not constitute cause for failure or refusal 
by the successful bidder to accept delivery of the Bonds. 

 
CUSIP NUMBERS 

 
If the Bonds qualify for the assignment of CUSIP numbers such numbers will be printed on the Bonds; 
however, neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto will 
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds.  Baker Tilly MA will 
apply for CUSIP numbers pursuant to Rule G-34 implemented by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board.  The CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of CUSIP identification numbers shall be 
paid by the Purchaser. 
 

SETTLEMENT 
 
On or about June 22, 2023, the Bonds will be delivered without cost to the Purchaser through DTC in New 
York, New York.  Delivery will be subject to receipt by the Purchaser of an approving legal opinion of 
Kennedy & Graven, Chartered of Minneapolis, Minnesota, and of customary closing papers, including a no-
litigation certificate.  On the date of settlement, payment for the Bonds shall be made in federal, or 
equivalent, funds that shall be received at the offices of the City or its designee not later than 12:00 Noon, 
Central Time.  Unless compliance with the terms of payment for the Bonds has been made impossible by 
action of the City, or its agents, the Purchaser shall be liable to the City for any loss suffered by the City by 
reason of the Purchaser's non-compliance with said terms for payment. 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 
In accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5), the City will undertake, pursuant to the resolution awarding 
sale of the Bonds, to provide annual reports and notices of certain events.  A description of this undertaking 
is set forth in the Official Statement.  The Purchaser's obligation to purchase the Bonds will be conditioned 
upon receiving evidence of this undertaking at or prior to delivery of the Bonds. 
 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
The City has authorized the preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement containing pertinent information 
relative to the Bonds, and said Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final by the City as of the 
date thereof within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission.  For an 
electronic copy of the Preliminary Official Statement or for any additional information prior to sale, any 
prospective purchaser is referred to the Municipal Advisor to the City, Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, 
by telephone (651) 223-3000, or by email bids@bakertilly.com.  The Preliminary Official Statement will also 
be made available at https://connect.bakertilly.com/bond-sales-calendar.  
 
A Final Official Statement (as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12) will be prepared, specifying the maturity 
dates, principal amounts, and interest rates of the Bonds, together with any other information required by 
law.  By awarding the Bonds to the Purchaser, the City agrees that, no more than seven business days 
after the date of such award, it shall provide to the Purchaser an electronic copy of the Final Official 
Statement.  The City designates the Purchaser as its agent for purposes of distributing the Final Official 
Statement to each syndicate member, if applicable.  The Purchaser agrees that if its proposal is accepted 
by the City, (i) it shall accept designation and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with its syndicate 
members for purposes of assuring the receipt of the Final Official Statement by each such syndicate 
member. 
 
Dated April 25, 2023 BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

/s/ Sharon Hanson 
City Administrator

Page 171Item 18.

mailto:bondservice@bakertilly.com
https://connect.bakertilly.com/bond-sales-calendar


 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

 ) 

COUNTY OF LYON ) SS 

 ) 

CITY OF MARSHALL ) 

 

 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Marshall, Minnesota 

(the “City”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the attached and foregoing extract of minutes 

with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a full, true and complete transcript of the 

minutes of a meeting of the City Council of the City, duly called and held on April 25, 2023, insofar as 

such minutes relate to the issuance and sale of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A, in the 

estimated aggregate principal amount of $6,295,000. 

WITNESS my hand this ____ day of __________, 2023. 

 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

 

 

 

  

Steven Anderson 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 172Item 18.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Mayor Byrnes 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Appointments to Various Boards, Commission, Bureaus, and Authorities. 

Background 
Information: 

Under Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 143 the City Charter states: “Appointments to all 
boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities shall be by the mayor and shall be confirmed by 
the council with the exception of the housing and redevelopment authority.” 
 
Interviews were held prior to the regular city council meeting.  

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: To make recommendations and affirm appointments to the various Boards, Commissions, 
Bureaus, and Authorities. 

 
 
 

 

Page 173Item 19.



 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL ANNOUNCES OPENINGS ON THE FOLLOWING 
COMMISSIONS/BOARDS/AUTHORITIES 

 
Adult Community Center Commission 
(1) Vacant position to expire 5/31/26 
 
Airport Commission 
(2) Upcoming positions to expire 5/31/26 
 
Cable Commission 
(2) Vacant positions to expire 5/31/25  
(2) Upcoming positions to expire 5/31/26 
(1) Vacant position to expire 5/31/24 
 
Community Services Advisory Board 
All positions currently filled. 
 
Convention and Visitors Bureau 
All positions currently filled. 
 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission 
(3)  Upcoming positions to expire 5/31/26  
 
 

Economic Development Authority 
All positions currently filled. 
 
Library Board 
(1) Upcoming position to expire 12/31/23 
 
Marshall Municipal Utilities Commission 
(1)  Upcoming position to expire 5/31/23 
 
MERIT Center Commission 
(2) Vacant positions to expire 12/31/25 
 
Planning Commission 
(1) Vacant position to expire 5/31/25 
(2)  Upcoming positions to expire 5/31/26 
 
Police Advisory Board 
All positions currently filled. 
 
Public Housing Commission 
All positions currently filled. 

 
 
These positions represent an opportunity for interested residents of Marshall to become more involved in 
local government activities.  Positions are nonpaying.  Interested residents can obtain additional information 
and applications from the City Clerk by calling 507-537-6760 or at the following website: 
www.ci.marshall.mn.us.  Appointments will be made by the Mayor and City Council as set forth in policy 
statements. 
 
Mayor & City Council 
City of Marshall 

Page 174Item 19.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Mayor Byrnes 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

Category: COUNCIL REPORTS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: Commission/Board Liaison Reports 

Background 
Information: 

Byrnes - Fire Relief Association and Regional Development Commission 

Schafer – Airport Commission, Joint LEC Management Committee, MERIT Center Commission, 

SW Amateur Sports Commission 

Meister – Adult Community Center, Cable Commission, Economic Development Authority 

Schroeder – Economic Development Authority, Planning Commission, Public Housing 

Commission 

Alcorn – Community Services Advisory Board, MMU Commission 

Moua-Leske – Convention & Visitors Bureau; Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Commission; Library 

Board 

Lozinski – Marshall Area Transit Committee, Joint LEC Management Committee, Police Advisory 
Board 

Fiscal Impact:   

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations:  

 
 
 

 

Page 175Item 20.



Page 176Item 25.



Page 177Item 25.



Page 178Item 25.



Page 179Item 25.



Page 180Item 25.



--UNAPPROVED -- 

 

 
Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission – 4-12-23 

MINUTES OF THE  

MARSHALL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

APRIL 12, 2023 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Deutz, Doom, Stoneberg, Lee and Muchlinski 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Pieper 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Jason Anderson, Ilya Gutman, and Amanda Schroeder 

 

1. The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Lee.  She asked for the approval of the minutes of 

the March 8, 2023, regular meeting of the Marshall Planning Commission.  Doom MADE A 

MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz, to approve the minutes as written. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF 

THE MOTION. 

 

2. Gutman explained this area has been recently annexed into the city and is currently zoned A – 

Agricultural District.  Solar panels are a Conditional Use Permit in an A – Agricultural District.  

Staff believe all standards for hearing are met. Staff recommends approval to the City Council of 

the request by the Western MN Municipal Power Agency for a Conditional Use Permit to have 

solar panels in an A – Agricultural District at 1200 North 7th Street with the following standard 

conditions. 1. That the regulations, standards, and requirements as set forth in the City Code and as 

pertain to the class of district in which such premises are located shall be conformed with. 2. That 

the City reserves the right to revoke the Conditional Use Permit if any person has breached the 

conditions contained in this permit provided that the City serve the person with written notice 

specifying items of any default and allow the applicant a reasonable time in which to repair such 

default. 3. That the property is maintained to conform to the Zoning Code and not cause or create 

negative impacts to adjacent existing or future properties.  Luke Gildemeister, from US Solar 

Corporation, of 100 N 6th St Suite 410 B Minneapolis, MN explained the project to construct a 

solar system on 51.5 acres.  He went over the location of the protect and the neighbors in the area.  

There will be approximately 21,222 panels on the site. The highest the panels will ever get is 10 ft. 

 The proposed fence is similar to a farm fence and will be 8 ft tall without any barbed wire. There 

will be a new access road. Once the project is completed and operational, there will be no noise or 

odor.  He explained in detail the location, neighborhood, the panels, all site equipment, and safety 

items.  Muchlinski asked what the lifespan is of the panels.  Gildemeister advised it is a 30-year 

period with the ability to last longer.  Tony Mead, with MMU, added that he is here to advise they 

are in support of this project.  Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Stoneberg to close 

the public hearing. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION. Doom added that we have gone 

over all the ordinance requirements, and everything has been addressed and it meets all the 

requirements.  Doom MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz to recommend to City Council as 

recommended by staff. 

 

3. Gutman advised this section was amended several years ago to allow a single shipping container in 

a general business district as an interim use permit. This change was a result of a specific request 

since prior to that shipping containers were not permitted in business districts. However, after some 

conversations – internal and external – staff concluded that a limitation of just one shipping 

container may be relaxed because the ordinance requires a fencing around to mask them from 

public right of way anyway, and, on the other hand, also allows open storage behind fences. The 

proposed change will limit the total area of containers rather than the number of them, with 

suggested number being an equivalent of three 40’ x 8’ containers; a limitation of the area as a 

Page 181Item 26.



--UNAPPROVED -- 

 

 
Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission – 4-12-23 

percentage of the building area on site will allow avoiding multiple containers placed next to 

smaller buildings, which would look disproportionate. This will also encourage owners to build an 

addition if a larger storage area is desired. Additionally, the change will allow storage units other 

than standard shipping containers, again, due to the reason they will be fenced off anyway and will 

not be visible. These changes have been presented at the Legislative & Ordinance Committee 

April 4, 2023, and recommended for approval.  Muchlinski questioned the setbacks.  Gutman 

clarified storage units will not be placed in front yards and that there would be fence coverage.  

Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz to recommend to City Council as 

recommended by staff. 

 

4. A MOTION WAS MADE BY Deutz, SECOND BY Stoneberg to adjourn the meeting.  ALL 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Chairperson Lee declared the meeting adjourned.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Chris DeVos, Recording Secretary 

Page 182Item 26.



Page 183Item 27.



2023 Regular Council Meeting Dates 

2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month (Unless otherwise noted) 

5:30 P.M. 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

 

January 

1. January 10, 2023 
2. January 24, 2023 

February 

1. February 14, 2023 
2. February 28, 2023 

March 

1. March 14, 2023 
2. March 28, 2023 

April 

1. April 11, 2023 
2. April 25, 2023 

May 

1. May 9, 2023 
2. May 23, 2023 

June 

1. June 13, 2023 
2. June 27. 2023 

July 

1. July 11, 2023 
2. July 25, 2023 

August 

1. August 08, 2023 

2. August 22, 2023 

September 

1. September 12, 2023 
2. September 26, 2023 

October 

1. October 10, 2023 
2. October 24, 2023 

November 

1. November 14, 2023 
2. November 28, 2023 

December 

1. December 12, 2023 
2. December 26, 2023

 

2023 Uniform Election Dates 

 February 14, 2023 

 April 11, 2023 

 May 9, 2023 

 August 08, 2023 

 November 07, 2023

204C.03 PUBLIC MEETINGS PROHIBITED ON ELECTION DAY. 

Subdivision 1. School districts; counties; municipalities; special taxing districts. No special taxing district governing 

body, school board, county board of commissioners, city council, or town board of supervisors shall conduct a 

meeting between 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. on the day that an election is held within the boundaries of the special 

taxing district, school district, county, city, or town. As used in this subdivision, "special taxing district" has the 

meaning given in section 275.066. 

Page 184Item 28.



 

 

 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

April 
 04/25 Ways and Means Committee, 12:45 PM, City Hall 

 04/25 Public Improvement and Transportation Committee, 3:00 PM, City Hall 

 04/25 Interviews for Various Boards, Commissions, Bureaus, & Authorities, 4:15 PM, City Hall  

 04/25 Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Reconvene-as needed, 5:00 PM, City Hall 

 04/25 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 

 

May 
 05/09 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 05/23 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 
 
 

Page 185Item 28.


	Top
	Item 1.	Consider Approval of the Minutes from April 11th & the Local Board of Appeal & Equalization on April 17th
	Agenda Memo--Consider approval of Minutes
	04.11 Regular Meeting
	04.11 Work Session
	04.17 LBAE

	Item 2.	Conduct Public Hearing of Ordinance Amending Section 86-230 Required Number of Spaces
	Section 86-230
	86-230
	Ord. No. 23-007 Summary

	Item 3.	Consider Approval of the 2023-2024 Township Fire Service Agreements
	Agenda Memo
	2023-2024 Fire Protection Agreement - MASTER
	2023_2024 Exhibit B Fire Service Fee Summary Contract

	Item 4.	Consider Approval for a Temporary Liquor License for Knights of Columbus Fundraiser on May 19th
	Agenda Memo - Temp Onsale
	Knights of Columbus 05.19_Redacted

	Item 5.	Consider Approval of Amendments to Ordinance Division 2-VI-11 Adult Community Center Commission
	Agenda Memo
	Ord_23-008
	Ord. No. 23-008 Summary

	Item 6.	Introduction of Ordinance Amending Sec. 74-122 Regarding Snow Emergency Declaration
	Ord Sec 74-122 Amendments (redline) (Council Introduce) (2023-04-25)

	Item 7.	Introduction of Ordinance Amending Section 86-248 Outside Storage and Call for Public Hearing
	86-248 Outside Storage
	Section 86-248

	Item 8.	Consider Authorization to Declare Vehicles as Surplus Property for the Marshall Police Department
	Surplus Vehicles Agenda
	04-25-23

	Item 9.	Consider Approval for a Raffle LG220 Exempt Permit for Holy Redeemer
	Agenda Memo - Gambling
	Holy Redeemer Raffle 07.29.23_Redacted

	Item 10.	Consider Approval of the Bills/Project Payments
	Bills & Project Payments
	Council Check Report
	Project Summary for Council

	Item 11.	Request for Conditional Use Permit by Western MN Municipal Power Agency
	CUP 1200 N 7th
	US Solar
	Site Plan
	Resolution

	Item 12.	Contract Allowing MRES to Become MMU’s Administrator of the New WAPA Renewable Energy Credits
	Agenda Memo-WAPA
	Memo to Dave  3-17-23
	City_of_Marshall_MN-MRES_CN_23-UGPR-28_ (1)

	Item 13.	Missouri River Energy Services & MMU Reserve Capacity Agreement
	Agenda Memo-MRES
	Memo to Dave  4-4-23 (MMU)
	Resolution 203 RCA with MRES
	2023 RCA Marshall

	Item 14.	Project AP-003:  Airport Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) Building - Consider Rejection of Bids
	SRE Building  (CC 2023-04-25)
	TKDA Opinion of Probable Cost 2023-02-21
	Cost Breakdown 2023-02-28 Council

	Item 15.	Project ST-003: South 1st Street/Greeley Reconstruction Project - 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment
	Delare Cost Assessed (ST-003)
	Cost Breakdown (ST-003)
	RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-032 & 033

	Item 16.	Project ST-004: Halbur Road Reconstruction Project - 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment
	Delare Cost Assessed (ST-004)
	Cost Breakdown (ST-004)
	RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-034 & 035

	Item 17.	Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) Reconstruction Project - 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment; 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment
	Delare Cost Assessed (ST-023)
	Cost Breakdown (ST-023)
	RESOLUTION NUMBER 23-036 & 037

	Item 18.	Consider a Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s GO Bond Series 2023A
	Agenda Memo
	Marshall GO 2023A AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

	Item 19.	Consider Appointments to Various Boards, Commission, Bureaus, and Authorities
	Agenda Memo - Appointment to Board
	Various Openings

	Item 20.	Commission/Board Liaison Reports
	Agenda Memo--Council Reports

	Item 25.	Public Housing Commission Minutes
	SKM_C250i23041207310

	Item 26.	Planning Commission Minutes
	4-12-23

	Item 27.	Building Permits
	20230419085607201

	Item 28.	Upcoming Meetings
	2023 Regular Council Meeting Dates, Times and Location
	Upcoming Meetings

	Bottom

